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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and all of its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2010 to the
shareholders.

With the dedication and hard work of the management and our
staff, the results of the Group recorded a steady growth for the
year 2009-2010. The Group achieved a turnover and a profit after
taxation of approximately HK$706,250,000 and HK$309,758,000
for the year, representing an increase of approximately
HK$126,740,000 and HK$270,521,000 respectively as compared
to the corresponding period last year.

DESCRIPTION OF THE CHINESE ECONOMY
AND REVIEW AND PROSPECT OF THE
INDUSTRY

In 2009, in order to mitigate the adverse effect of the global
economic crisis, the PRC government adopted proactive
financial policies and moderate monetary policies, including
the implementation of the investment plan of RMB4 trillion
announced in November 2008 in phases, as well as the
adjustment and stimulus plan for ten key industries (including
the petroleum and chemical industry) for promoting general
improvement in industrial structure. After a year of commitment,
the Chinese economy continued to thrive at a fast but steady
pace. According to the “Statistical Report on the National
Economy and Social Development of China 2009" published by
the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the annual GDP of the
PRC for 2009 amounted to RMB33.5353 trillion, up 8.7% from
that of last year, which was one of the fastest growth rates among
the world’s major economies.

Chairman’s Statement £ E#H &

AANBEREPREBRBRAB ([ARA])E
ze([EF5e | ) R2EWNBRR (BB A%
B]) MAMKEIRZAEBEEZE2010F38
BMHIEZFERS -

KRAETEEHEPEESE TN THSE S 2009-
10FEEBEXEERETRE BEHFE
584978 #706,250,0007T 8 2 4 [B B 0
4778 126,740,000 ER 2 F R 1B )& F 4
75 #309,758,0007T * 8 2 4F [A] HR 38 hn 49 78 &
270,521,0007T °

TEEERMRTREBERREE

2009 - R E 2K R B RH T F &
2 hEBNHER T BN BRBERNEEE
RREMEBE B EE 72008F 11 AR
ABEIRERS THEEEHRE T RIEA BT
EATRITENAZRIRERS  2HEEEEE
EBAR -KAE2FNTEE N ARLER
BT IEFERRERZA-PBEBERGAB LM
K QQ009FBIREAEMTEHERAT AR
B 2000F 2HEREANALEERBEARE
335,35318 70 ' tb EF I R8.7% R A R
FEEEREPEBMEN -

TRERFRAA
2009-2010%F




Chairman’s Statement
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NATURAL GAS INDUSTRY

In 2009, the Chinese natural gas industry continued to flourish
with an annual notional production of natural gas of 85.2 billion
cubic meters (“m3"), an increase of 6.1% over the previous year.
Annual natural gas consumption was 88.7 billion m3, grew by
9.1% over the previous year. Given the substantially lower price
of natural gas in the PRC as compared with the international
level, upper stream enterprises generally lack the motivation to
produce natural gas, thus straining the shortage of natural gas
supply in the PRC. The demand-supply equilibrium of natural gas
is further affected due to the higher natural gas consumption in
the PRC in recent years. In the winter of 2009, many cities in the
PRC experienced most serious shortage of natural gas, materially
affecting the normal production and daily lives of local enterprises
and residents. In order to deal with the difficult position, the PRC
Government, on the one hand, has been focusing on constructing
infrastructures for natural gas supply and adjusting the allocation
of natural gas resources. In January 2010, the western pipeline
of the second west-east gas transmission project commenced
gas supply. In March 2010, the construction of the pipeline of
Sichuan-East China project completed and the operation has
been kicked off. Concurrently, coastal Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) terminal projects have been put into operation. All of these
secure the supply of natural gas for the surging consumption in
the market. On the other hand, the PRC Government has actively
promoted a reform of the pricing mechanism of natural gas in
order to rationalise it. In April 2010, the National Development
and Reform Commission promulgated “the Notice on the
Adjustment of Price of Natural Gas Pipeline Transmission”, which
raised the tariff of pipeline-transmitted natural gas by RMB0.08
per m3 with effect from 25 April 2010. On 31 May 2010, the
National Development and Reform Commission promulgated “the
Notice on Raising the Benchmark Price of Natural Gas Produced
by Domestic Onshore Fields”, which raised the benchmark price
of natural gas delivered by oil and gas fields (or terminals) by
RMB230 per thousand m?3. With the gradual implementation of
the PRC’s reform of natural gas price, increasing urbanization
and the policies to develop a “low carbon economy” which
emphasizes on energy saving and emission reduction, the natural
gas sector of the PRC exhibits huge growth potential, thereby
greatly benefitting the Group’s natural gas business.
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LPG INDUSTRY

Due to the lack of natural gas resources, Liquefied Petroleum Gas
(LPG) is an important energy in some south-western provinces of
the PRC, and, hence, is in strong demand with extensive room for
development. This was proven by the national LPG consumption
of 22.4 million tons in 2009, which was 9% higher than the
previous year. Following the implementation of the new pricing
mechanism of oil products in 2009, the supply and sales of LPG
will follow a more market-oriented development. In May 2009,
the PRC Government further issued “the Adjustment and Stimulus
Plan for the Petroleum and Chemical Industry”, which presented
new opportunities for the development of the petroleum and
chemical industry. The above reform and measures will promote a
healthy and organized growth of the LPG industry, and the Group
will aim at steadily and rapidly developing its LPG business under
such new market order.

LOTTERY INDUSTRY

In 2009, total sales of lottery in the PRC recorded a year-on-year
rise of RMB26.466 billion, or 25%, to RMB132.479 billion, among
which RMB75.606 billion were derived from the sales of welfare
lottery, representing an increase of RMB15.208 billion or 25.2% as
compared with last year. The lottery market of the PRC continues
to flourish in recent years. The implementation of “the Lottery
Regulations” on 1 July 2009 and the issuance of “the Rules for
Implementation of the Lottery Regulations (Draft)” (for solicitation
of opinions) in March 2010 has fostered a healthier environment
for the development of the PRC lottery market by providing
further regulations of the lottery industry and offering concrete
protection for the legitimate rights of lottery lovers and operators.
The Group will capitalize on such favourable development and
actively promote its lottery business.

Looking forward, the Group will take full advantage of the
opportunities brought by the tremendous economic strides of the
PRC to promote rapid development across each segment, with an
ultimate aim to offer better returns to the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | hereby gratefully acknowledge the
staunch support of all the shareholders and the community over
the year.

Dr. Mo Shikang
Chairman

Beijing, 23 July 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 32 B 51 58 & 2 47

For the year ended 31 March 2010, under the leadership of HZE2010F3A31BIEFE KAEBE2EET
the Directors and management of the Group, all of our staff FEEESEREEEEET REEBAATE
executed the development strategies of the Group earnestly R RREHE JBEMNTXT2FENT
and unswervingly and worked through some difficulties, thus YEERS

successfully completing various tasks for the year.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MERE
For the year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE
Change
2010 2009 o)
Items 1BH HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Turnover: BER
Provision of piped gas fuel HEE EMRAER 450,950 312,141 138,809
Transportation, distribution and B oHERAETE
retail of bottled LPG BAL A BRER 255,300 267,369 (12,069)
Total &&f 706,250 579,510 126,740
Gross profit: E7H:
Provision of piped gas fuel HEEEMRES 172,234 90,816 81,418
Transportation, distribution and By DEMNERTE
retail of bottled LPG B AR RETS 38,096 41,724 (3,628)
Total &&f 210,330 132,540 77,790
Segment results: DEBRELE -
Provision of piped gas fuel (note) HEEBMRED
(KsE) 110,850 26,195 84,655
Transportation, distribution and B DHEMAETE
retail of bottled LPG AL AR RER 8,710 15,568 (6,858)
Total AEr 119,560 41,763 77,797
note: exclude the items marked with “#".
Wix: TBEEA(4]ER-
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

MBHE (&)

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEBNRRDN

For the year ended 31 March
BE3AMBLFE

Change
2010 2009 &
Items HH HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT I BT T
Loss on fair value changes of ARBEEREAFERE
convertible notes 18 (2,118) (4,496) 2,378
Loss on fair value changes of BATEFABE M
financial assets at fair value EEZATEEZEHEE
through profit or loss - (7,507) 7,507
Reversal of impairment loss B2 R (B B 1R B B
recognised in respect of
earthquake? - 65,002 (65,002)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries* HEWNE QR Z WS 257,189 - 257,189
Equity-settled share-based payments Mz E KK A
B2 R - (1,666) 1,666
Other revenues & expenses (net) HeWAKASZ (F8) (44,625) (41,813) (2,812)
Profit before taxation B 750 A g A 330,006 51,283 278,723
Profit attributable to owners of PIN/NEIE ¥ N bl
the Company 300,614 35,902 264,712
Earnings per share IsEiE=
- Basic and diluted —EARREE
(HK cents per share) (=RBEM) 7.36 0.88 6.48
note: exclude the items marked with “#".
ik: TEEEE4]EE-
HRERAERA T

2009-20105F 8




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEARRDN

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

EERE
For the year
ended 31 March
HBZE3A3MBLLEE Growth  Growth rate
Items BB 2010 2009 R Ryl
(%)
No. of projects HE #E (@)
Piped gas fuel (note 1) MR IE E
(PFEET) 37 36 1 2.8
LPG B A B R 4 4 _ _
Others (note 2) By (K7E2) 3 3 _ _
Total no. of projects 5B 8 44 43 1 2.3
No. of connected customers for 5 Hi 9 $E 5 P &1
the reporting period (unit) (F)
Household ERRAF 77,443 27,008 50,435 186.7
Commercial & industrial IHERRP 248 213 35 16.4
Total no. of connected BEEEBAFPAH
customers 77,691 27,221 50,470 185.4
Accumulated no. of connected ZifCEEAFP
customers (unit) (F)
Household ERRAF 283,310 205,867 77,443 37.6
Commercial & industrial ITHERF 2,477 2,229 248 11.1
Accumulated no. of connected ZFEEERE
customers 285,787 208,096 77,691 37.3
Sales of piped gas fuel EBMRHEES
(10,000 m3) (B HK)
Household EREF 3,072 2,431 641 26.4
Commercial & industrial ITHERP 14,414 10,046 4,368 435
Total sales of gas fuel MREIEES 17,486 12,477 5,009 40.1
Sales of LPG (tons) BILABARIEES
(1) 49,626 46,003 3,623 7.9

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010



OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)

Notes:

1. A new piped gas fuel project, the Longyan City Changning Gas Co.
Ltd., project was added as compared to the corresponding period
last year. Please refer to the section headed “New Projects During
the Reporting Period” for details.

2. Others referred to Zhongmin Zai Xian (Beijing) Technology
Development Limited, Yan Bian Zhongmin Gas Co. Ltd. and
Shenzhen Yongheng Lecai Technology Development Company
Limited.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Provision of piped gas fuel business

Provision of piped gas fuel is the Group’s major source of income.
The Group has been dedicated to supplying piped gas fuel to
urban household and commercial & industrial customers by
constructing urban gas pipeline networks in the PRC.

During the reporting period, the Group further enhanced its
image among its vast customers by strengthening its systematic
management and improving its customer services. In addition,
the Group worked closely with the central and local governments
in the reconstruction following the 5.12 Wenchuan Mega
Earthquake, as well as resumed and expanded the piped gas
fuel business of its subsidiaries in the earthquake stricken areas
by taking advantages of various tax benefits and preferential
loan arrangements introduced by the governments. During the
reporting period, following the completion of construction and
the commencement of operation of Phase | of the Fujian Liquefied
Natural Gas (LNG) Project, together with the commencement of
the supply of LNG from Indonesia, the pressure on LNG supplies
to Fujian Province was significantly relieved. This presented a
great opportunity for the Group to expand the Fujian market by
undergoing massive LNG replacement for its customers.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENRRDN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Provision of piped gas fuel business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group achieved piped
gas fuel sales of 174.86 million cubic meters (“m3") in total,
representing a growth of 40.1% over the corresponding period
last year. Among the total sales, 30.72 million m? of gas fuel were
made to household customers and this represented a growth
of 26.4% over the corresponding period last year; and 144.14
million m3? of gas fuel were made to commercial & industrial
customers, a growth of 43.5% over the corresponding period last
year. A comparison of the Group's sales of piped gas fuel between
2008 and 2010 is shown in Graph 1.

KBOE (&)
HEEERRER (H)

HE2010F3A31ALFE - AEBATRE
EMRREE 2174868 K (Im3]) &£
FRIEEMNA0 1% - EF - mERBAFHEER
R3,0728m3 REAFRHAIENN26.4% : ML
XAPHEEMRT14,4148m? - REF E HRE N
43.5% © L1 #2008-2010F E A EBEE B A
HEEAN2EBEK—-

Graph 1: Comparison of sales of piped gas fuel for the latest 3 years
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Provision of piped gas fuel business (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group had an addition
of 77,443 household customers and 248 commercial & industrial
customers, up 186.7% and 16.4% respectively as compared to
the corresponding period last year. As at the end of the reporting
period, the Group had an accumulated number of connected
household customers of 283,310 and commercial & industrial
customers of 2,477, representing an increase of 37.6% and
11.1% respectively as compared to last year. A comparison of
the accumulated number of connected customers of the Group
between 2008 and 2010 is shown in Graph 2.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Graph 2: Comparison of accumulated number of connected customers for the latest 3 years
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During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$450,950,000 from the provision
of piped gas fuel, representing an increase of 44.5% over the
corresponding period last year. Turnover from the provision of
piped gas fuel accounted for 63.9% of the turnover of the Group
for the year. The dramatic increase in turnover was due to the
simultaneous increase in both connection fee and gas fuel sales
income. During the reporting period, Fujian Province commenced
to receive Indonesian LNG. The Indonesian LNG relieved the
local gas fuel resources shortage. The competitive price of the
Indonesian LNG stimulated the demand for such clean energy,
resulting in a boost to the number of connected customers and
thus the turnover. The subsidiaries of the Group, which were
previously affected by the 5.12 Wenchuan Mega Earthquake,
had shown continuous improvements after the restoration of
gas supply and the local reconstruction works were in smooth
progress.

HZE2010F3831HIEFE AEBHEESE
BRRZE TS E IR WA 478 #450,950,0007T * 8
EFEREIERL44.5%  HEEBRRBLAEAR
EB S FLEING63.9% o S BN EIE N
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HEk-BRARFNNEERIERARRME
B RERMNE R BRER B P HEEE
e eI e 2R REB IS 1230IEF X
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEARRDN

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Transportation, distribution and retail of bottled
liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") business

The Group's business of transportation, distribution and retail
of bottled LPG commenced in 2007. After three years of
development, the business has become one of the Group's
principal businesses and maintained its growth momentum. In
2009, the Group employed various marketing approaches to
expand its LPG business in various regions and increase its market
shares. It also strengthened the centralized management of the
retail network and enhanced its brand image, thereby promoting
the rapid growth of the Group’s LPG business.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, sales of LPG by the Group
reached 49,626 tons in total, representing a growth of 7.9%
over the corresponding period last year, and the Group realized
an income from sales of LPG of approximately HK$255,300,000,
representing a decrease of 4.5% over the corresponding period
last year. Income from the transportation, distribution and retail of
bottled LPG accounted for approximately 36.1% of the turnover.
The increase in sale volume of LPG was due to (1) the decrease in
LPG selling price and thus the growth in demand; (2) the organic
growth of the existing LPG markets; and (3) the expansion into
new markets such as Zhijiang county, Hunan Province. During the
reporting period, the LPG selling price showed violent fluctuations,
hence the increase in sales volume was completely offset by the
effect of the changes in LPG selling price, resulting in an overall
decrease in turnover. A comparison of the Group's sales of LPG
between 2008 and 2010 is shown in Graph 3.

Graph 3: Comparison of sales of LPG for the latest 3 years
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Lottery agency and equipment supply business

In December 2008, Beijing Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Zhongmin”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and
Yongheng Development Group (Shenzhen) Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Yongheng”) jointly invested to set up an associate,
Shenzhen Yongheng Lecai Technology Development Company
Limited (“Yongheng Lecai”), in Shenzhen, the PRC. The
registered capital of Yongheng Lecai is RMB75,000,000, of which
RMB30,000,000 was contributed by Beijing Zhongmin, which held
40% equity interest in Yongheng Lecai.

On 25 March 2010, the registered capital of Yongheng Lecai
was further increased from RMB75,000,000 to RMB125,000,000
according to the amended constitution documents of
Yongheng Lecai. On 2 April 2010, contributions have been
made on a pro-rata basis as to RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,176,000) by Shenzhen Yongheng and as to
RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$22,784,000) by
Beijing Zhongmin.

Yongheng Lecai is engaged in the development of software with
intelligent electronic engineering technology, the operation of
real estate development on lands with legitimate land use right,
industrial investment and operation (specific projects to be applied
separately) and the research, development and manufacturing
of video lottery machines (license for manufacturing site to be
applied). On 8 December 2009, Yongheng Lecai entered into a
letter of intent with Shenzhen Welfare Lottery Issuing Centre
CRUTRBAFEZZ TP 0. Pursuant to the letter of intent,
Yongheng Lecai will act as an agent to sell the computer welfare
lottery Kuai2 (FR2) Game in Shenzhen. The application was
pending approval and the lottery business of the Group has yet to
commence operation as at the date of this report.

On 11 May 2009, the Company entered into a loan agreement
with Yongheng Development Corporation Limited (“Yongheng
Development”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
provide a loan in an amount of HK$41,000,000 to Yongheng
Development. The loan was used to pay up the registered capital
of Yongheng Lecai. Yongheng Development holds 100% equity
interest in Shenzhen Yongheng, which in turn holds 60% interest
in Yongheng Lecai.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Lottery agency and equipment supply business
(Continued)

On 11 May 2010, the Company entered into a loan extension
agreement with Yongheng Development, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to extend the repayment date of the
total outstanding loan amounted to HK$43,050,000, being (i)
the principal amount of the loan of HK$41,000,000 and (ii)
HK$2,050,000, being the interest accrued from 12 May 2009 to
11 May 2010 at an interest rate of 5% per annum, to 11 May
2011.

The turnover proportion for the two principal businesses of the
Group, provision of piped gas fuel and transportation, distribution
and retail of bottled LPG, is shown in graph 4.

Graph 4: Income Mix of the Group
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NEW PROJECTS DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Acquisition of 75% equity interest in Longyan
Changning

In September 2009, Longyan An Ran Gas Co., Ltd (“Longyan
An Ran”), a jointly controlled entity of the Group, entered into
two respective equity transfer agreements with two independent
third parties, pursuant to which Longyan An Ran acquired 75%
equity interest in Longyan City Changning Gas Co., Ltd (“Longyan
Changning”) at an aggregate consideration of RMB28,500,000
(approximately HK$32,467,000). Longyan Changning is an
enterprise engaging in urban gas fuel business in Longyan
City, Fujian Province, the PRC, with a registered capital of
RMB10,000,000. Its scopes of operation are to coordinate the
construction and operation of gas fuel pipeline networks in the
south-western area of the city center of Longyan and the planning
zone of San Hua City Garden (ZZE M IEE]), to store and sell
liquefied gas, and to sell auxiliary gas equipments. Such scopes
of operation involving operations that require license are subject
to the approval from the relevant authorities. The acquisition of
Longyan Changning will further enhance and consolidate the
Group's local market share, thereby promoting the development
of the Group's piped gas fuel business.

Acquisition of pipeline assets in the Longchi Economic
Development Zone in Jiaomei County, Longhai City

On 31 October 2009, Zhangzhou An Ran Gas Co., Ltd.
(“Zhangzhou An Ran”), a jointly controlled entity of the Group,
entered into an asset acquisition agreement with an independent
third party, pursuant to which Zhangzhou An Ran agreed to
acquire certain pipeline assets located in the Longchi Economic
Development Zone in Jiaomei County, Longhai City, Fujian
Province at a consideration of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,974,000).
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BUSINESS DISPOSED DURING THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Disposal of 49% equity interest in Fujian An Ran

On 26 April 2009, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with China Gas Holdings Limited (“China Gas”, stock
code: 00384), pursuant to which the Company transferred 100%
equity interest in Brilliant China Investments Limited (“Brilliant
China"), a wholly-owned subsidiary, at a cash consideration of
approximately HK$320 million. Brilliant China, through Beijing
Zhongmin Zhongran Trading Company Limited, its wholly-owned
subsidiary, beneficially owns 45.45% equity interest in Fujian
Province An Ran Gas Investment Company Limited (“Fujian
An Ran”). Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, the
purchaser shall inject RMB80 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$91.1 million) to Fujian An Ran upon completion of the sale
and purchase agreement. On the same day, Beijing Zhongmin
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Zhongran Gas
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Gas, in respect of the transfer of 3.55% equity interest
held by it in Fujian An Ran at a cash consideration of RMB40
million (equivalent to approximately HK$45.6 million). Upon the
completion of the sale and purchase agreement and the equity
transfer agreement, according to the memorandum of association
of Fujian An Ran, the Group holds 51% of the equity interest
of Fujian An Ran and 4 out of 7 directors of Fujian An Ran are
appointed by the Group. Furthermore, 4 out of 7 shareholders’
representatives of Fujian An Ran are appointed by the Group.
Hence the Group controls approximately 57% of the voting power
in the board of directors meeting and shareholders meeting. As all
the major decisions made in the board of directors meeting and
shareholders meeting of Fujian An Ran require at least 2/3 votes
from all of the directors and shareholders’ representatives, Fujian
An Ran is accounted for as a jointly controlled entity. The Group
continues to benefit from the profits contribution by the Fujian An
Ran Group.

The Group recorded a gain from disposal of approximately
HK$257.2 million. Part of the proceeds has been used for the
repayment of the convertible notes due in June 2009 and for the
further investment in Yongheng Lecai, while the balance will be
used as general working capital of the Group and for suitable
investments in the future. For the details of such disposal, please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 18 May 2009.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Gross profit and segment results

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group realised a gross
profit from operating activities of approximately HK$210,330,000
(2009: HK$132,540,000), representing an increase of 58.7% as
compared with last year. The Group's overall gross profit margin
was 29.8%, representing an increase of 6.9% as compared with
last year. In terms of segment results, total profits surged to
approximately HK$119,560,000 (or increased by 186.3%). Those
increases were mainly attributable to the following reasons:

Provision of piped gas fuel business

Gross profit margin of the provision of piped gas fuel business
was 38.2%, representing an increase of 9.1% when compared
with the corresponding period last year. As a result of the increase
in the number of connected customers and the completion of
construction and the commencement of operation of Phase | of
the Fujian LNG project during the reporting period, the connection
fee income increased. The profit margin of connection fee was
higher than that of sales of piped gas, resulting in a boost to
the gross profit margin and hence the turnover and the segment
results. The gradual recovery of the subsidiaries affected by the
5.12 Wenchuan Mega Earthquake had also contributed profits to
the Group.

Transportation, distribution and retail of bottled LPG
business

Gross profit margin was fairly stable and maintained at around
15-16% in both years. The decrease in segment results was mainly
due to the increase in staff costs and setting up more sales points
in order to increase market shares.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$1,481,764,000, and current liabilities, long-
term liabilities, shareholders’ equity and minority interests
amounted to approximately HK$364,357,000, HK$124,760,000,
HK$928,606,000 and HK$64,041,000 respectively.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents,
including pledged deposits, amounted to approximately
HK$324,267,000 (2009: approximately HK$176,952,000),
and the total borrowings were equivalent to approximately
HK$208,946,000 (2009: approximately HK$320,161,000).
The debt-to-capitalisation ratio, representing the ratio of total
borrowings to borrowings and owners’ equity, was 18.3% (2009:
33.6%).
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
(Continued)

On 30 May 2006, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with Indopark
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Merrill
Lynch & Co., Inc., in respect of the issue of US$40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$310,000,000) 2% convertible
notes due in 2009. Pursuant to the terms of the Subscription
Agreement, the convertible notes can be converted into
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.60 per share (subject to
adjustment) (the conversion price was reduced to HK$0.50 in
July 2008). Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased
and cancelled, the convertible notes shall be redeemed by
the Company at 106% of the principal amount on the third
anniversary of the issue date. The interest of the convertible notes
will be paid from the issue date at the rate of 2% per annum
of the principal amount of the notes. On 15 June 2009, the
Company redeemed the convertibles notes with an outstanding
principal amount of US$20,000,000 at 106% (approximately
HK$164,492,000 in aggregate) pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement. All the convertible notes redeemed were cancelled
immediately and Indopark no longer held any convertible notes
issued by the Company. Details of convertible notes is set out in
note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWING STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2010, the total borrowings of the Group
were approximately HK$208,946,000 (2009: approximately
HK$320,161,000), which mainly comprised domestic bank
borrowings denominated in Renminbi of the project companies
in the PRC. The borrowings, which carried interest at fixed rates
or the interest rate announced by People’s Bank of China, were
applied to gas pipeline construction, as general working capital
and for operating expenses. Apart from the borrowings with an
amount equivalent to approximately HK$115,579,000 which were
secured by certain assets with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$55,563,000, others were unsecured. Short-term borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$98,539,000, while others were
long-term borrowings due after 1 year. Details of the capital
commitments and pledge of assets are set out in notes 41 and 42
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s long-term capital comprised shareholders’ equity
and borrowings, which was confirmed by the sound debt-to-
capitalization ratio stated in the section headed “Liquidity and
capital resources” above.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

All of the Group's operations are carried out in the PRC and
substantially all of its incomes and expenses are denominated in
RMB. During the year ended 31 March 2010, the exchange rate of
RMB had no material fluctuation. The Group will closely monitor
the market exchange rates and make appropriate adjustment
when necessary.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group's capital commitments amounted
to approximately HK$27,910,000, mainly attributable to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and investment in
an associate. Please refer to note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements for further details.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had approximately 1,300
employees, most of them were stationed in the PRC. The
remuneration policy and packages of the Group’s employees are
reviewed and approved by the Board upon consultations with the
remuneration committee. In addition to pension funds, individual
employees may be granted discretionary bonus and share options
as rewards for their outstanding performance.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REPURCHASE OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the reporting period, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or repurchased any of the
Company's listed securities.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Capital injection to Yongheng Lecai

On 2 April 2010, Beijing Zhongmin injected a further
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$22,784,000) to the capital
of Yongheng Lecai on a pro-rata basis, and owned 40% interest.
After such injection, the paid up capital of Yongheng Lecai
increased to RMB125,000,000 (approximately HK$142,000,000).
The proceeds will be applied to invest in the establishment and
development of the research and production bases of lottery
software and technology for Asia in Shenzhen, as well as the
business in relation to the agency and distribution of national
welfare lotteries.

Disposal of shares in ZMAY Holdings Limited (“ZMAY")

In April 2010, the Group disposed of its 150,000,000 shares in
ZMAY at an aggregate cash consideration of approximately HK$30
million to streamline the Group’s business structure and to capture
the opportunity to realize its investment. Upon the completion of
the disposal, the Group no longer holds any shares in ZMAY and
the proceeds from the disposal will be applied to other high value-
added projects.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)
Extension of the Loan to Yongheng Development

On 11 May 2010, at the request of Yongheng Development, the
Company (as lender) entered into a loan extension agreement
with Yongheng Development, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to extend the repayment date of the total outstanding
loan amount to 11 May 2011. During the extended period,
Yongheng Development shall pay an interest calculated on the
total outstanding loan amount at the rate of 5% per annum.

PROSPECTS
Piped gas fuel business

In the past few years, despite the booming consumption
of natural gas in the PRC, its share of the primary energy
consumption was far below the global average at 3.4% in 2009,
while the global average already reached 23.7% in 2004. In
terms of natural gas, the per capita consumption in the PRC is
way below that in developed countries, and even lower than
many developing countries. Thus, the natural gas industry in
the PRC represents great potential for development. In view of
the relatively low level of urbanization in the PRC, it is believed
that the process will speed up in the coming decades, resulting
in the surge of urban population and hence the rapid growth
in natural gas consumption in the PRC. As at the end of 2009,
the PRC Government announced the target of reducing carbon
dioxide emissions by 40%-45% in 2020 as compared with 2005
on a “per unit of GDP emission” basis. This reflected the PRC
Government’'s commitment to develop a “low carbon” economy.
Being a clean, efficient and environmental-friendly energy, natural
gas will weight heavier in energy consumption. In light of this, the
Group will procure the development of its piped fuel gas business
by capturing the opportunities arising from the development of
natural gas industry in the PRC.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)
LPG business

Given that LPG is one of the major energy resources in Yunnan,
Guizhou and the south-western regions of Hunan Province in
the PRC, it is expected that the LPG market will continue to
be promising in the near future. However, after three years of
operations, the Group has noted that the price of LPG is subject
to violent fluctuation. To cope with the situation, the Group made
great efforts to enhance its capability of LPG transportation by
setting up a storage mechanism to mitigate the risk of changing
price. In the meantime, the Group will further improve its sales
and services in the LPG retail market by introducing a new sales
and marketing model, actively expanding its sales network
and upgrading its service quality to increase its market share
and consolidate its brand influence. The Group will also fully
utilize its well-established business operation model integrating
transportation, distribution and retail for maximizing the earnings
of the whole sales process as well as the profitability of the LPG
business.

Lottery agency and equipment supply business

In 2009, total sales of lottery in the PRC recorded a 25% year-
on-year increase to RMB132.479 billion; in the first quarter of
2010, the total sales reached RMB34.621 billion, representing
an increase of RMB6.818 billion or 24.5% as compared with the
corresponding period last year. The lottery market of the PRC
continues to flourish in recent years. The new lottery game named
“Kuai2 (£2)”, which is currently available in Hainan Province,
the PRC, has been well received by lottery lovers as the game
features a high win rate and quick updates on lottery results. In
three months’ time since its launch in October 2009, “Kuai2”
ranked first in term of sales among all lottery games in Hainan
Province. The launch of “Kuai2” and video lottery not only caters
for the mass lottery lovers, but also facilitates the rapid and
healthy development of the lottery industry. The official launch
of Yongheng Lecai’s lottery business upon approval will bring
remarkable returns on investment and abundant cash flow for the
Group.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

Looking forward, the Group will adopt different strategies to
further the development of the piped gas fuel and LPG businesses
and to enhance its influence in the regions and sectors where
the Group operates, with the aim of strengthening its ability to
respond to the ever-changing market and its competitive edge.
Meanwhile, the Group will strive to diversify its businesses by
urging the government to approve the operation of its lottery
business in order to maximize the returns on investment for our
shareholders and investors.

Mr. Jin Song
Managing Director and Executive Director

Beijing, 23 July 2010

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Biography of Directors = 2 & F

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Ruixin, aged 69, is the honourable chairman of our board
of directors (“Board”) and an executive director, he joined our
Company since 11 April 2005. Mr. Xu is currently the chairman
of the China Association of Social Workers. Mr. Xu was a vice
minister and committee member of the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of China. Mr. Xu is not appointed for a specific term with our
Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.

Dr. Mo Shikang, aged 52, is the chairman of our Board and
an executive director, Dr. Mo joined our Company since 30
April 2004. Dr. Mo is currently a member of our Remuneration
Committee, the chairman of the board of Beijing Zhongmin Gas
Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and acts as
director posts in certain principal subsidiaries of the Company. Dr.
Mo holds a Bachelor degree in Sciences from Tianjin Education
University, a Master degree in Economics from Tianjin University
of Finance & Economics and a Doctor degree in Economic from
Nankai University in China. Dr. Mo has substantial experiences
in the development and management of natural gas projects in
the PRC. Dr. Mo is not appointed for a specific term with our
Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.

Mr. Zhang Hesheng, aged 56, is a deputy chairman of our Board
and an executive director, he joined our Company since 21 March
2005. Mr. Zhang is currently the chairman of our Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Zhang holds a MBA degree from the La Trobe
University in Australia. In late 1980s, Mr. Zhang joined the initial
financial securities industry in the PRC, he has been engaged in
provision of securities company businesses relating to securities
and financial investment; securities brokerages; investment
banking; financial research and analysis for Wanguo Holdings
Limited, Guotai Securities Company Limited and Guotai Junan
Securities Company Limited and acted as senior operation officer.
Mr. Zhang has extensive experiences in financial and capital
markets. Mr. Zhang is not appointed for a specific term with our
Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Zhu Peifeng, aged 53, is a deputy chairman of our Board
and an executive director, he joined our Company since 21
March 2005. Mr. Zhu holds a Bachelor degree in Sciences from
Shanghai Maritime University and a Master degree in Economic
from Shanghai Tongji University in the PRC. Mr. Zhu joined the
financial securities industry in 1992 with over 11 year experiences
in relevant industries, during which he worked for Bank of
Communication and Guotai’s group and acted as a branch general
manager of Shenzhen Guotai Securities Company Limited; as a
general manager (under the head offices of International Business
and Institutional Customer Services) of Guotai Junan Securities
Company Limited; as an executive director of Guotai Junan
Financial Holdings Company Limited; as a director of Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited and Guotai Junan Assets
Management (Asia) Limited and as the chairman of Harvest China
Equities Investment Company Limited. He has extensive practical
experiences in the capital markets of the PRC and Hong Kong.
Mr. Zhu is not appointed for a specific term with our Company
but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with the
provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.

Mr. Jin Song, aged 39, is our managing director and an executive
director, he joined our Company since 11 April 2005. Mr. Jin is
currently a director and president of Beijing Zhongmin Gas Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and he also acts
as director posts in certain principal subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Jin is responsible for the investment, merger and acquisition
businesses. Mr. Jin holds a MBA degree from Oklahoma City
University in United States. Mr. Jin has substantial experiences
in investment banking as well as merger and acquisition of gas
enterprises in the PRC. He was engaged in marketing and project
management by Shenzhen Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd., and
worked for years in investment banking business with Guangzhou
Security Company Limited and Huatai Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Jin is
not appointed for a specific term with our Company but is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.
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Biography of Directors
ESCEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus, aged 46, is appointed as our
executive director of Company since 1 December 2008. Mr.
Chu was graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Master's degree in Business Administration. Mr. Chu is a fellow
practising member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Company Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Mr. Chu has over 21 years of professional
experiences in auditing, accounting and financial management
for both private and listed corporations. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Eyang Holdings (Group)
Co. Limited (stock code: 00117); Flyke International Holdings Ltd
(stock code: 01998); Huayu Expressway Group Ltd. (stock code:
01823); and Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (stock code:
00723), companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu is not
appointed for a specific term with our Company but is subject to
retirement and re-election in accordance with the provision of our
Company'’s Bye-laws.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Liu Junmin, aged 60, is our independent non-executive
director, Dr. Liu joined our Company since 11 April 2005. Dr. Liu
is currently a member of our Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Dr. Liu holds a Bachelor degree, a Master degree and
a PhD degree in Economics from Nankai University in China, in
which Dr. Liu is a professor of the School of Economics and an
officer of the Virtual Economics & Management Research Center.
Dr. Liu was appointed as independent director of China-Baoding
Tianwei Yingli New Energy Resources Co., Limited from June
2008. After completion of the service term, Dr. Liu was resigned
as an independent director of Tianjin Faw Xiali Automobile
Co. (stock code: 000927), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange in June 2008. Dr. Liu has awarded “Sun Yefang
Economics Prize” ([R5 4€ B2 52 ) . Dr. Liu has entered into a
service contract with our Company for three years but is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Tan Qinglian, aged 72, is our independent non-executive
director, he joined our Company since 11 April 2005. He is
currently a member of our Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is the member of the 10th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
President of China Civil Engineering Society. He was the vice
minister of the Ministry of Construction of China. Mr. Tan has
entered into a service contract with our Company for three
years but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the provision of our Company’s Bye-laws.

Mr. Sin Ka Man, aged 43, is our independent non-executive
director, Mr. Sin joined our Company since 23 December 2006 and
he is also the chairman and a member of our Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee, respectively. Mr. Sin has over 18
years of professional experiences in auditing, accounting and
financial management for both private and listed corporations.
Mr. Sin is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified practicing
accountant of the CPA in Australia. Mr. Sin is currently an vice-
president of Huayu Expressway Group Limited (stock code:
01823) and is responsible for the accounting and financial
management. Mr. Sin holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
from the University of Hong Kong, a Master degree in Finance
from the University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom and a
Master degree in accounting from Curtin University of Technology
in Australia. Mr. Sin is an independent non-executive director
of LeRoi Holdings Limited (stock code: 00221); China Motion
Telecom International Limited (stock code: 00989); and Xtep
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 01368) (companies are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Sino Haijing
Holdings Limited (stock code: 08065) (a company listed on Growth
Enterprise Market). Mr. Sin has entered into a service contract
with our Company for three years but is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the provision of our
Company'’s Bye-laws.
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Report of the Directors EE & #{ &

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to
present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in the sale and distribution of natural
gas and Liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") (collectively referred
to as “gas fuel”) in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC")
including the sales of LPG in bulk and cylinders, the provision of
piped gas fuel, construction of gas pipelines, the operation of city
gas pipeline network, the sale of LPG and natural gas household
appliances and lottery agency and equipment supply. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010 are set out in
note 47 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of this annual
report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in page 60 and note 46
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2010, the Company did not have any distributable
reserves.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 5.9% and 17.4% of the
Group's total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the aggregate purchase
attributable to the Group's largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 21.4% and 64.9% of the
Group's total purchase for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any
of the said top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the
year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Ruixin (Honourable Chairman)
Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Peifeng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. Liu Junmin

Mr. Tan Qinglian
Mr. Sin Ka Man
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Report of the Directors
BEEZERE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 24 to
page 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT AND
ROTATION

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a term of 3 years but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with Bye-Laws 99 of the Company, Messrs. Xu
Ruixin, Zhang Hesheng and Zhu Peifeng will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting but, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENT

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 12(a) to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive directors of their independence
pursuant to the rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considered all independent
non-executive directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, BEENRGD ARG RESES 2
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES s

As at 31 March 2010, the interests of the Directors in the shares, R2010F3 318 IBIEFES LI E G352
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its BARRIBTHFE 2SR MATRE s iRE L
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the METAEFETESFRRH2ZETR ([1RE
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (the “Associated AN BRERARIREBHERZMERA
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept A ([BE2FT)) - BEES R A QR SEEMAE
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise  BHEE (FERBEHERHEEHEXVER) (148
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong BORE ) 2 Bfn - ARG RESFF 2 =i
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for N

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model

Code”) were as follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

AXRABRGBPZER
Percentage
of aggregate
Number of interests to
underlying total number
s e o
RHEE
Ll derivatives BRAE
Personal Family Corporate BRASTETR HERTRS
interests interests interests BTRHEZ Total #EEAL*
Name of Director EEEE BA#ER REER AEER HERAHE g %
Dr. Mo Shikang BtEEL - - 1,000,798,538" 1,410,000  1,002,208,538 24.55
Mr. Zhang Hesheng RMELE 3,710,000 - - 10,000,0002 13,710,000 0.34
Mr. Zhu Peifeng RIBRLAE 2,600,000 - - 10,000,000 12,600,000 0.31
Mr. Jin Song WML AE - - - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.24
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus K2R L& - - - 8,000,000 8,000,000 0.20
Dr. Liu Junmin AHREL - - - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.09
Mr. Sin Ka Man EREEE - - - 3,600,000 3,600,000 0.09
PREZERERAR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
(Continued)

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Dr. Mo Shikang (“Dr. Mo"”) through
Asian Allied Limited (“Asian Allied”), which holds 1,000,798,538
shares of the Company registered under the name of Super Win
Development Limited (“Super Win"), its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Dr. Mo has 42.75% interest in Asian Allied, he is therefore deemed
to be interested in 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company.

2. This represents interests in share option held by the relevant
Directors as beneficial owner to subscribe for the relevant underlying
shares granted by the Company under the 2006 Share Option
Scheme, details of which is set out in the section headed “Share
Option” under Directors’ Report in this annual report.

3. This represents interests held by the relevant Directors as beneficial
owner.
* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number

of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2010 (i.e.
4,082,224,554 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2010, the number of outstanding option shares
granted by the Company under the 2006 Share Option Scheme
(defined under section headed “Share Option” below) for the
Directors to subscribe the shares of the Company, as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code is set out in the section headed
“Share Option” under Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Apart from the aforesaid, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2010, the interests of those persons (other than
the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Dr. Mo through Asian Allied, which
holds 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company registered under the
name of Super Win, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asian Allied. Dr.
Mo has 42.75% interest in Asian Allied, he is therefore deemed to
be interested in 1,000,798,538 shares of the Company.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 March 2010 (i.e.
4,082,224,554 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, the Company had
not been notified of any interests and short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which had been recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interests with the Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
as at the date of this annual report and within the knowledge
of the Directors, there was sufficiency of public float of the
Company’s securities as required under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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SHARE OPTION

On 3 October 2006, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2006 Share
Option Scheme”). On 27 September 2007, the shareholders of the
Company approved the resolution for refreshment of 10% limit
on the grant of options under the 2006 Share Option Scheme. On
28 August 2008, the shareholders of the Company approved the
resolution for the amendments to the terms of the 2006 Share
Option Scheme, details of which may refer to the circular of the
Company dated 31 July 2008.

As at 31 March 2010 and up to the date of this annual report,
362,452,000 and 331,052,000 option shares were outstanding
under the 2006 Share Option Scheme respectively.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the 2006
Share Option Scheme:
Purpose Provide incentives to the eligible persons to
contribute to the Group, to enable the Group
to recruit and retain quality employees to serve
the Group on a long-term basis and to attract
human resources that are valuable to the
Group.

Participants Eligible person include any executive,
employee (whether full-time or part-time),
Director (including non-executive director
and independent non-executive director),
consultant, adviser, partner, joint-venture
partner, service provider, customer and/or
agent of the Company or any of its subsidiary
or any person, who in the absolute discretion
of the Board, has contributed or may
contribute to the Group at the time when an
option is granted to such person (Note).
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

Price of Shares

Total number of
shares available
for issue and

the percentage of
the issued share
capital that it
represents as

at the date of
this annual report

Determined by the Board and shall at least be
the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of the share of the
Company;

(b)  the closing price of the share of
the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer, which must be a trading
day; and

() the average closing price of the share
of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for
the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

269,007,405 shares, being approximately
6.59% of the issued share capital of the
Company.
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

Maximum
entitlement of
each participant

Period within which
the securities

must be taken up
under the option

Minimum period
for which

an option must
be held before

it can be exercised

Amount payable
on acceptance

Period within which
calls/loans must
be made/repaid

Remaining life of
the scheme

Not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue in any 12-month period.

Subject to the discretion by the Board (Note).

Not applicable (Note).

No amount is payable on acceptance of an
offer.

Not applicable.

The scheme will be valid and effective until 5
October 2016, after which no further options
will be granted, but in all other respects the
provisions of this scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in respect of any option
granted prior to the termination of this scheme
and any such option shall continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of
issue.

Note: This term has been revised in the 2008 annual general meeting.
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EEZgRE

SHARE OPTION (Continued) BRE (&)

Movements of the option shares, which were granted under the BRI ETARBIZE17.071 REZE2010F3 831
2006 Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 March HIEFERIBE20065F I8 i 813 H 2 B Ak i
2010 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the Listing ZEBFEENT

Rules:
During the year
R
Granted/
(exercised) Lapsed*/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As at B/ cancelled As at B price’ period?
£5l BIHAE  01.04.2009 (f7f8) %%*/##  31.03.2010 fTEE 1765
HK$
BT
Directors
Bz
Dr. Mo 02.04.2007 750,000 - - 750,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
Rt 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 660,000 - - 660,000 0.514  01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
1,410,000
Mr. Zhang Hesheng 02.04.2007 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
RAMAEFKE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514  01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000
Mr. Zhu Peifeng 02.04.2007 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
KERKE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000
Mr. Jin Song 02.04.2007 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
LISt 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
10,000,000

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)
BRE(E)
During the year
R
Granted/
(exercised) Lapsed*/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As at B4,/ cancelled As at & price’ period’
Bal BHEH  01.04.2009 (f78) &%*/F8#  31.03.2010 TEE TR’
HK$
BT
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus 02.04.2007 6,000,000 - - | 6,000,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
REREE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
8,000,000
Dr. Liu Junmin 02.04.2007 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
BEREL 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 900,000 - - 900,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
3,600,000
Mr. Sin Ka Man 02.04.2007 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
EREEE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 900,000 - - 900,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
3,600,000
Subtotal 46,610,000 - - 46,610,000
It
RRERARAR
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

BRE (E)
During the year
FR
Granted/
(exercised) Lapsed*/ Exercise Exercise
Category Date of grant As at B/ cancelled As at R price’ period’
Al BHEH  01.04.2009 (f78) &%*/F8#  31.03.2010 TEE TREH
HK$
BT
Continuous Contracts Employee 02.04.2007 83,980,000 - (3,160,000)* 80,820,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
HESNHESR 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 36,230,000 - (1,040,000)* 35,190,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
02.11.2007 1,250,000 - (150,000)* 1,100,000 0.632 10.05.2008-
01.05.2011
04.01.2008 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 0.382  17.07.2008-
03.07.2011
Subtotal 141,460,000 - (4,350,000) 137,110,000
NE
Consultants 11.10.2006 46,000,000 - - 46,000,000 0.385 11.04.2007-
R 10.04.2010
02.04.2007 59,382,000 - - 59,382,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
01.10.2010
15.10.2007 18,750,000 - - 18,750,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal 124,132,000 - - 124,132,000
Nt
Agents 02.04.2007 26,540,000 - - 26,540,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
RE 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 9,760,000 - - 9,760,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal 36,300,000 - - 36,300,000
Nat
Advisors 02.04.2007 13,610,000 - - 13,610,000 0.530 18.10.2007-
E TN 01.10.2010
15.10.2007 4,690,000 - - 4,690,000 0.514 01.05.2008-
14.04.2011
Subtotal 18,300,000 - - 18,300,000

it

Total 366,802,000

&t

(4,350,000) 362,452,000
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SHARE OPTION (Continued)

Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

2. The vesting period is six months from the date of acceptance of the
offer,

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Company and its subsidiaries are
primary in form of contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory
Provident Funds and the PRC statutory public welfare fund
respectively.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to the requirements of the Listing
Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions are set out in note 39 to
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole and any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.
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CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board adopted the Model Code, which has been revised and
adopted by the Board pursuant to the recent amendments to the
Listing Rule. All Directors have confirmed their compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 March 2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period as
set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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AUDITOR

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (the "SHINEWING") will retire
and, being eligible offer, offer themselves for re-appointment in
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for the re-appointment of SHINEWING as auditor of the Company
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Jin Song
Managing and Executive Director

Beijing, 23 July 2010
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Corporate Governance Report & ¥ &8 &

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has committed to perform a high standard of
corporate governance practices in enhancing the confidence of
shareholders, investors, employees, creditors and business partners
and also the growth of its business. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles and the code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the "Listing Rules”). As far as the CG Code is concerned, during
the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
complies with all aspect of the Code Provisions.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) acknowledge their
responsibility for preparation and the true and fair presentation
of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

(a) Directors’ securities transactions

Adoption of Model Code
The board of directors (the “Board”) has adopted the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors.

Confirmation on Compliance

Specific respectively enquiry has been made to all the
Directors regarding any non-compliance with the Model
Code during the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to the
date of this annual report, they all confirmed that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year and up to the date of this
annual report.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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(a)

(b)

Directors’ securities transactions (Continued)

Written Guideline for Relevant Employees

In addition, the Company has also adopted provisions of the
Model Code as written guidelines for relevant employees in
respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company.
Such relevant employees shall abide by the provisions of the
Model Code.

Amendments to the Model Code

In consideration of the new amendments to the Model
Code (the “"Amendments”), which became effective on
the 1st quarter of 2009, the Board revised its Model Code
corresponding to the Amendments in the 1st quarter of
2009.

The Board

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the
businesses of the Company and to the exercising of
independent. None of the members of the Board is related to
one another.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Xu Ruixin (Honourable Chairman)
Dr. Mo Shikang (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Hesheng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhu Peifeng (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Jin Song (Managing Director)

Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Tan Qinglian

Dr. Liu Junmin

Mr. Sin Ka Man

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on page
24 to page 27 of this annual report.

(a)

(b)
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ERERRE

(b) The Board (Continued)

Number of Meetings Held and Attendance

The Board normally has four (4) scheduled meetings a year
and meets at other times as and when required to review
financial, internal control, risk management, company
strategy and operating performance of the Group. During
the year ended 31 March 2010, a total number of five (5)
regular Board meetings, two (2) Audit Committee meetings
and one (1) Remuneration Committee meetings were
held. Minutes of these meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary of the Company and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

The individual attendance records of each Director, on a
named basis, at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
March 2010 are set out below:

(b)

ExE (&)

SEXREREER
EFeOF—MEHEBTHG)REFE I
TERERBTERUENAREE 2
HoNEER RARER - ARRERE
BRI -HE201083A31BEFEARA
ARal A BHAGCAREHESTTEH
MQRBEZZEEEER—(MAHFNE
BEER -ARAZANMEEBTERTZ
LoFRBU A AFABREEERM-

REE2010F3831HILFE SEEHH
FLFEEEe ERZEQRFMEE
eeF sk (EKEHR DY) &L W
T

Attendance/Number of
meetings entitled to attend

HEZE BREESEZHAE
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
Name of Directors EENS EE® EREEE FMEES
Executive Directors HBITESE
Mr. Xu Ruixin RIS 5/5 - -
Dr. Mo Shikang Rt EEIE L 5/5 - 1/1
Mr. Zhang Hesheng ok A %5 A 5/5 - 1/1
Mr. Zhu Peifeng KIEBR A 5/5 - -
Mr. Jin Song TR 5/5 - -
Mr. Chu Kin Wang Peleus EN e 5/5 - -
Independent Non-executive B HHITES
Directors
Mr. Tan Qinglian BEELA 5/5 2/2 1/1
Dr. Liu Junmin B RIEL 5/5 2/2 1/1
Mr. Sin Ka Man EREEE 5/5 2/2 1/1

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010



Corporate Governance Report

ERERBE

(b) The Board (Continued) (b) EE=E (#E)

Responsible of the Board E=gvEfR

The Company has a division of functions reserved to the ARRENDEFTEBERKEEEAES
Board and delegated to the management. The Board REEEEFEHE - EFFREAEACRK
provides leadership and approves strategic polices and EREREE R E B RESRRE
plans with a view to enhance shareholders’ interests while moWEREEEEREANARATEEE-
the day-to-day operations of the Company are delegated EEgRGEFHAKEREEAESR S
to the management. The Board has full support of the TR CUETEBE-

managing Director and the management to discharge its
responsibilities.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the EFEEREBUARAFMEERETERTE
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy EBEHERER—BREE BiE
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and KERVHESE NHEERRBREER
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular FBEARG (FRIZFEES KFmER
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information, IR MBEN EEADRAME
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and ARG BREEEE -

operational matters.

Responsible of the Directors BEECEMR

Each executive Director is delegated individual responsibility ENTESETEINETES REER
to oversee and monitor the operations of the specific TEBBEMN 7 EERETESSHTEZ
business unit and to implement the strategies and polices KEEBE - REZEBEAT BREEM]
set by the Board. Each Director may seek for independent MEEEREER SRKETEEER -
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the BREBAARAIZT

Company’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation AAREFRER THREEZTERES
of the Company are delegated to the managing Director and FRAKERERERIE ARAEFEZR
the management. The delegated functions and work tasks ERTEEEHE TR - FRFEASR
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from RETERERR A VARG EEE
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into FERE

by the above mentioned officers.

Annual Confirmation from Independent Non- BYFBTEEZFERR
Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each independent AABEDREESBIIFHTESR
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his BEMMRBEINZEREBLEELZ
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. FERR EZSRAETBBUIENTE
The Board considers all of the independent non-executive EHRBIALo

Directors are independent.
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ERERRE

(b) The Board (Continued)

(c)

Terms of Non-Executive Directors

Each independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a services contract with the Company for
specific term of 3 years, but subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Role of Chairman

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the managing
Director, who performs similar role as chief executive officer,
to ensure a balance of power and authority. The respective
responsibilities of the Chairman and the managing Director
are clearly defined and set out in writing. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive adequate information and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings. The position of
the Chairman is held by Dr. Mo Shikang.

Role of Chief Executive Officer

The managing Director focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The managing Director is also
responsible for developing strategic plans and formulating
the organizational structure, control systems and internal
procedures and processes for the Board’s approval. The
position of the managing Director is currently held by Mr. Jin
Song.
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(d) Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a remuneration committee (“RC")
with written terms of reference as suggested under the Code
Provision under the Code. The RC comprises the following
five members:

(i) Mr. Zhang Hesheng, chairman of RC
(executive Director)

(i) Dr. Mo Shikang (executive Director)

(iii) ~ Mr. Tan Qinglian (independent non-executive Director)
(iv)  Dr. Liu Junmin (independent non-executive Director)
(v)  Mr. Sin Ka Man (independent non-executive Director)

The RC meets at least once a year to determine the
remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management. During the year ended 31 March 2010, a
total number of one (1) meeting was held to determine
the remuneration policy, bonus and/or share option for the
Directors and/or senior management. The attendance records
of the RC, on a named basis, are set out under section of
“Number of Meetings Held and Attendance” under the
Corporate Governance Report, on page 49, of this annual
report.

The RC has primary responsibility for making
recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and senior management after consultation with the
Chairman/managing Director and accessed to professional
advice, at the Company’s expenses, when necessary. The
major responsibilities of the RC are:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(i) to determine which individual or individuals constitute
senior management;
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ERERRE

(d) Remuneration Committee (Continued)

(e)

(i) to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(iv) to review and approve the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office;

(v)  to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct; and

(vi) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration;

During the year, the Board approved all the
recommendations of the RC. Details of the amount of
Directors’ emoluments during the year ended 31 March
2010 are set out in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee (“AC") with
written terms of reference as suggested under the Code
Provision under the Code. The AC comprises the following
three members, all independent non-executive Directors:

(i)  Mr. Sin Ka Man; chairman of AC
(i) Mr. Tan Qinglian
(iii)  Dr. Liu Junmin

The AC meets at least twice a year to review and approve
the Group's financial reporting process and internal control
system. During the year ended 31 March 2010, a total
number of two (2) meetings were held. The attendance
records of the AC, on a named basis, are set out under
section of “Number of Meetings Held and Attendance”
under the Corporate Governance Report, on page 46, of this
annual report.
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(e) Audit Committee (Continued)

(f)

The AC acknowledged the new amendments to the terms
of reference of the AC under the Listing Rules in relation to,
inter alia, abolishment of the requirement of appointment of
qualified accountant and the amendments to the terms of
reference of the AC and thereafter appropriate actions have
been taken by the Board and the AC accordingly.

The major responsibilities of the AC are:

(i)  to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant, compliance officer (if any) or
external auditor before submission to the Board.

(i)  to review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
the fee and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditor.

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March
2010 have been reviewed by the AC.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the fee paid/payable
to auditor in respect of audit service and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Group were as follows:
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2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

Nature of services R MHE BT T BT T
Audit for the year FEEZ 1,800 1,800

Nomination Committee

The Company does not have Nomination Committee.
The Board as a whole is responsible for the procedure
for agreeing to the appointment of its members and for
nominating appropriate person for election by shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors.
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ERERRE

(9)

(h)

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibilities for the system of
internal controls of the Company and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Board is committed to implementing an
effective and sound internal controls system to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and the assets of the Group.
During the year, the Board, through the AC, has reviewed
the implementation of the system of internal controls and
reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions. A review will be
conducted at least annually on the effectiveness of the
system of internal controls.

Investor Relation

The Company is committed to maintain an open and
effective investor relation policy and to update investors
on relevant information/developments in a timely manner,
subject to relevant regulatory requirements. Briefings
and meetings with institutional investors and analysts are
conducted from time to time. The Company also replied the
enquiries from shareholders timely. The Directors host the
annual general meeting each year to meet the shareholders
and answer their enquiry.

The Company’s website at www.681hk.com contains
important corporate information, biographical details
of Directors, organization structure, annual and interim
reports, major historical developments with comprehensive
and user-friendly information about the Group, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Company in
order to enable the Company’s shareholders and the investor
community to have timely access to updated information
about the Company and the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report % 3 #% 2 &l 3§ &

_:"- = SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
ay& | 4 43/F., The Lee Gardens

Shine‘ZOan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINESE PEOPLE HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese
People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 56 to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY BB RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion above, we draw attention to
the fact that our report dated 10 July 2009 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2009, which form the basis for the comparative amounts
presented in the current year’s financial statements, was
disclaimed in view of the significance of the limitations in the
scope of our audit resulting from insufficiency of supporting
documentation due to the lost of accounting books and records of
certain subsidiaries of the Company as a result of the earthquake
in Sichuan Province of the People’s Republic of China. We
were unable to express an opinion as to whether the opening
net assets of the Group as at 1 April 2008 were fairly stated.
Any adjustments to the opening net assets of the Group as at
1 April 2008 would have consequential impact on the profits
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009. Accordingly,
the comparative amounts of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows and
the related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 may
not be comparable with the amounts for the current year.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
23 July 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Z & £ H W A i X

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £201093A318 It F &

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ff 5 BT T ok
(Restated)
(&%)
Turnover - 7 706,250 579,510
Cost of sales 6 AR (495,920) (446,970)
Gross profit EF 210,330 132,540
Other operating income H A48 & A 9 11,376 4,133
Administrative expenses TR (123,946) (125,295)
Discount on acquisition of additional U & K BB A F15@ 4N
interests in a subsidiary a2 T8 - 216
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz K 38 257,189 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect %% E 5 & H i fE UK
of trade and other receivables HIBRER 2 REEE (20,534) (3,288)
Loss on disposal of an associate e E N AEE - (1,459)
Loss on fair value changes of AR EE A TE
convertible notes 2 EE 33 (2,118) (4,496)
Equity-settled share-based payments DA%z 45 & I fH
RERZ XK - (1,666)
Reversal of impairment loss B Bt E R
recognised in respect of earthquake RE B RE 11 - 65,002
Share of results of associates JE(RE: & N R ¥EE 4,564 5,196
Loss on fair value changes of BAFEFABRZ
financial assets at fair value PRMEEANTE
through profit or loss BH)EE - (7,507)
Finance costs B 745 B AR 13 (6,855) (12,093)
Profit before tax B 753 A i A 330,006 51,283
Income tax expense TS fi XX 14 (20,248) (12,046)
Profit for the year N 5 5 10 309,758 39,237
Other comprehensive income REFEHMEE
(expense) for the year WA (FAX)
Exchange differences arising on MERINEBRES 2
translation of foreign operations e+ =58 2,436 13,434
Exchange reserve realised on disposal & K B A 7] B &£ 18
of subsidiaries b 5 % (14,388) =
Gain (loss) on fair value changes of AtHESHEEATE
available-for-sale financial assets FH)z= (BE) 6,616 (69,014)
Revaluation surplus on property, plant  #1% « [k E M % =
and equipment upon reclassification DERREMEZ
to investment properties BHE - 454
Other comprehensive expense RNEEH A2 E R
for the year (5,336) (55,126)
Total comprehensive income REEZEBA ()
(expense) for the year 4a=8 304,422 (15,889)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income For the year ended 31 March 2010
FAEZEBARR HE201063A31AILFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T P& ¥ F I
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit for the year attributable to: T3 G 2 R EE R F -
Owners of the Company PINNETEF =N 300,614 35,902
Minority interests DHRE R 9,144 3,335
309,758 39,237
Total comprehensive income TAELEZZEEA
(expense) attributable to: (FAX) 4% :
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE =T 295,278 (19,224)
Minority interests D ERHS RME a 9,144 3,335
304,422 (15,889)
HK Cents HK Cents
AL oAl
Earnings per share — basic and diluted &% Z Fl| — F AR & # 55 17 7.36 0.88
FRERERA T

2009-20105F 8



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt & Ak 7 3% &

At 31 March 2010 7201043 A31H

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T 7S ¥ I
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BEREE 18 635,370 765,802
Investment properties BEMHE 19 7,024 11,458
Prepaid lease payments ERNEE 20 29,493 37,682
Goodwill RS 21 93,113 169,065
Intangible assets mEEE 22 101,983 140,271
Interests in associates REEE QN AR 23 63,647 56,342
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESREE 25 38,567 32,291
Deposit paid on acquisition of WEEMZE  BE X
property, plant and equipment FEE MRS 4,891 2,483
974,088 1,215,394
Current assets MENE E
Inventories 7E 26 26,843 34,770
Trade and other receivables 25 K E b e W zkiE 27 91,569 102,445
Other loan to a shareholder of By AR 2 B B R
an associate 28 41,000 -
Amount due from a joint venturer B EBERESEHRIE 29 23,298 =
Prepaid lease payments ERNES 20 699 814
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER 30 8,076 =
Bank balances and cash RITEB KT 30 316,191 176,952
507,676 314,981
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b FET 5K 31 203,283 241,633
Tax liabilities MIEEEA 57,022 58,123
Amounts due to associates JE 1~ Bt 8 X B 5RIE 23 11,389 34,458
Bank borrowings —FRNEHZ
— due within one year |ITEE 32 92,663 145,839
Convertible notes A] 2 [% % 33 - 162,374
364,357 642,427
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE (BR)FE 143,319 (327,446)
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBBE 1,117,407 887,948
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position At 31 March 2010
R BRRIMR H201043A318

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E BT T BT T
Capital and reserves AR AN K {4
Share capital LN 35 285,756 285,756
Reserves R 642,850 347,572
Equity attributable to owners RAEHEE ANEGEZ
of the Company 928,606 633,328
Minority interests D HR R A 2 64,041 68,810
Total equity g 992,647 702,138
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE
Bank borrowings —FRIHBAZRITEER
— due after one year 32 110,407 164,102
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIAERRE 34 14,353 21,708
124,760 185,810
1,117,407 887,948

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 183 were BN ESCRISBE RN RREEEETS
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 2010F7H23 B 4L/ R TIEE - WEHIAT

July 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: RERBRE:
Dr. Mo Shikang Mr. Jin Song
Director Director
EttERLT FMmEE
BFE 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %r & #& 2= % 8 &k

For the year ended 31 March 2010 #Z201063A31H ILF/E

Attributable
Share-based ~ Property  Investment to owners
Share Share Capital ~ Contributed Surplus Capital compensation revaluation  valuation  Exchange Accumulated ofthe  Minority
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve fund  contribution reserve reserve reserve reserve losses ~ Company interests Total
R AER ES RE ARARAA 58

BE  RGEE  EARE  GABR BBORE  IARE CMERE  EfRE  HERE  EXRE  EHEE  REER  RRER G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BT BBTn  A%fn  E¥Tr B%Tn  B%Tn BBt AMfn ¥t BbTn BMTn BBt BEfn EETr
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Hia) (Hitb) (W)

At 1 April 2008 200854418 285,763 615,526 2,182 89,800 9,093 7482 34375 = = 105,522 (498,847) 650,896 66,089 716,985
Profit for the year KEEEF - - - - - - - - - - 35,902 35,902 3335 39,237
Other comprehensive income ~ AFEEt2EMA

(expense) for the year (A%) - - - - - - - 454 (69,014) 13434 - (55,126) - (55,126)

Total comprehensive income ~ AEF2EUA (%)

(expense) for the year &8 = - - - - - - 454 (69,014) 13,434 35,902 (19,224) 3,335 (15,889)
Share repurchased and B R HkS

cancelled (7) (3) - - - - - - - - - (10) - (10)
Acquisition of additional hENBLDEMES

interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (614) (614)
Appropriations B3 - - - - 5,095 - - - - = (5,095) = = =
Recognition of equity-settled B L EREERR

share-based payments BERZHR - - - - - - 1,666 - - - - 1,666 = 1,666
Effect on share options RbERE,ZE

forfeited - - - - - - (326) - - - 326 - - -
At 31 March 2009 and M200963A31R &

1 April 2009 20954A18 285,756 615,523 2,182 89,800 14,188 7482 35,715 454 (69,014) 118,956 (467,714) 633,328 68,810 702,138
Profit for the year REEEF = - - - - - - - - - 300,614 300,614 9,144 309,758
Other comprehensive income ~ AFEEM2EMA

(expense) for the year (A%) - - - - - - - - 6,616 (11,952) - (5,336) - (5,336)

Total comprehensive income ~ AFE2AUA (B%)

(expense) for the year &8 - - - - - = = - 6,616 (11,952) 300,614 295,278 9,144 304422
Acquisition of a jointly B ARAHER

controlled entity (Note 24) (Ft3e24) - = B - - - = B - - - = 4,587 4,587
Disposal of subsidiaries LENBRA

(Note 38) (H3k38) - - - - - - - - - - - - (17,388) (17,388)
Appropriations B - - - - 5829 - - - - - (5,829) - - -
Dividends paid to minority LSila 1i3vd

shareholders &S - - - - - - - - - - - - (1.112) (1.112)
Effect on share options RUEREL

forfeited ¥a - - = - - = (436) - - - 436 - - -
At 31 March 2010 #201043A318 285,756 615,523 2,182 89,800 20,017 7482 35,279 454 (62,398) 107,004 (172,493) 928,606 64,041 992,647
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Notes:

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 March 2010

The amount represents a revaluation surplus which was recognised
as a result of the acquisition of an additional interest in Xin Hua
Resources Investment Limited (“Xin Hua") (previously an associate)
which resulted in Xin Hua becoming a subsidiary. Xin Hua was
deregistered in year 2006 and its assets and liabilities were
transferred to the Company.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company's share capital issued as
consideration in exchange for the nominal value of the issued share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired at the time of the Company's
listing in 1997.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain
a statutory surplus reserve fund and a discretionary surplus reserve
fund, which are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves
are made out of profit after taxation of the statutory financial
statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amount and allocation
basis are decided by their board of directors annually. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to make up their prior years losses,
if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of
capitalisation issue.

i3 :

HARBBER HE201083A31HILFE

2% & 285 AU EE Xin Hua Resources Investment
Limited ([Xin Hua |) (ZAN&EEE R 2B &R
7)) FESMEZS (EEXin Hualk AR E B E A
7)) MAERR 2 EIh &k o Xin HuaB 2006 F &+
H HEERBECEEBEARQAR] -

KEBZHBABBIEARNGAUEARER R
R1997F EmE B 2B ARl 2 B 31T
BRAMETZANABRAAE BXSHERQ
AIBERITRATE L Z5E -

MR EARLMBE ([HBE)IIEREZHE
BOERRIOEPIPIRE AR A ZHE M E AR
BHRBEERRABEREZARATES (B
PADIK) - ZERHEZBEARETENER
ADREMBRED 2HEREREN MEBRD
RELNAZEMNBLARAEEFSTFERT &
EBRHRABEAREHRZENERRBESF
BzEBR(MA) LAFEBE RN EITER

TRERERA
2009-2010%F




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 5§ B &R E R

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £201093A318 It F &
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2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Operating activities REED
Profit before tax B 5% B g A 330,006 51,283
Adjustments for: FTFNIEBELHFE:
Amortisation of intangible assets BiHEE B E 5,216 5,382
Amortisation of prepaid lease BiETENHES
payments 882 801
Loss on fair value changes of AR B A TFE
convertible notes HB)EIE 2,118 4,496
Loss on fair value changes of BAFEFABRZ
financial assets at fair value TREEATE
through profit or loss B E 18 - 7,507
Dividend income e ON (11) (362)
Depreciation of property, M BERRETE
plant and equipment 18,034 20,232
Discount on acquisition of W B B /&8 A | RE AN
additional equity interests in AR HE 2 3T RE
subsidiaries - (216)
Reversal of impairment loss Bt E R
recognised in respect of VEREN SRkl
earthquake 11 - (65,002)
Impairment loss recognised in ERE S REAM
respect of trade and other FE W kI8
receivables BRZREERE 27 20,534 3,288
Reversal of impairment loss EME S KEAMm
recognised in respect of trade FEW FRIB TR Z
and other receivables VERIENSEi=EEAE 27 (431) (32)
Finance costs B 75 B 7R 6,855 12,093
Interest income FEWA (3.369) (1,415)
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - BE R
plant and equipment HiEEE 1,907 790
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R E 2 e 38 (257,189) =
Loss on disposal of an associate e A REBE - 1,459
(Gain) loss on fair value changes of WEMERNFEE
investment properties (Yax) E1a (1,160) 454
Share of results of associates FE(GEE & N R LA (4,564) (5,196)
Waiver of trade payables HEE 5 ENKIE (1,333) =
Equity-settled share-based LARE 2 45 E IR 9
payments REM 2 TR - 1,666




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERERER HZ201063A3181LFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
Operating cash flows before EEESEEHA 2
movements in working capital KEMSRE 117,495 37,228
Increase in inventories FEHM (3,410) (9,831)
(Increase) decrease in trade and 25 N E b e s R
other receivables (300 (2,411) 20,156
Increase in trade and other payables 2 5 K& H {th & 1~ 3R IE3E N 67,587 63,771
Cash generated from operations REXBEERS 179,261 111,324
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid MRS ERER (11,582) (6,178)
Hong Kong Profits tax paid BN B AN EHR - (4,285)
Net cash generated from operating KEXBEAR ST
activities 167,679 100,861
Investing activities RETE
Proceed from capital reduction of i = N A B AS Bl Rk
an associate Fr 1S 308 - 3,815
Proceed from disposal of an associate H &% A al T8 718 - 3,402
(Increase) decrease in deposits WY HMERFJED
paid on acquisition of property, g4 (2n) w4
plant and equipment (4,891) 2,106
Interest received B U F B 1,549 1,415
Dividend income fi% B Uz A 11 362
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME KE R
plant and equipment B ERRCE 971 343
Purchase of property, plant and BEME BE K
equipment and investment R A RIRE Y2
properties (153,045) (167,428)
Increase in pledged bank deposits 2 H R 17 17 3L A0 (8,076) =
Other loan advanced to il A UNC S
a shareholder of an associate EMER (41,000) =
Increase in investment in an associate FE# & A &) 2 R E 1L N (27,341) (7,494)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of U & Ft [& 422 | = 52
a jointly controlled entity EEZHEERLFHE 24 (16,019) =
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMNES (5,707) (6,781)
Payment for acquisition of additional U B} 88 2 7] 58 SR AE 1~ 3%
equity interests in subsidiaries - (2,666)
Net cash inflow from disposal of tENBRAREELEY
subsidiaries REMAFHE 38 363,329 -
Purchase of intangible assets EERTLEE (995) -
Net cash generated from (used in) wEEBEE (FTA)
investing activities HEF8 108,786 (172,926)
FRERERA T

2009-20105F 8




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 31 March 2010

REREMER HE2010F3A31B LFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 BT T BT T
Financing activities & T B
New bank borrowings raised FrEGHIBITER 164,025 229,991
(Decrease) increase in other loans EER )& (4,377) 10,220
(Repayment to) advance from (BEB)HEAR 28R
associates (6,038) 10,770
Repayment of convertible notes EETRRKREE (164,492) =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (118,760) (151,279)
Interest paid EAH S (6,855) (22,498)
Dividends paid to minority NTFLEBRR 2 KE
shareholders (1,112) =
Share repurchased 8 8] iz 17 - (10)
Net cash (used in) generated from BEES (FTA)EL
financing activities e FE (137,609) 77,194
Net increase in cash and RekHReZEMEIEHE
cash equivalents N FER 138,856 5,129
Cash and cash equivalents FMHRE R
at beginning of the year ReEEIEE 176,952 170,318
Effect of foreign currency rate INEETE R E B &
changes 383 1,505
Cash and cash equivalents at end FrBEeMESEEER -
of the year, represented by bank BIRITAEER R IR &
balances and cash 316,191 176,952

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #= & B & 3% 3% M 5=

For the year ended 31 March 2010 B £2010F3A318 L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability incorporated
in Bermuda on 13 November 1996. On 24 April 1997,
the Company’s shares were listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the section headed “Corporate Information” of the Annual
Report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries principally engage in the sale and distribution of
natural gas and liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG") (collectively
referred to as “Gas Fuel”) in the People's Republic of
China (the “PRC") including the sale of LPG in bulk and
in cylinders, the provision of piped LPG and natural gas,
construction of gas pipelines, the operation of city gas
pipeline network and the sale of LPG.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Super Win Development
Limited and Asian Allied Limited respectively, which were
both incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated. The reason for selecting HK$ as its presentation
currency is because the Company is a public company
incorporated in Bermuda with the shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, where most of its investors are located in Hong
Kong.

—REH

PRIZEKRER AR ([A2QF])MR1996
FABBRARETIMRT AERR
BRAR-M1997F4H24H AR &l z
BORBEBHERZMERAF ([BR
Frl)EREm - RAREMPRERERETE
BB IR A TR Z [RRE R
— TR EE o

ARAR—EREZERAR  HMB QA
TEEREARKME (THE])KEH
ERSHERAREBREAHR ([RIELA
mR) (FHEA MR BfEEEME
FRERIEAHR REEERIEAMA
RRAR BERREE KERTMR
EEBRREER(EARR -

EERARRAZTRARREKIERAR]
% Bl ASuper Win Development Limited
K Asian Allied Limited * ’ & 39 70 2 8 &
ZEES T ML -

ARAREMBLR (GEA[AEE])
ZHEEES/ARE (TAR®]) kR IE
ZINE R - BRI EHE M B RRIGAE
B (a2 mABEEEAFER
Bz TR -ARFEREERENNE
2B A RARF IR BRETMAL
ZRABAR HRDAEBR LMW A
RO WEEBUREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EBH %ﬁ%T&,%%ﬂk‘Té 1 %
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BEER ([BEEMEREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") all)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following RAFE AEECEANTHEAS
new and revised standards, amendments to standards fiae ([BFE +Efﬁ’“AJ)ﬂEﬁZ%ﬁaT

BB IS AT R EANE ST R 2R ([#72]
REBTERYBREEA]) -

and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA").
Hong Kong Accounting Presentation of Financial & % SRR ([BS BBEREZ 275
Standard (“HKAS") 1 Statements : ’&E'JJ ) 15
(Revised 2007) (2007¢1 &)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs BB G ERFE235 EERA
(2007@14z )
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments BEg ’EH'J%QFJ’% hEemMTA
(Amendments) and Obligations Arising &%f 7?-5 ZER| NEBREEZ
on Liquidation F15 (& aT$) s
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in ﬁ?’éﬂﬁ‘%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘l NI
(Amendments) a Subsidiary, Jointly FIRRBABGE A 4% 5 & §8 5k
Controlled Entity or Associate AR FE275% kN s
({BETA) & AR
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and BB RS 2R 55 B IR 1 M AT 8
Cancellations F25% (BRI A)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about BB B 15 3RS ZE R CRITAEFHES
Financial Instruments F79% (BRIA) o
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments BB B 15 S ZE A & DB
8%
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation ~ Embedded Derivatives BB (BEHBEHRE BRARTELER
(“INT") 9 and HKAS 39 ZEZEg) R
(Amendments) = ([R2E])F9%H
kBB 4R
3958 ({57 4N)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes HE (RREMGHRE TP EHE
2ELZET)
—REF135%
HK(IFRIC) — INT 15 Agreements for the B4 (EBEMBERE FBEEXHE
Construction of Real Estate REZET)
—REE155
HK(IFRIC) — INT 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in B (BEBREMGERE BINEBREF
a Foreign Operation ZEZE®) CEEg P
—REF165%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 18 Transfers of Assets from

Customers
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2008, except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2009 in relation to the
amendment to paragraph 80

of HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements)
and changes in the format and content of the financial
statements.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

i
o

&)

¥ R] R ARAE F] & 8 B 5 3
A (TEEBMBHREER])

—~

75 (BB RS

ZELZEE) %

12 %1858

BB B 15 S 2R R20085F 2

(BETA) BB BHRE
YE B 2 i
MEPR20094 7
A1Bs 2 %M
16 2 F & B
ER 2 BB
R AR ES
R AEET AN BR
AN

BB RS 2R 20094 B 2

(BFTA) BEBPERE
AEBI| 7 B H#E
B@EEER
ERIZE3957 5
80EX 2 EE] AR

BEFEREE

B T X Pt E SN - RN A] R BT B
MBEBRSENAAEERAGHHHEHL
BESF B ZRE M |R A EIEK
EAXE-

FEEINATARBEER ZHT R
RETERMBHREER

EBSHERE15% (2007F&35)
[ EHRERZE ]

EB ST EBZE 15 (2007FE5T) 3| A
Z A 2B (BIEERYBRRZE
) WERMBRERZEARAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only (Continued)

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set
out in the amendments.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

FE R R ARMER] BB M B 3
f:.';;‘-ﬁ‘i-)ﬁu (BERUBREED])
IIE

FE2INATARKEBEER 2HTR
RETERMBHREER (K)

—~

EHMTAREZE (FRMBRSE
HAETHREEMIT A WE] 2B
)

E AN BWEEN BRI AERE
WEATEN B SMIA Y ATENE
FEE BB BEEA - XE AT
AMEDES AR HEREEARE
B IR ST A B BB
74 g B 3 4 9 A 1 K950 T D B 9 4 L B
B -

AREBEIWEIBF A T HIERME M ARE
WL HE] RAERT R BT AN kg -

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of Improvements
to HKFRSs 2008’

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Improvements to HKFRSs 20103

Related Party Disclosures’

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements'

Classification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items'

First-time adoption of HKFRSs'

EEMBHRELED] BEMEREE
(BETA) BIZE55% 2 85T
R EBR2008
FRA BB
TR 2R 2 Bk
E—EH
BB HRELED  R2009FE M2 E
(BETA) 75 B 15 R S A Al
2 o2
EEMBHREED R2010FBM2E
(BETA) 7 B 5 R AE Al
2 oS
EBSTHRAE24 BEATIHE
R (EET)
EBSEAE27 BEERBIMBR
i (L&15ET) =
EBETHERE32  HR 2 oES
R (BRI )
EB ST HEAFE3 AEREFER
R (BETA)
EBMBHRELER BHRRWNE BB
FE15 (LI8ET) R 2R



APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters*
Limited Exemption from

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19

Comparative HKFRS7
Disclosures for First
— time Adopters®
Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions*
Business Combinations’

Financial Instruments®

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement’

Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners'

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate.

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2. ERAFIRKEEIERBMBER
HER (B BEHREEL])
(#)

BT HRELER BREMRE 2B

FE15% (BRI A) s

BEEMBHREEL] BREMNERESD

F15 (BRI &) B 53R 5 2E RIS
TR B LA
2 B IR S

BB HRELER SEUBRESEEN

B25% (BRI ) & BER 217
KR H

EEMBHREED EBHAH

E35% (LB8ET)

BB HRELERN ST A

F 9%

B (AR REEEERZE

REREZE  5x787

2) —ZEZF14

g (BT A)

B (BB m#EE ADIKIER

g) —2E

FE175

5 (BB ARE AR T EK 85 €

HwEREBZB BB (ES

2) —2E

£ 1958

g 200947 A1 A sk 2 & Fts 2 F 5 AR
HERY e

2 MN2009F7A1H 20101818 (@
BR)Sz®ARZFEHBERZE
HE

E 20107 1H 20111818 (@
BR)SzERABZEFEBBERZE

‘ g$:°¢1ﬂ1 B3z & Fth < FE 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 July 2009.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1 January 2013,
with earlier application permitted. The standard requires all
recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
to be measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial
assets.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 “Leases” has been amended in relation
to the classification of leasehold land. The amendments
will be effective from 1 April 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were
required to classify leasehold land as operating leases and
presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on
the general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based
on the extent to which risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset lie with lessor or the lessee. The
application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group's leasehold
land.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group's
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable
to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are
recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investors has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of the associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is not tested for impairment separately. Instead, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
as a single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not
allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part
of carrying amount of the investment in the associate. Any
reversal of impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the relevant associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The Group recognises its interests in jointly controlled
entities using proportionate consolidation. The Group’s share
of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the
jointly controlled entities are combined with the Group's
similar line items, line by line, in the consolidated financial
statements.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled
entities recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group's
interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for goodwill
arising on the acquisition of a business or a jointly controlled
entity.

Where a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFFBUR (&)
(Continued)

Goodwill =

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business or a jointly Wil RS e H RS B (KL HIERE T
controlled entity (which is accounted for using proportionate R)FMEEREE - THRKARERREHR
consolidation) is carried at cost less any accumulated BEEEAR  WRERE BRI @& 5 5
impairment losses and is presented separately in the I

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising REEANRmMES  ANEmMEECEETD
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash- SETHEFAXKKEzZBREIRZEZ
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that EHBARCEEEN (NSHEBCELE
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. i) EHEFECREELEEVUETFR
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated BEAN RSB A H IR R ER R B
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an BIRE o BhPAME eI BF U6 5 A E 1T U
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising FIEACZHENE BHrEMBCRSE
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating EBNEARZYBREELARIARES
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for WA B EEEEM 2 B EFEDR
impairment before the end of that financial year. When ZEAZBREE SHEREREENEE
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less BARER DI TREAMLEE 2 REE -
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss NERBZEMSEE ZREERLA
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill HRED B FZEM o HMEE BB
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of FRREBSEEERGE 2EBRARE
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of RoPBZREEBTEEEE 2R
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill [ o

is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit BE1e B B B IR & B A B A ok 3t R 2
or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of BN BEENMEZEEEESRET AR
goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the ETHEZERER-

amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Excess of an acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of an acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost
("discount on acquisition”)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of
a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the
excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
the business combination, after reassessment. Discount on
acquisition is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write-off the cost of item of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each of the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the assets. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assets (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the
item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible
assets is their fair values at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of the
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Upfront prepayments made for the land
use rights and leasehold land are initially recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position as prepaid lease
payments and are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
the two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted are set out as below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
not classified as loans and receivables.

At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
valuation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised and accumulated in
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period. (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 30 to 90 days (extending to 180 days for major
customers), observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured at the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in the profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

FESBER (&)

ERIA (&)
TREE (&)
EHEEREER (&)

MEZRMEEZREFEESEEN SR
BEZHREETELIN EES MEMW
R FIREZ FEERSEBREREL
R - BERAZREEESENERT
FERR - 8 E 5 M At B W IR AR B 1N ]
Uiz a0 5 - LG 1A 138 £ R RS o 2 B E I
HABURIME R YD - RO B A e

I HA AT ERMEEM 5 - R
BEEEBERERMEE KD - A R
VEFBLEBRRABMERRELEZSEMHE
B RIERE R ZBERBE/RERELS
TUARE EZEENRERERNERZ
REENSEBRERRERZCHEH
AN

AHEENBRARENBREBEK TS
R BRI IR s B O] - T R RE SRR (E S
BRERZEAQIFEENREMERH
WABREALNKREEGFEERET-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Reclassification of financial assets out of FVTPL

Financial assets held for trading which is no longer held
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term are reclassified as available-for-sale financial assets
at its fair value on the date of reclassification only in rare
circumstances.

Any gain or loss already recognised in profit or loss before
the reclassification is not reversed. The fair value of the
financial asset on the date of reclassification becomes its
new cost oramortised cost, as appropriate.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally
classified into other financial liabilities and financial liability
at FVTPL.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31BILFE

FESBER (&)

EWMIA (&)
TREE (&)

HERAFHEISARBZZZHBEEERN
bog

FIFEERE SREE (ERTREE
THEANOCHLEXBEMmMEA)ESE
BOBBEAT BHEREHHIREAZR
FEEFIBRAAHLESREE -

EREFHHDHEAMNERER 2 MRS
REBTHERD - SREEREFHDEE
B 2 A BB A H 5K 2N (B Bk 55 A A
(asEA) -

THMEBERRETIR

SEERETHNERABEREETAT
RIEERZHENEE LS H A E R RE
TEMERNE-

BRETADEARANEEMEMEAE
BEBEETHANSREGE ZEMAR A
SEZERMABE-"REIELSEMLE A
BEMBRAFEFABREZERAE

TRERERA
2009-2010%F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to associates and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

A financial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL including
convertible notes. Convertible notes issued by the Company
are designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL on initial
recognition. At the end of each reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, the entire convertible notes are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from re-measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

FESBER (&)

BiIE

TSR M 38R TN T MR T E
2 HAF o

BIRNBHEARBRAFE ZERB G T
AE - ARERV G EEEMFERE
AP HAIHH 2 WARFAXIAR - T TE
EBARVHTAIHIBIER @ 88 RN
BEEBABRKMER LGN - NEEE
HHREREERARBSHRCHMTAE
EREMIBERGTE -

BEEBBTIER AV BRRANEERAE
< BRE B B AT 5 SR B s Bl B (2 2 A
EREZEREZEER - —RME A
AMREREEIERELEHAEAG M
{274 7] 88 th 3R FE AR e M| A K 86 5% 5 AT 40
MEREZRE  IG5AAA MR TR 8
BRELEHRBEE - WERKZBRAPE
H e TER (LIFEEBHAGHZBERT)
—HERZGPZEMEERABEMES If
BERBEN SR HEZLE AT
THRAZEEERAG:-

BRIEANEE AT A A =5 2 B 5
REREREAN BRI EE - TR
M AR SRR RE R EREGHE

RS EAZERTEREZEYRERE
LTRIE\ELEC’



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFFBUR (&)
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued) HiE (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax BEBEEERABDRERNRSHRE
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which BERIAMLEEEEIHE (RFE) -
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax REHREEFESIEEZRHRERA
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively MEGFE - BRERBEEHEEZFE
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The f B 42 BB 7N £R [ 0 i HA R 78 HA Uk [ 5k
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects EEEERBEREEZAXMEED
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner R REMIERNIB R AN ER - EWIE
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting ERIBES RN EMEERAERNEZ
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets NiEmANTERCIEE @ ARERIETE 5
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, B E M 2 E WA S B i s A TR o

except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Revenue recognition PN

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WARB WS EKRRE 2 AT ETE K
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for REMBRTIREERBHREBERZERBE
goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of XBEBREPEH 2 ERMRER R E
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes. WRIE

Sales of Gas Fuel (including natural gas and LPG) and gas MR (BERARRBREABR) KRR
appliances are recognised when goods are delivered and title HAZHEAREMEEAEDEERR
has passed. TR

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered. AR 7 WA TH P 12 4 AR 75 B T DABERR
Deposits and instalments received from purchase prior REEE Fl SR Gt E R BE
to meeting the above criteria on revenue recognition are e ko \iIREE S AR R HREA
included in the statement of financial position under current ZmENEER o

liabilities.

Gas connection revenue is recognised upon completion of MR E BRI AR TR EZEEBRER - It
pipeline construction which according to industry practice in TR B Z M R 2 1T 1B B B [ B &=
the region coincides with the “fire ignition ceremony”. — 5o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the relevant lease terms.

Dividend income from investments including available-for-
sale financial assets is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment has been established.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Other government
grants are recognised as revenue over the periods necessary
to match them with the costs for which they are intended
to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees granted
after 7 November 2002 and vested on or after
1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (“Share-based
compensation reserve”).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31BILFE

FESBER (&)

3R 48 R A

[[) R R AT 51 8 Kok Bl 1 AT 5t 8l
PERRERREECRHERGEE AR
BSHZREIMERX -

LESEERO/BERZIARRS

M2002F 11 A7 ERFEERR
2005F1B1AR 2RISR E 2 B IR

2ERNREBRAZAREBREDFE
M E 2 FEWARTE AT 1B - IREBH N E
AREET S fEam ([PARD R 2T 2 B
el ) AIREE -

AEERRERRETEHARRER
BOBREZ AT - GEITHREEY
Bt BFEEEAZE  HRERR
BRIE - W PARR A R AT 2 Bl & VAR

A

B RBEETER RN AN AR
LW RERRZBESERERN R
1B - B A 5 8 A R R B s
m B HIREARTTE  RERRAERORERZ
M FRERZBESERERTER -

TRERERA
2009-2010%F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants, agents and
advisors

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services
are measured at the fair values of the goods or services
received unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the goods or services received are measured by
reference to the fair value of the share options granted. The
fair values of the goods or services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase in equity (share-
based compensation reserve), when the Group obtains the
goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on the historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue in respect of the connection
and construction of gas pipeline upon the construction
of pipelines for users and connection of such pipelines
to the Company’s existing gas pipeline network, which is
concurrent with the “fire ignition ceremony”.

Reclassification of financial assets

During the year ended 31 March 2009, following the severe
deterioration of the world’s financial market during the
third quarter of 2008, the directors of the Company have
reviewed the Group’'s investment strategy. After taking
into account the Group’s liquidity position, the directors
confirmed that certain quoted equity investments (previously
held for short-term profit-taking purpose) amounted to
approximately HK$94,535,000 were no longer held for
trading purpose and the Group had the intention and ability
to hold them for the foreseeable future. Such quoted equity
investments have been reclassified as available-for-sales
financial assets on 28 July 2008.

Details and the financial impact of the above reclassifications
are set out in Note 6(b).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Legal titles of certain land and buildings

As stated in Notes 18 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the titles of certain buildings and a parcel of
land were not transferred to the Group as at 31 March
2010. Despite the fact that the Group has not obtained the
relevant legal titles, the directors determine to recognise
those buildings and land use right as property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payment, respectively, on
the grounds that they expect the transfer of legal titles in
future should have no major difficulties and the Group is in
substance controlling those buildings and that parcel of land.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment loss (reversal of
impairment loss) recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments

The Group tests annually whether property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments have suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 3. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates such as the future revenue and discount
rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwill or intangible
asset

Determining whether goodwill or intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated or
the intangible asset belongs. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual value. The Group
assesses annually the residual value and the useful life of
the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimates, such differences from the
original estimates will impact the depreciation charges in the
year in which the estimates change.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
and other receivables

The Group makes impairment of trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
Impairment loss are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible or when the net present
value of the receivable is less than the carrying amount of
the receivable. The identification of impairment loss requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
on the recoverability of trade and other receivables is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade and other receivables and
the impairment in the periods in which such estimate has
been changed. At 31 March 2010, the carrying amount of
trade and other receivables is approximately HK$91,569,000
(2009: HK$102,445,000) (net of impairment losses of
trade receivables and other receivables approximately
HK$805,000 (2009: HK$733,000) and HK$23,551,000
(2009: HK$3,471,000)) respectively. Details of movement
in impairment on trade and other receivables are set out in
Note 27.

Fair value of convertible notes

The fair value of the convertible notes were calculated using
the Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The model involves
assumptions on the Company’s credit spread discount rate,
expected credit rating and future cash flows. Should these
assumptions change, there would be material charges to the
valuation.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

EESAEHREMGTTIRER
EZEERE (&)

REZREMERFIRRR ZRERS
|

AR BRI S EAGRIA A Y E 1 2 FF (4
HE S REAMERKIAELRE KB

W (2] =% i U Rk 3B 2 3R (B F B 1 Y R MK
HZ BREE AEE S K& E R RIE
EH R ERE - #B R BB AEER ¥
BT R et MEB 2 REMEWRIEZE
HrAalbeBmE R GTERN EHH
EHEBTEEGTEREHHAANZES
MEMEWHRIBLMREZEBE R
20109F3A318 & 5 K H fb JE I 5118
ZEREEY A %91,569,0007T (2009
B #102,445,00070) (14 &2 5 fE
e SR I8 e E A R WO TEDRE B 1B D B 4
75 #805,0007T (20094F : /5 #733,000
7T ) N 76 #23,551,0007T (20094 : # #&
3,471,00000) ) B S R EMEWHIAZ
MEZEFIBHN 27 -

JRRREz2QFE

RV ES PR LI E SR
B - HRR R ART 2 EEE
2 BRE BHEEFRRAKEL R
BB -WASERLRED 51
EHREAZD -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, including
bank borrowings, convertible notes, other loans and equity
attributable to the owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The Group's risk management reviews the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of the review, the
management considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group monitors
capital through the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as
net debt divided by total debt and capital. Net debt includes
bank borrowings (including current and non-current bank
borrowings as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) and other loans, less bank balances and
cash. Total capital includes convertible notes and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group aims to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. EXAEKEIE (&)

The gearing ratios at the year end were as follows: FREXRNBBRLEERAT
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Bank borrowings (Note 32) RITEE (H:E32) 203,070 309,941
Other loans (Note 31) H &R (EE31) 5,876 10,220
Less: Bank balances and cash B IRITER KRR S (316,191) (176,952)
Net debt FRE (107,245) 143,209
Convertible notes mRER - 162,374
Equity attributable to owners e AEGER 928,606 633,328
Total capital EARBE 928,606 795,702
Total net debt and capital FEBERERNET 821,361 938,911
Gearing ratio BARBENE N/A ~iEH 15.25%
The improvement in the gearing ratio during the year ended HZE2010F3A31HIEFEHRE  E4XE
31 March 2010 resulted primarily from the proceeds received BELEEMRE TEEHAREERBAR
for disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38). 7] AT BN 2 P45 5038 (M 5E38) °
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.
(a) Categories of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of each of the following

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

TRMITA
(a) EMTAZIE

UTFREREHEAERSBAER

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at WMEMRCREERT
the end of the reporting period are set out as follows:
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Financial assets EWMEE
Available-for-sale financial At ESmEE
assets 38,567 32,291
Loans and receivables B W ERTE
(including cash and (BERS X
cash equivalents) ReFEMBEEE) 432,480 225,823
471,047 258,114
Financial liabilities tREE
Other financial liabilities stated R H AT R 2
at amortised cost EmemasE 310,574 433,375
Financial liabilities designated TBE AR AFEF ABE
as FVTPL (Note) Zema& (k) - 162,374
310,574 595,749
Note: MR

The change in fair value due to market risk factors was
calculated using the market yield curves of 10.34% as at 31
March 2009 holding credit risk margin constant. The fair value
of financial liabilities designated at FVTPL was estimated by
discounting future cash flows using market yield curves as
at the end of the reporting period and by obtaining lender
quotes for borrowing of similar maturity to estimate credit risk
margin.
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THMIA (&)
(b) ENfPHEEREE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(b) Reclassification of financial assets

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group
has made the following reclassification in respect of
financial assets:

HE2009F3A31RILFEE A&
EEpnemEEET NNETS

A8

HK$'000
AETT

Reclassification of quoted equity investments
classified as financial assets at FVTPL into
available-for-sale financial assets

Following the severe deterioration of the world’s
financial market during the third quarter of 2008,
certain quoted equity investments previously held by
the Group for short-term profit-taking are no longer
held for trading purpose. The severe deterioration
of the financial market is considered as a rare
circumstance, such investments are reclassified to
available-for-sale financial assets on 28 July 2008.

As of 31 March 2010 and 2009, the carrying amount
and fair value of the financial assets that have been
reclassified are as following:

BESEAEAFETAEBRZ
CRMEEZAREREAKE
B oEEAHIESREE 94,535

EERERERMISZNR2008F E=FF
HHEEEREE AEEURFEE
AREHEN & TERERAE
ETBEEEAERBE Mm%
CEBRERRWRAERBR B
BB R2008F7 A28H EEH
EEHEESHEE-

20105 K% 200943H31H - 2 &
EFEZEeRmEEZREERA
FEMT :

2010 2009

Carrying Carrying

amount and amount and

fair value fair value

FEHERAFE REEEAFE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Available-for-sale financial assets At HES M EE 32,137 25,521
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. T®MI A (&)
(b) Reclassification of financial assets (b) EFnEERMEE (&)
(Continued)
The effects of the reclassification of the financial assets HE2009F3A31H L FEHEMNE
upon adoption of the amendments to HKAS 39 and BERFTERIEINE KRB BB RE
HKFRS 7 during the year ended 31 March 2009 were: BB RETTAREN DB RE
EZTENT:
HK$'000
BT T
Increase in profit for the year & 2 5 A3 A0 69,014
Increase of fair value losses recognised REMEARABRZAFE
in other comprehensive income [E5 18 3E N 69,014
The financial effects recognised during the year ended FNR2008F7 A28HEEFH D EZ
31 March 2009 in respect of the financial assets that TR E ERE £200943A31H 1E
were reclassified on 28 July 2008 are as follows: FEBAZTBZENT

Recognised in

RTHEERR
Other
comprehensive
Loss income
Eia HibZEBA
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ¥ I
Before reclassification E¥ oA
— loss on fair value changes of — AT EFAER 2R
financial assets at FVTPL BEZAFEEZHEE (7,507) =
After reclassification EH %
— loss on fair value changes of —AHHESMEEY
available-for-sale financial NEEEEEIE
assets = (69,014)
(7,507) (69,014)
During the year ended 31 March 2010, additional HZE2010F3A31HLEFE BRET /M
fair value increase of approximately HK$6,616,000 EEVENZATFTEFABEZZE/®
(2009: decrease of HK$69,014,000) would had been EEEENSE BBEINAFEEND
recognised as an income (2009: expense) in profit or 7 #6,616,0007T (20094 : 5 8 &
loss had the financial assets not been reclassified out of 69,014,0007T) # 1A 18 2= A T 78 & I A
financial assets at FVTPL. (2009%F %) °
FRERERA

2009-20105F 8
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWITA (&)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () eREAKREEEZERBE
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale financial assets, trade and other
receivables, amounts due to associates, bank
borrowings, convertible notes, trade and other
payables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, other price risk and currency risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate other loan (see Note 31 for
details) and other loan to a shareholder of an associate
(see Note 28 for details). The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary action when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank deposits (see Note 30 for details
of these deposits), and variable-rate bank borrowings
(see Note 32 for details of these borrowings). It is
the Group’s policy to keep its bank deposits and
bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. For variable-rate borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2009: 50 basis
point) increase or decrease in interest rate is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2009: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2010 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$454,000 (2009: post-tax profit
for the year decrease/increase by approximately
HK$499,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
deposits and borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to equity price risk through its
investment in listed equity securities for the year ended
31 March 2010 and 2009. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities operating in industry sectors quoted in the
Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

6.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

eMIA (&)

(c)

SREREEAEEREE
(&)
M= (%)

fisi K R F =/ FH (K 5018 Z 25 (2009
& :SOofE L 2h) M AT B r] B F
EHRFTILE NEBEEE201043
A3BLFEEZREZF BN
AL 4 75 454,000 (20094 ¢
FER B RFR D 184S
499,0007T) * = E 2 A B A& B&
EEHMNEBTERREE ZF

B o
/Tn

H At E & E B2
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B mERLRR  ANEE AR
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AT ZBRESMIIRBER&RE B
P 3 2 B (B 48 LB T EEE

Increase/(decrease)

in investment valuation reserve

REMMERBEM ORD)

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

If equity prices had been B A EIEE ER10%
10% higher (2009: 10%) (20094F : 10% ) 3,214 2,552

If equity prices had been IR ERE T/B10%
10% lower (2009: 10%) (20094 : 10% ) (3,214) (2,552)
R ERARA
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TR I A (&)
() EREARBREEREREER

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

(c) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk associated with
movements in foreign currency rates which will affect
the Group's financial results and its cash flow. The
management considers the Group is not exposed to
significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
operations and transactions are in the PRC with their
functional currency of RMB. The Group’s exposure to
currency risk is attributable to the bank balances and
cash and deposits of the Group which are denominated
in currencies other than RMB (see Note 30 for details).
The Group currently does not have a foreign currencies
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency exposure
since HK$ is pegged to the US$. Management
considers the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
minimal. However, management monitors the related
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. SWITA (&)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and () eREAKREEEERBE

policies (Continued) (#8)
Credit risk (Continued) FERRE (&)
The Group trades only with recognised and AEBRERBEREBBECLE=
creditworthy third parties. The Group’s trading terms FTEARG AEEEXEUURKER
with its customers are mainly on credit, except for NEARPXRG EHEFPAEE
new customers, where payment in advance is normally FEEANR -TERREH KR
required. The normal credit period is generally for a 30BE0H  FEXFERAIERSE
period of 30 days to 90 days and extending up to 180H - BHERFHBERREERE-
180 days for major customers. Each customer has a AEBRTEERERE 2 EKK
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain HemAEHEETHEMO L
strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue EREXFrt R AEE 2 E 5 ER
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. HRIEHEAYMTIRABELEESBH K
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the SEVTESESERZEERR K
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number SEHEI REMBERRIEDE 2
of diversified customers, there is no significant EERRER EMESHE »
concentration of credit risk. Further quantitative data M sE279 %5 -

in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are disclosed in Note

27.

The credit risk on liquid fund is limited because the HRRSEFHESSEEETR

counterparties are banks with high credit rating. ZRIT - WRBESZEERRE
PR

The Group's concentration of credit risk by EwEBEUES T AEEZEE

geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, which k&P RPE - HR2010F3 4

accounted for 100% (31 March 2009: 100%) of the 3NEMEE S REUGRIAREE 2100%

total trade receivable as at 31 March 2010. (2009%3H31H:100% ) °

Liquidity risk REBRS AR

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group reviews the REBRDESEAR ANEEERH

level of cash and cash equivalents to ensure their RekBEFEIER 2KFE  BIR

adequacy to finance the Group’s operations and BEREURAEE S ERERE R

mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows. The BEREMNERS 2 FE - KEE

Group also reviews the utilisation of borrowings and NERBECERTHRREEER

ensures the compliance of loan covenants. The Group RHZHRTE - AEBKERITEE

relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of EREZERBERRIR

liquidity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

(c)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. T®MIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and () eREAKREEEERBE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBRERER (&)
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group's HRAEEXBEERESEMLE
business, the Group ensures that it maintains sufficient MAEBRREFTERCRESNEE
cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements. MEUAFEARAEERBESTE -
The Group finances its working capital requirements REEFBREMEEZER IR
through a combination of funds generated from TEEGEAARNEEEESS
operations and bank borrowings. 2o
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRE LRI TE 2 ERBGER R
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial SEETEERMABERGE NI
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The LB o bR TR IR AN & B Al A2
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted XERERNHR A eHAGBL
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest REMBBRESTREMBR - WRBIE
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The FERASESTRE - MF B LAZF
table includes both interest and principal cash flows. R ERGFHE ARGV EESIRE
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the WMEMRZMNEHRFE -
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.
Total
Within ~ Withinthe ~ Withinthe ~ Withinthe  Within the Over undiscounted Carrying
one year  second year third year forth year fifth year five years cash flow amount
FERRE
-£R EER EZER EMER ERER BBLE REAE REE
HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000 HKS000
BT BETR BT BETR BT BETR BT BT
At31 March 2010 22010438318
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEMNTE 96,554 - - - - - 96,554 96,115
Amounts due to associates R BEARE 11,389 - - - - - 11,389 11,389
Bank borrowings BIHEE 100,028 8,092 26,622 12,19 13,646 B4 239326 203,070
207,97 8,092 26,622 12,19 13,646 M MI9 310574
At 31 March 2009 2009534318
Trade and other payables BAREMENFUE 89,379 - - - - - 89,379 88,976
Amounts due to associates FfBE R HE 34,458 - - - - - 34,458 34,458
Bank borrowings ROEE 163,607 97,013 11,528 16,646 21,293 47,717 357,804 309,941
Convertible notes TRRER 165,242 - - - - - 165,242 162,374
452,686 97,013 11,528 16,646 21,293 477 646883 505,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and
ask prices respectively; and

- the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or
short-term maturities.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

6. 2RI A (&)

(d)

AFE

TREENEGRABZAFERT
ST AEE

—  BRAEREGRRIGERRER
MEBMEEECERMEERS
MEBZATE HOH2E
M ERERERES
E R

- HismBEELREMAR(T
BRTAETER) 2RFER
MBARTRENNTZ RREE
B ERABRRREMSE
TZRPEBEBUTAZR
SREREEE

E=RB/NERA MoK T IAHH
RAARZEREERERAEL
FREEREAFERS FESK
SR HIM I -

R EBIRE R PR 2
FEME

TRIBER VIR FER R IR D FER
BEZEMIT AN UREEQF
BEZABREERBAZ MR-

— BRIz AVFEAEINER
MmiEAEREERRE LTS
WE(CRERE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TETHR (&)
(d) Fair value (Continued) (d 2¥E (&)
Fair value measurements recognised in the REEHBRRBERPEIZZA
consolidated statement of financial position FEFE (F)

(Continued)

Level 1
B
HK$'000
BT
Available-for-sale financial assets AHECHERE
— Listed securities listed in Hong Kong —REBLMZ EMRESH 32,137
7. TURNOVER 7. EX%
Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration ERERCORIEWREZRATEFE
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for RELEMBETNRIEERBRIBERNH
goods and services in the normal course of business, net of BEBBEFR 2B MR RSEWGKIE - A
discounts and sales related taxes. An analysis of the Group's SEZEEZBITHAT
turnover is as follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Provision of piped Gas Fuel HEETBMR 450,950 312,141
Transportation, distribution Bl D iHRIRE
and retail of bottled LPG TE R A MR 255,300 267,369
706,250 579,510
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the board of directors (being
the chief operation decision maker (“CODM")) for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard
(HKAS 14, Segment Reporting) required an entity to identify
two sets of segments (business and geographical) using a
risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary
reporting format was business segments. The application
of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation of the
Group's reportable segments as compared with the primary
reportable segments determined in accordance with HKAS
14. Nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of
measurement of segment profit or loss.

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into two operating divisions, and has two reportable
operating segments as follows — provision of piped Gas Fuel
and transportation, distribution and retail of bottled LPG.

Provision of piped Gas Fuel — construction of gas pipeline
networks, provision of piped natural gas and LPG

Transportation, distribution and retail of bottled LPG — the
sale of LPG in bulk to wholesale customers and the retail
of bottled LPG to end user households, industrial and
commercial customers.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

2 EER

AEEE HR2009F4 1B REREEY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZHEH (&)
Segment revenues and results DEBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and NTAEEAEEZEHRD B EZWAR
results by reportable segment. EBEDMNT

Transportation,

Provision of distribution and
For the year ended 31 March BZE3A3MALEE piped Gas Fuel retail of bottled LPG Consolidation
HEEERR Ef DHRBESERLAHE &8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BETT BETR BETT BETR BETT

Turnover BEE 450,950 312,141 255,300 267,369 706,250 579,510
Segment profits SEEF 368,039 91,197 8,710 15,568 376,749 106,765
Unallocated income ROBBA 2,566 2,852
Unallocated corporate expenses vl m%ﬁﬁi (24,906) (33,776)
Loss on fair value changes of IRRERATEEH ER

convertible notes (2,118) (4,496)
Loss on fair value changes of financial assets A F{Ez A2

at FVTPL SRBEZATELYEE - (7,507)
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBEAREE - (1,459)
Equity-settled share-based payments MRS E RN RER 2K - (1,666)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ERESRAMEBKFIERR L

trade and other receivables AEEE (19,994) (2,533)
Finance costs EMREXZK (6,855) (12,093)
Share of results of associates A E RRIEE 4,564 5,196
Profit before tax BBt A A 330,006 51,283
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the ERHHF s BREWTIAHAEE
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 2 BETHERARRE o 5 FB3% F) 5 & 7 2B B EX
3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each Z o A - M AR o B ERTT A B A~ HoAh
segment without allocation of bank interest income, other KEWARFPRITHAS EEME A
operating income, central administrative expenses, directors’ BRER LT EZES 2 BE  EAFER
emoluments, loss on fair value changes of convertible ANER eMEEC A TFEZEFHERS-
notes, loss on fair value changes of financial assets at ﬁﬁ GENRIEE  WEREERODAE
FVTPL, loss on disposal of an associate, equity-settled share M2 B E 5 & E 0B RIE R
based payments, impairment loss recognised in respect of ZOMEEE B E N R AR
trade and other receivables, share of results of associates Kot IR ERDERKETEREESE
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to CODM BEAREEWRZFESTA
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
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FREMBRRME BE201063A31AILFEF

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

DRER (&)
ITHEEREE

ATREAEBZEBFOHBIBZEER

liabilities by reportable segments. BESN-
Segment assets PHEE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok
Provision of piped Gas Fuel HEZEEBERR 826,846 1,045,350
Transportation, distribution E o 98Nl s
and retail of bottled LPG ZEREAER 133,489 139,953
Total segment assets DEEEBLE 960,335 1,185,303
Unallocated RH B 521,429 345,072
Consolidated assets IREBE 1,481,764 1,530,375
Segment liabilities PHAE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Provision of piped Gas Fuel HEEBEMR 189,207 244,157
Transportation, distribution B o iH MR E
and retail of bottled LPG ZEREAHER 24,781 20,685
Total segment liabilities HEEEETE 213,988 264,842
Unallocated RO 275,129 563,395
Consolidated liabilities meafE 489,117 828,237
HRERERA

2009-20105F 8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DHMEH (&)

Segment liabilities (Continued) PMEE (&)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and RABEERSERERRDEREDBEE

allocating resources between segments: IR

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other — BREREDE REBEAaER Al
than investment properties, interests in associates, LESREE RTEHERRASU
available-for-sale financial assets, bank balances and RERIBLBEEIN IBEE
cash and assets used jointly by reportable segments. ENRTEEHmDEL -

-~ all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - KBHEAG RITEE TBREKRE
other than tax liabilities, bank borrowings, convertible B EEHEAEREHRD HBHER
notes, deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for which EREZBEIN FIEABEESET
reportable segments are jointly liable. EE2WmoE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. ZHMER (&)
Other segment information Hit o HER
Transportation,
Provision of distribution and
piped Gas Fuel retail of bottled LPG Unallocated Consolidation
For the year ended 31 March HZ3ANALEE HEEERR BR AHREESERLARS KB B8
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT it BETT BT BETT AETT BETT BETT
Amounts included in measure HEDED:SIES
of segment profit or PREERGRZEH
segment assets
Depreciation Vit 9,921 15,058 3,601 3,188 4,512 1,986 18,034 20,232
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HENF HE R
plant and equipment a2 EE (kR) 2,113 787 (198) 3 (8) - 1,907 790
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments ~ E$EEMTS 649 569 233 232 - - 882 801
Amortisation of intangible assets BHEREE 4,699 4,867 517 515 - - 5,216 5,382
Impairment loss recognised in respect ERESREtERFUE
of trade and other receivables BAZRERR 231 755 309 - 19,994 2,533 20,534 3,088
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in B 3% % Rt MFE
respect of trade and other receivables R REEERE (33) (25) - (7) (398) - (431) (32
(Gain) loss on fair value changes RENELTEESZ
of investment properties (k&) EE (1,160) 454 - - - - (1,160) 454
Capital expenditure in respect BEEMASZEREY
of prepaid lease payments 5,707 4,639 - 699 - - 5,707 5,338
Capital expenditure in respect BEN% BERREL
of property, plant and equipments BRAY 127,333 172,552 5,797 1,668 22,406 1,449 155,536 175,669
Capital expenditure in respect of intangible BBEHZEZ
assets BRRR 995 - - - - - 995 -
Deposits paid for property, plant and wE BER
equipments RELFEE 4,321 1,902 570 581 - - 4,891 2,483
Discount on acquisition of addition WENBAR
interests in a subsidiary BIMER 2 TR - (216) - = - = - (216)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised i~ 2t ERZR 2
respect of earthquake HESERD - (65,002) - = - = - (65,002)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR NS (257,189) = - - - - (257,189) -
Loss on disposal of an associate HEBENFER - - - - - 1,459 - 1,459
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM ~ EH R FE 24}
but not included in the measure of REREBHES BEA
segment profit or loss or segment assets B EHH HEEE
B RZEE
Interest in associates REEN A ER 32,784 50,352 - = 30,863 5,990 63,647 56,342
Share result of associates EEBENREE (7,046) (1,925) - - 2,482 (3.27) (4,564) (5,196)
Bank interest income RITFSMA (882) (540) (139) (49) (528) (826) (1,549) (1,415)
Finance cost I an 2814 768 853 5,616 8,426 6,885 12,093
Income tax expense FERRAX 18,603 8,101 1,645 3,945 - - 20,248 12,046
HRERERAT

2009-20105F 8



SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8.

Geographical information

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

The Group’s operations and non-current assets are all
located in the PRC. Accordingly, no geographical information

is presented.

Information about major customers

No information about major customer is presented as no
single customer contributed over 10% of the total turnover
of the Group during the years ended 31 March 2010 and

oEEM (&)
B &R

AEBZEENFERDEEDMUNTE -

Bt - I £ 2 513 (& B K o

FREIEFEFZER

A& 220104 KX200943 A31H Ik F
EHESE - XFRASEERA10%Z
WEETE MW EZIEREERFZE

20009. e
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. HMEEWA
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok v
Bank interest income SRITF B HLA 1,549 1,415
Other loan interest income H B RA B WA 1,820 =
Gain on fair value changes WEMERNFEES W
of investment properties 1,160 -
Exchange gain, net [ H Yz FEE 97 =
Dividend income A% B Uk A 1 362
Rental income from investment KEYMERS KA
properties, net of outgoing (Note a) Wk H (Hata) 291 253
Other rental income, net of outgoing ~ HE MW A
(Note b) MBS (HaEb) 835 88
Government grants (Note c) BFmEE (M) 2,186 -
Sales of gas appliance: HEMARE:
- Income — A 4,267 5,506
— Cost of sales —HEKAR (3,486) (4,217)
781 1,289
LPG cylinders trains rental, BibABRBEEESERE -
net of outgoing (Note d) RS (FsEd) 237 147
Waiver of trade payables B 5 e RIE 1,333 =
Reversal of impairment loss recognised & L2 5 & E i & 4g 7118
in respect of trade and other R BEEBEERD
receivables 431 32
Others Hh, 645 547
11,376 4,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

OTHER OPERATING INCOME (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount represents net rental income generated from
investment properties after deducting direct operating
expenses of approximately HK$15,000 (2009: HK$13,000).

The amount represents net rental income generated from
other assets after deducing direct operating expenses of
approximately HK$44,000 (2009: HK$26,000).

The amount represents unconditional grants from the
PRC government specifically for encouraging the Group’s
business development in Fujian Province, the PRC and one-off
government grant for the Group's enlarged investment in a
subsidiary.

The amount represents net rental income generated from LPG
cylinders trains after deducting direct operating expenses of
approximately HK$73,000 (2009: HK$33,000).

9.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

FAMBRERME HE2010F3A318LFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

10. XEERF

AERRMNEINER ISR

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok
Staff costs, including directors’ and ETHRA BIEESEK
management’s emoluments EEEMS
— Salaries, wages, allowances and —&He T& FMKEY
benefits in kind Ik 52,077 48,251
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIRAE FIFT 84 5K
contributions 2,335 2,587
— Equity-settled share-based — iR A E R A A
payments ANE - 1,666
54,412 52,504
Cost of inventories recognised as BRERI 2 FEKAE
expenses 464,763 426,376
Auditor’s remuneration Z B ED BN & 1,800 1,800
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BERZETE
equipment 18,034 20,232
Amortisation of prepaid lease BiHTENES
payments 882 801
Amortisation of intangible assets HHELEE 5,216 5,382
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE¥W%E  WME MR EEIE
equipment 1,907 790
Loss on fair value changes of KEMERNTFEES 2 EE
investment properties - 454
Exchange loss, net bE 5 B 1R - HEE - 866
Share of tax of associates (included in  JE{RE¢& QA FHIE (BT A
share of results of associates) JE(EEE & N R HE4E) 1,157 4,438
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

11. REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS

RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF
EARTHQUAKE

On 12 May 2008, there was an earthquake with a
magnitude of 8.0 on the Richter scale struck Wenchuan
area of Sichuan Province, the PRC (the “5.12 Earthquake”).
The urban and rural areas of Bei Chuan County, Mian Zhu
City and Han Wang Town, where certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries are located, were affected. In the 5.12
Earthquake, a considerable portion of assets and operating
facilities of wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group namely
as Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural Gas Co., Ltd.; Mian
Zhu City Hong Sen Natural Gas Co., Ltd.; Mian Zhu City
Long Teng Gas Installation Co., Ltd.; Yan Ting Zhongmin
Natural Gas Co., Ltd. and Bei Chuan County Zhongmin Gas
Co., Ltd. in Mianzhu City, Han Wang Town, and Bei Chuan
County, Sichuan Province were seriously damaged and there
were casualties among the staff and families, which caused
material disruption to the operation of the supply of Gas
Fuel and gas pipeline connection business.

Meanwhile, certain assets of Chongging Zhongmin Gas
Co., Ltd. and Xi‘an Zhongmin (collectively referred to as
the “Affected Neighbouring Companies”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group located in Chongqging City and Yan
Liang District, Xi‘an City, both surrounding Sichuan Province,
respectively were also damaged during the 5.12 Earthquake.

11.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
e P EMRME B E2010F3A31HIEFE

11. REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS

RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF
EARTHQUAKE (Continued)

The 5.12 Earthquake has brought serious loss of staff and
assets to the Group. In particular, the operating facilities
in Mian Zhu City Hang Wan Natural Gas Co., Ltd. And Bei
Chuan County Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd., both are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, in Hanwang Town
and Bei Chuan County were severely damaged. After the
5.12 Earthquake, the Company has been actively engaged
in rescue relief, digging, clean-up works and evaluation of
asset loss. Upon a period of consolidation of the result of the
clean up operations, the Company estimates that the 5.12
Earthquake has caused the Company a direct loss of assets
of approximately HK$214,920,000. A reversal of impairment
loss of HK$65,002,000 in respect of the Sichuan Companies
was then recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2009
based on the valuation report issued by Assets Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected to the Group.

The recoverable amount of the Sichuan Companies,
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
of the Sichuan Companies (the “Valued Assets”) has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by Group’s management covering a
5-year period, and discount rate of 14.14%. This discount
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the growth rate of 4% - 75% for the
relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross profit margin
of a range from 29% to 71%, such estimation is based
on the past performance of the Sichuan Companies and
management’s expectations for the market development.
Management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the Valued Assets
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the Valued
Assets.
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EBNNT29%E71% 2 EFR  GRE
SFREBEEINI ARz BAERBERERERE
HMigER 2 BHEL AEEEREHE
B ANZERZLBEAAL 2 EEE
PETEEHEHEEECEEAES
RZEEHEEE 2 IKE &% -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

11. REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS M. ERERIZBESERD
RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF (%])
EARTHQUAKE (Continued)
The reversal of impairment loss for the Sichuan Companies in P9Il A R A fE5.1240 & 2 B E B 18 E
respect of the 5.12 Earthquake was recognised as follows: RN :
Reversal of
impairment
loss for

the year ended
31 March 2009

HZ2009F
3A31BALFE
WEEERR
HK$'000
ok e
Property, plant and equipment M- RE k&G 61,024
Prepaid lease payments ERNES 3,100
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b FE WK 8
Inventories FE 870
65,002
As of the date of these consolidated financial statements, Rt FReBmETE R  REBEW
the Group has neither received nor been entitled to A L5 B A A WCER R B AR BR 2 R ST
receive any compensation from the insurance companies ZEMBEE - EERA RBmERRRIE
or government. The directors are of the opinion that the (] 37 4% (5.1 240 B2 iy 48 B AE fa] & K 2k A
Group had no significant contingent liabilities and capital BEREARNEE-
commitment arising from the 5.12 Earthquake at the end of
the reporting period.
R ERARA

2009-20105F 8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 122. EERSHREEEMS

MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the directors of the Company for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange and Section 161 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, is analysed as follows:

(a) EEME

B P £ AR R R E S R B R D)
FI6VRPIRE NRAREERNASF
EzMEeomT:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Directors' fee in kind  contributions emoluments
Fe RER RAER
EEHe ENFR BE K B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BETL BB BEFT
For the year ended HZ2010F3A310 1L 5%
31 March 2010
Executive directors: WITES:
Xu Ruixin R - - - -
Mo Shikang RitfR - 1,772 41 1,813
Zhu Peifeng KR = 1,738 48 1,786
Zhang Hesheng R4 = 1,738 48 1,786
Jin Song I = 977 32 1,009
Chu Kin Wang, Peleus RER - 1,090 12 1,102
Independent non-executive By FEHITESE :
directors:
Liu Junmin ZI%R 130 - - 130
Tan Qinglian EERE = = - -
Sin Ka Man BER B 140 - - 140
270 7,315 181 7,766

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

12. DIRECTORS’' AND SENIOR 12. EERGREEEME (&)
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM< (E)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
Directors' fee in kind  contributions emoluments
§é 2HR BHREF
ok BN T BB R B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETL BRI BETL BETT
For the year ended HZE2009F3 8310 LEFE
31 March 2009
Executive directors: HITESE:
Xu Ruixin RImE - - - -
Mo Shikang Bt - 1,745 41 1,786
Zhu Peifeng KIERE - 1,844 41 1,885
Zhang Hesheng KA A& - 1,711 41 1,752
Jin Song 1 - 941 32 973
Wong Ching - Note (a) FH Ktz (a) - 688 - 688
Chu Kin Wang, Peleus - K% i (b)
Note (b) - 490 4 494

e

Independent non-executive B FFHITEE:

directors:
Liu Junmin ZER 130 - = 130
Tan Qinglian B - - - -
Sin Ka Man AR 140 - - 140
270 7,419 159 7,848
Notes: Bt &
(a) resigned on 1 December 2008 (@) PA2008F12A1H BT
(b)  appointed on 1 December 2008 (b) TFA2008%F12A1BEZE
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any EEMENREXREREZEEMNEAE
emoluments paid by the Group. No emoluments was B2 & - & Z=20104F %2009
paid to the directors of the Company as an inducement FIANBIEMEEE - AR A E
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation MEEXNAEMME  ERESH
for loss of office during the two years ended 31 March MAREESHRMAREFE 2 8
2010 and 2009. B skBERIR 2 fh1E -
R ERARA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 12. EEREREEEME (&)
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) ElUEESHFMAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, FA &= 5 A £ 236 (20094 :
all (2009: all) are directors whose emoluments are ) AEE EMESERK =T
disclosed in Note 12(a). 12(a) A #: 55 ©
None of the five highest paid individuals waived or T GmHFMA TS ERESRE
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group. BEEAAREEZ G2 B =
No emoluments was paid to the five highest paid 20104 &% 200943 A31H Lk {EF
individuals of the Group as an inducement to join or B ARRAHERAER AU RS
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of FMALTZRHEMBE  (ERRE
office during the two years ended 31 March 2010 and EMAXREESRMAREEF 2
2009. RENBERR 2 fhE -
13. FINANCE COSTS 13. AR A
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest on convertible notes AR E & 2 H 8 650 3,120
Interest on other loans (Note 31) BEaEH2FE (ME31) 279 272
Interest on bank loans wholly ERAFABEERE ZRTT
repayable within five years ERF A 10,761 19,209
Interest on bank loans wholly AN A& BEHEE 2R
repayable after five years B 8 2,030 807
13,720 23,408
Less: amount capitalised in B ERIRENEEEE
construction in progress (Note) (BsE) (6,865) (11,315)
6,855 12,093
Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 6.53% Ma: BEEKRABEREF6.53%E8.21%
—8.21% per annum (2009: 6.53% to 8.21%). (20094 :6.53% £8.21% ) 2 B X &
N A

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FiIBHAX
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax: B HA R IR

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —EENEHR - -
— Overprovision in prior years — B EBEEE - (757)
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B EMER 23,103 13,560
— Overprovision in prior years —BAFEBEEE (2,137) =

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 34): REHIBEE (MH5E34)
— Current year —KRFEE (718) (757)
20,248 12,046

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made since
the Group had no assessable profit for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 2009.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards except for
entities that are entitled to different concessionary tax rates
as disclosed below.

B 7N & B & 220104 &£ 200943 A31
B 1 F fE 3 48 (o] JB AR B0k ) - g F 1
0 {R] B 7 A 1S B HE 4 o

BEFEARLMBECEMSE ([1H
(B HE]) REEMSHREEEIK
Bl -BRTIXFIEREEETREERE T
BESN - FR20084E1 A1H#E R B A R
ZHEF25% o

TRERERA
2009-2010%F
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SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 L FE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to
an exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the first
two years commencing from their first profit-making year
of operation and thereafter, these PRC subsidiaries will
be entitled to a 50% relief from PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the following three years (“2+3" tax preference).
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates applicable to these
subsidiaries range from 15% to 25% (2009: 15% to 25%)
and the reduced tax rates for the relief period range from
7.5% to 12.5% (2009: 7.5% to 12.5%). The charge of
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the years has been provided
for after taking these tax incentives into account. The tax
benefit will expire during the period from year 2008 to
2012.

On 26 December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
a circular on the implementation of transitional preferential
policies for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax. Entities that are
currently entitled to preferential tax rates under the old
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law can gradually transit to the
new tax rate of 25% within 5 years after the enforcement
of the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law at a tax rate
of 18%, 20%, 22%, 24% and 25% in year 2008, 2009,
2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively. Entities that originally
enjoy the “2+3" tax preference can continue enjoying the
tax preference based on the original tax rate until after the
expiration of the tax preference. Entities that did not start
“2+3" tax preference before 2008 because they were still in
loss position shall start the “2+3" tax preference from 2008.

According to the EIT Law, the profits of the PRC subsidiary
of the Company derived since 1 January 2008 will be subject
to withholding tax at a rate of 5% upon the distribution of
such profits to foreign investors incorporated in Hong Kong,
or at a rate of 10% for other foreign investors. The Group
determined that no deferred tax on withholding tax liabilities
shall be recognised since no significant distributable profit
was derived by the PRC subsidiary from 1 January 2008.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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14. FRIEHAX (&)

BREFBEEBERERER  NARETH
BB AR RSB LS T FERNFEEE
RPBRNPBECEMSHME  MEE=
FZEPEKE QR B EER R HA50%
FREMEMER ([243] REER) @
ARZENB AR 2 PR EMGH X
H15%%25% (20094 : 15% & 25% ) T~
£ MERBEZZERERENT7.5%
£12.5% (20095 : 7.5% & 12.5% ) ° A
BRFEAN2HBIMEMEHZE T
AL EHBERMELBE  HBERS
20084 E2012F HARE B 8 -

M2007F 128268 @ 7 B B 7% BT 58 1 RE

AERE B EAMEHAEERERARE
M- EERRRBEMBHET BAIA
BB EN RGN s BERN TP B
FIB A B mEBSF AR L BEZE R E
25% ' £20084F ~ 20094 + 20104 - 2011
FR2012F 2 FHED B £18% - 20%
22% 24%K%25% R ARZ B [2+3] Fi
HKEBCZERBIREREMREREE=ZH
MEER EEEEHRAL AREE
A MAE2008F A R R E ST [2+3] B 75
BENER €712008FHBETT [2+3]
AEE -

RIBREMBFEL IR EBFMALZ
BOMEEEREMBEINEEEDIRAR
a AR B BB A Bl F120084F1 A 1 B #E B EX
2m FE - ZBD B EARS % &% 10% 2 T8 1
oMM B AR 52008618 1H
LA R NI 488 Fik B {] P] 8 2 A R 0 R s )
WAEEREDARIBETWNEBENR
BEZREERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

15.

HEVBRERME BE201083A31HILFE

4. FREHAX (&)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FEEHEWAREK 2 EMNERERE 2T
the profit per the consolidated statements of comprehensive SHAZHERENAT
income as follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Profit before tax B 75 A e A 330,006 51,283
Tax calculated at the statutory tax B TER T 25% (20094 :
rate of 25% (2009: 25%) 25%)FtE 2 IR 82,501 12,820
Tax effect of share of results of DIREEE RN R EE 2
associates W2 (1,141) (1,299)
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBUA 2 B iF &
for tax purpose (65,077) (18,639)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A 0% 52 H 2 B 76 57 22
for tax purpose 8,075 8,951
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised & FHERTIBARFIE 2
Mg & 4,042 13,849
Tax effect of 50% income tax relief BB R R IER50% FT 1S 1
granted to subsidiaries BEZUMBETE (6,099) (2,602)
Tax effect of exemption granted to M E A B R AT 2
subsidiaries % - (1,962)
Effect of different tax rate of B AR TRME 2 &
subsidiaries (84) 1,685
Overprovision for prior years BEFEEBRE (2,137) (757)
Income tax expense for the year REZREHAEX 20,248 12,046

PROFIT/LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS

OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners dealt with in the statement of
comprehensive income of the Company is HK$256,668,000

(2009: loss of HK$32,002,000).

15. AR REHABMLEEFR, BB

AARZEBARKEANRE Z BB AJE
1l 3% | A& 78 #256,668,0007T (20094 :
B85 #32,002,0007T ) ©

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F
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SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

16. DIVIDEND 16.

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2010, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period (2009: nil).

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:

BE

R2010F AW ES N ZE I MBS
BEREHRUARDTEEZZ I FEMEE
(20094 : )

BRER

ARE A ANEBESRERNRER THIEAR

REVRE AR E R RREND B
TR BR 2 MR B E -

FREARRESERNTHIE T HI BB HE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Earnings EF
Profit for the year attributable to RNRREE A E R &N
owners of the Company 300,614 35,902

Number of shares

g q=

Shares iz 4

Weighted average number of ordinary & & & % E 2 & 858 &K 5| Fr
shares in issue during the year used FRHZFANEBITEBER
in the basic and diluted earnings per hniE 15 £
share calculation

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2009 do not assume the conversion of the
Company's outstanding convertible notes as their exercise
would result in an increase in earnings per share for year
ended 31 March 2009.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company's share options because
the exercise price of those share options were higher than
the average market price of the Company’s share for year
ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

The basic and the diluted earnings per share are the same.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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4,082,224,554 4,082,260,718

HZE2009F3A31H EFEESREERF
2t E R R AN D B K R E R 2 Al R
IR E g - T Al AR R i E E
HZE2009F3A31 B ILFE 2 BIREF|E
hne

ERBERFZAETBBEEARE Z
BRREETE AREERECITFEES
RARBRHREZE2010%F %2009%3 A
BMBEFEZFEHTME-

BRERNREERNAR -



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
REMBRRME HE201063A31AILFE

18. W% -MERKRE

Buildings in Furniture,
PRC for own fixtures Plant,
use under Leasehold and office machinery Transportation  Construction
medium lease  improvements equipment  and pipeline vehicles in progress Total
PHAEET
URREZ HE &R-2ER BE H%
BRET NELE BAERE REE EREH ERIR &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RETTL BB BRI BB RETTL BETT BB
CosT RA
At 1 April 2008 R200854A1A 72,640 427 6,452 557,681 30,733 129,551 797,484
Exchange realignment EXAE 1,568 - 135 12,040 640 2,797 17,180
Additions AE 1,223 = 1,114 4,362 3,982 164,988 175,669
Transfer g3 - - - 49,826 - (49,826) -
Reclassification to investment properties BNABERENE (3,077) - - - - - (3,077)
Write-off b (5,830) = (141) (104,699) (864) (20,059) (131,593)
Disposals S (256) - (53) (966) - - (1,275)
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 2009534310 k20095418 66,268 427 7,507 518,244 34,491 227,451 854,388
Exchange realignment EfHE 216 - 24 1,684 107 741 2772
Acquired from acquisition of a jointly RELREHERNER
controlled entity 167 - 54 21 87 1 340
Additions HE 2,158 - 1,323 6,578 8,232 137,245 155,536
Transfer g2 - - - 101,761 - (101,761) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR (11,855) = (1,942) (141,984) (4,002) (123,166) (282,949)
Disposals hE - - (81) 2,737) (1,720) (330) (4,868)
At 31 March 2010 ®201063A318 56,954 427 6,885 483,567 37,195 140,191 725,219
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND RAFERAEES
[MPAIRMENT LOSS
At 1 April 2008 R200854A18 15,071 191 1,663 211,035 6,672 21,075 255,707
Exchange realignment R 329 - 35 4,622 135 455 5,576
Provided for the year REERRE 2,521 85 1,031 12432 4163 - 20,232
Reclassification to investment properties ENARZRENE (170) - - - - - (170)
Write-off i (5,830) = (141) (104,699) (864) (20,059) (131,593)
Eliminated on disposal HERHE (52) = (28) (62) = = (142)
Reversal of impairment loss RESEER (8,095) - (127) (49,721) (1,610) (1,471) (61,024)
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 7200934318 k200954418 3,774 276 2,433 73,607 8,496 - 88,586
Exchange realignment ERHRE 17 - 9 261 32 - 319
Provided for the year TEERE 2,726 85 874 9,867 4482 - 18,034
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A R (1,523) = (991) (11,433) (1,886) = (15,833)
Eliminated on disposal HERHH - - (72) 212) (973) = (1,257)
At 31 March 2010 #2010%3A318 4,994 361 2,253 72,090 10,151 = 89,849
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2010 ®201063A318 51,960 66 4,632 41,477 27,044 140,191 635,370
At 31 March 2009 #®200963A31H 62,494 151 5,074 444,637 25,995 227,451 765,802
PRERERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 L FE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥ -MERRZE (&)

(Continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately HK$11,005,000
(2009: HK$16,336,000) were pledged to secure bank loans
granted to the Group (Note 32).

The official property title certificates for certain of the
Group’s buildings with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$9,726,000 (2009: HK$9,989,000) in aggregate have not
yet been issued by the relevant local government authorities.
The directors are of the opinion that the Group's right and
interest in such buildings will not be therefore severely
prejudiced.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of 40 years or
the operation period of the
relevant company

Over the shorter of the terms
of the leases, or 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment

Plant, machinery and
pipeline

Transportation vehicles

Leasehold improvements

2.5% - 20%

12.5% - 20%

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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MR2010F3A31H  AEBYE -BEK
& 478 %11,005,0007T (20094 : /B
16,336,0007T) B FEBEAK TAEE
RITE R ER ([7E32) °

AEEFREES £45%9,726,0007T
(20094 : 7#1%9,989,0007T) 2 & THEF
AREMREE M F BT L IER Y
EEZ-BEZRE AEERZREEFY
AR EST AT FRERE-

DS R R A T A BRI
oI

s 40FHBEARZ
REHAR (LAREE
BAE)

MEMERE HEHRNKSF (UK
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

19. REYE

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Investment properties, AAFEINEZREDE
stated at fair value
At 1 April MR4H1H 11,458 8,370
Exchange realignment ME 3, 58 B 38 181
Reclassification from property, plant M- BB k&
and equipment BHHHE - 2,907
Revaluation surplus upon M- BB MR EERN
reclassification from property, plant DR EHAK
and equipment - 454
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEKTE AR (MisE38) (5,632) =
Increase (decrease) in fair value NFEEE N CR L) 1,160 (454)
At 31 March M3HA318 7,024 11,458
Detail of geographical KEYMEZHEME RFH
locations and tenure of IR :
investment properties were:
PRC - leases between 10 and 50 years HE—FEEH 105 £504F 7,024 11,458

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2010 and 2009 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that day by Asset Appraisal Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a member of
the Institutes of Valuers, and has appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. The valuation, which conforms
to International Valuation Standards, was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the same locations and conditions.

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of three to eight years,
with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

MR20108F 2009463 A31H  AEEKRE
MEZAFEDRBE LG EREEMN
EREEETEEMERAR (HAAREE
WERME)EZBAETZHEST -BE
FEEBRERARAEBIEMES
S8 WEAHEEEW RN AE B
B2 BEUMEETHECLR BRERFE
Bl EEAEIT 2B TTRBEMLR
HERE RARAER 2 BUME RS
BRzMEEEERED-

AEERBEEHELHEE TRED S
RNHRBE=FEN\FIF AEELE
MERGRES - ARERANLERE
FEAFAEARDRES WASEEREE
Rz MERREUAATFERAGFE I
DEB/WEMEALK-

TRERERA
2009-2010%F
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. BREYE (&)

At 31 March 2010, the Group's investment properties MR2010F3A31H AEEEREYME
amounting to approximately HK$4,665,000 (2009: #)7%5 #4,665,0007T (2009F : B ¥
HK$11,458,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted 11,458,0007T) B FHRIFIEAR T AEE
to the Group (Note 32). RITE R ER (H7E32) ©

MEAAAERERAES - REZE2010
FIANBIUEFE - REKREYWEZBHA
& W A %) 5 78 #306,0007T (20094 : 78
#266,0007T ) °

20. A E

None of the leases include contingent rentals. During
the year ended 31 March 2010, the gross rental income
from investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$306,000 (2009: HK$266,000).

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ok v
Cost BN
At 1 April R481H 42,133 36,016
Exchange realignment P 5 58 & 135 779
Additions NE 5,707 5,338
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEKTE AR (HsE38) (13,883) =
At 31 March M3 H318 34,092 42,133
Amortisation and impairment loss B NORERE
At 1 April R4R1H 3,637 5,809
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 10 127
Charge for the year NEE N 882 801
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HE W B A E (MfFE38) (629) =
Reversal of impairment loss PERIEN SEi=ECE] - (3,100)
At 31 March W3A318 3,900 3,637
Carrying values RHEE 30,192 38,496
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LR E /DI
Current portion BN ER &L & 699 814
Non-current portion JERNEREB 29,493 37,682
30,192 38,496
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

21.

The amounts represented medium-term land use rights in
the PRC and are amortised over the terms of the respective
land use rights on a straight-line basis.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments with carrying values
of approximately HK$9,984,000 (2009: HK$10,174,000)
represent interest in land use rights in respect of which
official land use certificate have not yet been issued by
relevant local government authorities. The directors are of
the opinion that the Group’s rights and interest in respect of
such land lots will not be therefore severely prejudiced.

At 31 March 2010, the Group's prepaid lease payments
amounting to approximately HK$16,235,000 (2009:
HK$22,415,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted
to the Group (Note 32).

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

20. FEMNEE (&)

ZECBRERNTBEZP YL ERE I
NEREREB L EREZFHTIA

7N = (8] BR T (B 4975 159,984,000t (2009
& 5 #10,174,0000) 2 FEM A& R K
P Hb(E FARE 2 HEss - AE R 5 BR T L RE
MABELEBER T HERES -BER
B REBPRZSMIR 2 A EER TS
A 22 @mEERE -

MR2010F3A31H A&EBZEMNA
% 4975 %16,235,0007T (20094 : /& #&
22,415,0007T) BE FHEBIEAR TASE
RITE R ER (FH7E32) °

GOODWILL 1. B5E&
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost BN
At 1 April R4A18 218,967 216,039
Acquisition of a jointly controlled Wk RS E 88
entity (Note 24) (FF5E24) 2,799 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 38) HEKTB AR (MzE38) (79,041) =
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 453 2,928
At 31 March M3HA318 143,178 218,967
Impairment B
At 1 April R4H1R 49,902 48,847
Exchange realignment & 3 & 163 1,055
At 31 March M3H318 50,065 49,902
Carrying values AREE
At 31 March M3H318 93,113 169,065
HRERERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

FAMBRERME HE2010F3A318LFE

21. GOODWILL (Continued) 21. 58 (&)
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more REBEGFRAPERE  HNENRE
frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be R B EIR(E - BIE SBERAIRE -
impaired.
The management considers each subsidiary and jointly E.ﬁm HEERENERMES X
controlled entities represents a separate cash-generating {OPEER/N HEZESEERE— 1.?%4
unit (“CGU") for the purpose of goodwill impairment Zﬁﬁﬁ@iﬁh(fﬁ%%iﬁuﬂ o
testing. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying HEHR ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁigﬁl&ﬁ%?
value of goodwill mainly represents goodwill arising from FIMB AR, EEHEEEEZEE:
the acquisitions of following subsidiaries/jointly controlled
entities:
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Fujian Province An Ran Gas Investment 1REE X ARAMRILE
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries BRATRENERA A
(“Fujian An Ran Group”) ([BELAEE]) 82,267 161,044
Yunnan Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd. EEFRMRAEBRAA 8,047 8,021
Long Yan City Changning Gas Co., Ltd REETSEMRBAR AR
(“Long Yan Changning”) ([BEEE=E]) 2,799 =
93,113 169,065

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

21. GOODWILL (Continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from
value—in-use calculations based on the cashflow forecast of
the relevant CGUs. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to selling price and direct costs
during the period. Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectation of future changes in the market.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management for the next 5 years on
an estimated growth pattern at growth rates between 6% to
59% (2009: 6% to 59%) and a discount rate of 13% (2009:
12%). The financial budgets and growth rates are estimated
according to the stage of each operation with reference to
the development curve of the natural gas industry in the PRC
region. This pattern is consistent with the track record of the
Group's projects.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

1. B8 (&)

ReELEMZAIKRESEIERBBR
CEABUZHASRERAZAERER
BEMEE AHEEREEMRAZEE
BRAHANZEHBEIHRE ERE.
EEMEERAZEEE - ERENA
ARBRMZHEREEEEARRESE
B 2 E B B 2 BT Al RO BR A A A R
KIGFTRER R - B R R AIRITRE RN
REE - EBNERKAZEFEH IR
BEEPRERTIS ARESH/EE -

HE2010F3A31BLFE - AEE TR
BEEIEBRANRSFEL 2 AR EK
TBE A1 K E6%ZE59% (20094 : 6%
£59% ) K& BhiTE &K13% (20094 : 12% )
HE B REX GRS RETANA - B K
THERERERESEBZBE &2
PR ERARITEZZE R RIEL G
FreERAEASEIER 2 FE 2

TRERERA
2009-2010%F




FAMBHRERME HE2010F3A318LFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

22. B EE

Exclusive Exclusive

rights of rights of
purchase operations Total
BRRBEEFN BREELEAR &ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T

(Note a) (Note b)

(Mtzta) (Mt5EDb)

COST B
At 1 April 2008 7R2008%F4 A1H 12,282 138,670 150,952
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 295 2,783 3,078
At 31 March 2009 and 720093 318 &

1 April 2009 2009F 4 A1H 12,577 141,453 154,030
Acquisition of a jointly Wi R4 ) B 88

controlled entity - 14,587 14,587
Additions NE - 995 995
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWE QA

(Note 38) (Ff5E38) - (55,063) (55,063)
Exchange realignment P 5+ 3E & 37 468 505
At 31 March 2010 720103 H31H 12,614 102,440 115,054

AMORTISATION AND o ORE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2008 7R2008F4 A1H = 8,370 8,370
Charge for the year AEE M 515 4,867 5,382
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 1 6 7
At 31 March 2009 and 720093 318 &

1 April 2009 2009F 4 A 1H 516 13,243 13,759
Charge for the year REE R 517 4,699 5,216
Disposal of subsidiaries HEME A A

(Note 38) (Kt7E38) - (5,960) (5,960)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 2 54 56
At 31 March 2010 M2010%3H31H 1,035 12,036 13,071

CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2010 K2010F3 A31H 11,579 90,404 101,983
At 31 March 2009 200943 A31H 12,061 128,210 140,271
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

23.

Notes:

a)

It represented the exclusive rights of purchase of natural gas
explored in Yanji Basin, which is located in Yanji, Long Jing
and Long City of Yan Bian Korean Nation Autonomous Area
in the eastern part of Jilin Province, from an ex-associate
— Yan Bian Hua Xin Oil Exploitation Company Limited at a
consideration of HK$12,282,000.

22.

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31BILFE

BREEE (&)

B & -

F5 [F) AT Bt 4 A B) — JE 32 1 22 37 A 0m B B
ARARRE BN S MY RIITE
BB REAMNES BEHFERERZES
BUHBEZ RATZBREBERN R
& &5 %12,282,0007T °

b) It represented the exclusive rights to operate in gas pipeline b) IEEFREETH W2 BARTES
infrastructure and provision of piped Gas Fuel granted by local MREBER R RIBHREEMRR 2B
government in various cities in the PRC for a period of 10 to RKIER BE10E604F
60 years.

c) At 31 March 2010, the Group's exclusive rights of operations 0  H2010F3A31H AEBEBRELEHE
amounting to approximately HK$23,658,000 (2009: F| 497 #23,658,0007T (20094 : 4 #&
HK$51,461,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted 51,461,0007T) B TEAERE TARE
to the Group (Note 32). BRITE R ER (KH5E32) ©

d)  All of the exclusive rights of operations and purchases are d FEBARKE RFEEEFNM0OZE60E 2
amortised on a straight-line basis over the operation period of KEHAA B REEE -

10 to 60 years.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23. REFE NI HERE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok v
Cost of unlisted investments I LTI E KA 43,072 25,722
Share of post-acquisition profits, 216 U BB 18 0 F
net of dividends (BB E 10,540 20,778
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 & 10,035 9,842
63,647 56,342
Amounts due to associates (Note 39)  JEFEf: & A A FUIE
(Kt7E39) 11,389 34,458
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest free and ERBEATRBLAERR REREAREX
repayable on demand. e (EE o

TRERERA
2009-2010%F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. REtE N TR (F)

REERRZRERARBERABE

Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of

approximately HK$8,397,000 (2009: HK$8,397,000) arising
on acquisition of associates in prior years. The movement of

FEWEBRERNRIMEEZEENBE
8,397,000 T (20094 : 7 #38,397,000

goodwill is set out below:

o) - EERBBIIMT :

HK$'000
ok
COST SN
At 1 April 2008 20084 F 18 10,013
Disposal of an associate B B A A (1,616)
At 31 March 2009, 1 April 2009 and H200943A31H 20094818 &
31 March 2010 20103 A31H 8,397
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009, M2008F4 A 1H 200943 318
1 April 2009 and 31 March 2010 20094818 &X2010F3A31H 8,397
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2010 and 2009 R20104F X 200943 A31H =

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. REtE N A= (&)

Details of the Group's associates as at 31 March 2010 and M20104F 200943 A31H ' AEE 2 Bt

2009 are as follows: /NG = g (I

Form of Place of
business  establishment Class of Group
Name of company structure  and operation shares held effective interest Principal activities
BIR
DNEER EBRBER BEfmEL BERGER rEEERER TEEH
2010 2009
BRERARRERAA ([E(LER])  Limited liability PRC Contributed 25% 49%  Sales and distribution of Gas Fuel
(Dehua Guang An Natural Gas Co., company i capital and gas pipeline construction
Ltd. (“Dehua Guang An.")) BREERA BEHER HERDHMARMREBRE
BMNEAREBMABRAR Limited liability PRC Contributed 25% 49%  Sales and distribution of Gas Fuel
(Fuzhou An Ran Ju Pipeline company # capital and gas pipeline construction
Gas Co., Ltd.) AREARA EHER HERDHMARMAEBRE
EFEZMRERAR Limited liability PRC Contributed 25% 49%  Sales and distribution of Gas Fuel
(Xiamen Jia An Gas Co., Ltd.) company H capital and gas pipeline construction
BREMFRA EHAR HERDHMARMREERE
REEH (BT)RSERAR Limited liability PRC Contributed 20% 40% Fuel gas engineering investment
(Zhongming Hai (Nanping) Gas company i capital and natural gas wholesale
Company Limited) BREERA BHER MRIBRERAARMSE
FRES (LR MRERERAA Limited liability PRC Contributed 40% 40% Participate in supply video lottery
(Zhongmin Zai Xian (Beijing) company # capital operating system and equipment in
Technology Development Limited) BREEAR EHAR the PRC
RABERESE BV EZARE

AT ELEHEREERAA Limited liability PRC Contributed 40% 40% Investing and engaging in the
(MKELF]) company H capital development of lottery software
(Shenzhen Yongheng Lecai BREEAR EHAR technology in the PRC
Technology Development Limited) RHEREREENRERETT
(“Yongheng Lecai") REME TR
PREZERERAR

2009-20105F 8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2009, one of the associates
of the Group, Zhongmin Zai Xian (Beijing) Technology
Development Limited (“Zhongmin Zai Xian”), underwent a
capital reduction. As a result, the registered share capital
of Zhongmin Zai Xian decreased from RMB30,000,000 to
RMB16,000,000 and the contributed capital by the Group
decreased from RMB12,000,000 to RMB6,400,000. The over
contribution of HK$3,815,000 (RMB3,360,000) had been
refunded to the Group during the year ended 31 March
2009 with the balance remaining in the trade and other
receivables. The balance of HK$2,552,000 (RMB2,240,000)
was received during the year ended 31 March 2010. The
Group’s share of equity interest in Zhongmin Zai Xian was
not changed after the capital reduction.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's associates is set out below:

23.

REE QT xS (&)

REE2009F3A31HILFE  AEBRH
F-XREE AR RAS (bR)BHRE
BRERAR([FRER])ETEXRHE
BeE FREZFKZFMEARABAR
#£30,000,0007T & = A R #16,000,000
T MmMASBEEHZERABARK
12,000,0007T 3 = A R #6,400,0007T
REE2009F3A31HILFE 28z
%55 13,815,000t ( A K #3,360,000
TT)EREAREE SRENEINEBEH R
HabfEWFIEE T - REE2010F3 A3
BHIEFE #2585 %2,552,000T (AR
#2,240,0007T ) BB e REEEEF R
ERZBEREREIREREZEES-

AEEBERR W BERBRMT :

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT ok

Total assets BEERE 317,819 229,572

Total liabilities SRk (110,909) (112,618)

Net assets EESE 206,910 116,954
Group's share of net assets of N B EAL B E R A

associates EEFE 63,647 56,342

Revenue WA 146,257 114,023

Profit for the year N4 S 5 21,184 1,930
Group's share of results of RNEBEGE 2 QA

associates for the year NS 4,564 5,196
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
RERBRRME BE2010638318 L5

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23. REtE A rlfE=R (&)
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of losses EAEEEGEBRE AR ZEBEEEBAR
of an associate since the Group's share of losses in that REFE RBI PG 2R MASRERRIE
associate has exceeded its interest in that associate. The EREE(hZEE QR ZEE - AFE R
amounts of unrecognised share of that associate, extracted ZETEMBE AR o AR (Fk 8
from the relevant unaudited management account of the REBEBERAGHEEBRCEZEEER)
Group's associate, both for the year and cumulatively, are as R
follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Unrecognised share of losses of KEEFRE(GEERT 2
an associate for the year RHERE B 260 437
Accumulated unrecognised share of RETEMLEE AR Z
losses of an associate AIEREE 697 437
24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. AHEIEHERZRE
ENTITIES
As at 31 March 2010, the Group had interests in the R2010%3 8318 AEBR A EE H
following significant jointly controlled entities: FEH EEHEE &
Proportion
of nominal

value of  Paid-in capital

Form of Place of paid-in capital effectively
business establishment Class of directly held held by
Name of company structure and operation shares held by the Group  Fujian An Ran Principal activities
rEEEE
B K FEZEM BEZARKR
ARER *RRBEA BEFREL BERGER READELH BEZEARE TEEH
BRERAREREERAA Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% N/A Investment holding
([BERRA) company F BHER (Note a) TiER REER
(“Fujian Province An Ran Gas BREAAR (FizFa)
Investment Co., Ltd.")
("Fujian An Ran")
DERARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Sha County An Ran Gas company H BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Co., Ltd.") BREARA HERRRERMAEBRT

TRERERAE
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SREMBERRME L Z201063 8318 LFE

24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, REREHERBZKRE (&)
ENTITIES (Continued)

Proportion
of nominal
value of  Paid-in capital

Form of Place of paid-in capital effectively
business establishment Class of directly held held by
Name of company structure and operation shares held by the Group  Fujian An Ran Principal activities
rEEER
RIR BEZEH  BERARR
DAER EBERTA BEfiEL BERGER READELH BEZEHRE TEEY
BEGEZARRBERAR Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Jiangle County An Ran company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Gas Co., Ltd.") BEREARA HERRRERMREERD
BNFAREREZATEMIERAR*  Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Fuzhou Development Area Futie An company 3 BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Ran Pipe Gas Co., Ltd.") BREMFAT HERAREZMRRE BRI
BFRARRERAR* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Nanping An Ran Gas Co., Ltd.") company HE BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREEAT HERIRERAREERD
REZARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Changle An Ran Gas Co., Ltd.") company F BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
AREEAT HERRRERMREERD
KERAEERRAERAA Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 46% 90% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Yong'an An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company 3 BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
AREEAF HERRRERMREERIE
BRMZARTERAR Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 13% 26% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Fuding City An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company HE BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREEAT HERIRERAREERD
EERARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Long Yan An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
AREEAT HERRRERMREERD
ERZAEERRAERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Luoyuan An Ran Pipeline company 3 BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Gas Co. Ltd") AREEAF HERRRERMREERIE
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24, REREHERBZKRE (&)
ENTITIES (Continued)

Proportion
of nominal
value of  Paid-in capital

Form of Place of paid-in capital effectively
business establishment Class of directly held held by
Name of company structure and operation shares held by the Group  Fujian An Ran Principal activities
rEEER
RIR BEZEH  BERARR
DAER EBERTA BEfiEL BERGER READELH BEZEHRE TEEY
BNFERZAREERAF Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Fuzhou Development Area An company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Ran Gas Co. Ltd") BEREARA HERRRERMREERD
BENZAMAERAR* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Zhangzhou An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company 3 BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREARA HERRRERMREERIE
EIRARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Lianjiang An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company HE BHEXR of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREEAT HERRRERMAE BRI
RERZARRBRAA Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Mingging Guang An Natural company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Gas Co. Ltd") BREARA HERRRERMREERD
EERRARABRAR* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 26% 51% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Ningde An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company 3 BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREARA HERRRERMREERIE
BRRARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Zhangpu An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company HE BHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREEAT HERRRERMAEBRE
EBRARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Longhai An Ran Gas Co. Ltd") company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
BREARA HERRRERMREERD

TRERFRAR
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

24. REFZEFER 2KRE (&)

Proportion
of nominal
value of  Paid-in capital

Form of Place of paid-in capital effectively
business establishment Class of directly held held by
Name of company structure and operation shares held by the Group  Fujian An Ran Principal activities
rEEER
RIR BEZESH  BERARR
DEER EBERTA LEfiEL BERGER READELH BEZEHRE TEEY
BEZARRERAA* Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 51% 100% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
(“Nanjing An Ran Gas Co. Ltd.") company H BEHER of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
AREEAT HERRRERIMAEBR
EEMEEMABRAR" Limited liability PRC Contributed capital 38% 75% Supply of Gas Fuel and installation
("Long Yan City Changning Gas company 3 EHEKR of Gas Fuel distribution facilities
Co., Ltd.") AREEAR HERRRERMREERIE
& A subsidiary of Fujian An Ran e BREAZHERF]
Note: Bt 5

Fujian An Ran was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group and BEZAR/RTEBZEMBAR  KEIZE2010
during the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group disposed of FIANALEFE ASEERA-—BBIE=ZFH
its 49% equity interest in Fujian An Ran to an independent third HEERBERTAZA9%HE - (FFIBEE R K

party. (Details are set out in Note 38). Upon the completion of the
disposal, according to the memorandum of association of Fujian
An Ran, the Group holds 51% of the equity interest of Fujian An
Ran and 4 out of 7 directors of Fujian An Ran are appointed by the
Group. Further, 4 out of 7 shareholders’ representatives of Fujian
An Ran are appointed by the Group. Hence the Group controls
approximately 57% of the voting power in the board of directors
meeting and shareholders meeting. As all the major decisions made
in the board of directors meeting and shareholders meeting of
Fujian An Ran require at least 2/3 votes from all of the directors and
shareholders’ representatives, Fujian An Ran is accounted for as a
jointly controlled entity.
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24, INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED 24. RHEEEZEHERZRE (H)
ENTITIES (Continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REBRARZEFERB B HEE
Group’s interests in the jointly controlled entities which are BT A BRI 3 & T2 AR BlAR & ABR - 3T
accounted for using proportionate consolidation with the AManR

line-by-line reporting format is set out below:

31/3/2010

201063 AH31H

HK$'000

BET T

Current assets mEEE 79,815

Non-current assets EREBEE 442,557
Current liabilities mEAE 193,931

Non-current liabilities EREBEE 106,270

1/8/2009 to

31/3/2010

2009F8H1HZE

201053 A318

HK$'000

BT T

Income WA 196,955

Expenses il 2 113,909

TRERFRAR
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24,

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity

On 1 September 2009, Long Yan An Ran Gas Co., Ltd.
(“Long Yan An Ran”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Fujian
An Ran, acquired 75% equity interest in Long Yan City
Changning Gas Co., Ltd. (“Long Yan Changning”) at
a total consideration of RMB28,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$32,467,000).

Upon completion of the acquisition, Long Yan An Ran had
75% equity interest in Long Yan Changning, which was
thereafter accounted for as a subsidiary of Long Yan An Ran.

Long Yan Changning had contributed a profit of
HK$7,821,000 to the Group’'s profit attributable to the
owners of the Company for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2009,
total group revenue for the period would have been
approximately HK$707,661,000, and profit for the period
would have been approximately HK$313,723,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2009, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.
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24. REFZEFER 2RE (&)

WEEHEEGER

MR2009F9RA1H - BELA L2 &N B
PRAIEELERMBERAB ([EEL
RIDWEERETMEERRERAA (8
EEE])ISnRE BREAARK
28,500,0007T (HHER#E%32,467,000
JL) °

RKRBTERER BELXAREERESE
75% R HE - ﬁE % HRFIBREREEER
RZHBRA

BiE R RERENRE EEEER

AEEZAR T%EM@T&MUEEM
H) 75 #7,821,0007T °

fisi Uz B8 A2009F4A1HE TR IR &
B U A R FE &4 575 #707,661,0007T
B R 5% A 15 49 & 78 #313,723,0007T ° 18
EZERHEHSHHERS T — BRI
BBR2009F4F1HE K AEBER
ATES 2 WA RS S48 TR EAH
BESE ZTEA -
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24. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (Continued)

24. REFZEFER 2KRE (K)

WiEHEZEHER (&)

Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity
(Continued)

REBER AEEDEREEEZAH
AIEEREGBEATE URBEZEWENZ

The fair value of the identified assets and liabilities of
Long Yan Changning shared by the Group as at the date

of acquisition and the corresponding amounts immediately HHESENT :
before the acquisition were as follows:
Carrying
amount Fair value
under under
proportionate Fair value proportionate
consolidation adjustments  consolidation
LEHlZREET LHIEEET
ZIREE NP ERAER ZAY¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Property, plant and equipment ERY & 340 - 340
Intangible assets EEEE = 14,587 14,587
Inventories FE 126 = 126
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H U I 15,999 = 15,999
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRIR S 539 = 539
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMESFIE (6,102) = (6,102)
Tax liabilities MIEAE (10) = (10)
Bank borrowings RITEE (3,486) - (3,486)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBAE - (3,647) (3,647)
Net assets BEFE 7,406 10,940 18,346
Minority interest DR R S (4,587)
Goodwill Bk 2,799
Total consideration satisfied by NEeS Nz BRE
cash 16,558
Net cash outflow arising on WHEEL 2R R
acquisition: HER
Cash consideration paid ENRERKE (16,558)
Bank balances and cash acquired 2 Y88 2 SR1T
Y YS A 539
(16,019)

The goodwill is attributable to the sustainable and profitable
business model of the acquired business.

BERNAMKBEBZARERE
A AT B2 AR

TRERERA
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

25. fHHEEREE

2010 2009
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Listed securities EhmES
Listed securities listed in Hong Kong, R&ABEMZ EWES @ I%
at fair value (Note 6(b)) R FE (Ff&E6(b)) 32,137 25,521
Unlisted securities FLEHES
Equity securities, at cost (Note) MR 5 AR (M5 12,730 13,050
Impairment loss recognised EHERREREE (6,300) (6,280)
6,430 6,770
Total BEf 38,567 32,291

Note:

The unlisted investment represents investment in unlisted equity
interests in a private entity incorporated in the PRC. They are
measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant

B A -

SELETHRERNPEEMKILZTLAERZIE
EHREZIRE ARa B AT EMGTHER
R ABARREERRENFETEASE
HEHE - A BREERE PRBRARRE

that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair =
values cannot be measured reliably.
26. INVENTORIES 26. FE
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Construction materials, REMR - BB
spare parts and consumables 20,838 31,069
Gas appliances MR as A 162 247
Gas fuel, including natural gas and LPG #A (B FE KA R K
RAC A R) 5,843 3,454
26,843 34,770

A reversal of impairment loss recognised in respect of
inventories of approximately HK$870,000 has been included
in reversal of impairment loss in respect of 5.12 Earthquake
in the year ended 31 March 2009. Details are set out in Note
11.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EZ R HMEWRIA

2010 2009

HK$000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Trade and bill receivables B 5 W kI8 & R E & 29,814 16,570

Less: Impairment loss recognised B BB E B REKERIE K&

in respect of trade and EREE®ERZ

bill receivables BB E R (805) (733)

29,009 15,837

Other receivables H th & W kIR 86,111 90,079
Less: Impairment loss recognised R BB FE Y R IE

in respect of other receivables B R R EEE (23,551) (3,471)

62,560 86,608

91,569 102,445

The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods AEBGETHESEFPZEEH—

normally ranging from 30 days to 90 days and extending to BHE30EEVATE RAFER

180 days for major customers. PERZE180H -

(@) An aged analysis of the trade and bill receivables (a) BZRBFEBEREREE (RE
(net of impairment loss recognised) as at the end of R EEE) RS R RER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as AT RIBEEERHMT
follows:

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Current to 90 days ENHZE90H 18,711 13,050
91 days to 180 days 91HZ180H 6,921 1,518
Over 180 days 1808 A E 3,377 1,269
29,009 15,837

HRERERA

2009-20105F 8
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(b)

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EZ R EMEBWRKIE (&)
(Continued)
The movements in the impairment loss recognised in (b) BEREZEWFIERERZERER
respect of trade and bill receivables are as follows: ZREEBEZEFHNT

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEF T BT T

At 1 April R4H1H 733 856

Impairment loss recognised BERRREEE 105 =
Reversal of impairment loss ERATFEER

recognised in previous years (8 B 15 4 (o) (33) (32)
Amount written-off i g8 A AT Y =] R IE

as uncollectible - (111)

Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B - 20

At 31 March M3A31H 805 733

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality
and defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed
to customers are reviewed on a regular basis. Minimal
amount of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have the best credit under the credit
system used by the Group.

At 31 March 2010, included in the Group's trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$3,377,000 (20009:
HK$1,269,000) which are past due at the reporting
date and aged over 180 days for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group did not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

(0 HEEMETAHMEFA AKEKXHA
—ERSRFGEEREFZEEE
ENMREHEERE -EFZEE
RESETHEZ REAKEAMK
RZEERS mABHFREZ
BHRBESRZESEREARER

MR2010F3A31H  KEBE 2 &
SERFBEHBDIEBEETDEDY
7 #3,377,0007T (20094 : B &
1,269,0007T) 2 E W BR 3K - 2 F iR
R E BB - BRERiEBRE180
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment loss is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

Included in the impairment loss recognised are
individually impaired trade receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$805,000
(2009: HK$733,000) over which the Group does
not hold any collateral. The individually impaired
receivables mainly related to debtors that are in
unexpected financial difficulty or of poor credit history.

An analysis of the other receivables by nature (net
of impairment loss recognised) as at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

27.

=]
=

—~
0
~

HAEVBRERME BE201083A31BILFE

ZRHEMmERRIE (&)

(%)

BB A HARIRE 2 BRI EE
TRAKEHEA RIFNRLH B
YEPER -REBELR BE
ERE AREEERIESERE
£ LB BERIDKRR R A AR
Y El - 8088 75 5k ik B A R AE HURUE
BiEe

ERRRESERFER D RE
ZSRRFTE EHe RN EBE
805,000 (20094 : 7 #733,000
L) AEEUEEERSER T
fa] 5 18 G o fE B 2 8 1B FE SR IB =
ZHEE N BHRTER#ENEE
LHETEZEEABR-

H i W IE OB R ZRES
BIRWMERAR 2O BEEEN
T

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Advances to third parties (Note i) SE=7H 22K (H7Ei) - 4,542
Amount due from a former JE AT BE 25 2 B SRIR
associate (Note ii) (B =Ei) 3,418 3,407
Interest receivable from a FE W & R RIRR SR B
shareholder of an associate 1,820 -
Amounts due from jointly FE W L [B) 4 I B B8 5K IR
controlled entities (Note ii) (B =Ei) 1,773 =
Prepayments TE IR 7,842 7,867
Deposit paid/payment Bfie BT
in advance to suppliers HpER 2 KA 40,196 45,707
Consideration receivable HEBE QR Z EIRAE
for the disposal of an associate - 20,031
Others Hh, 7,511 5,054
62,560 86,608
FRERERA

2009-20105F 8
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 7. B REMEWRTEE (&)

(Continued)
Notes: Mo aE
()  As at 31 March 2009, the advances to third parties 0) M2009F3H31H  F=H 28K

REER B NAREREE
B o IMAE L R R RRAT - AN 5 B
TREEBEBGAZEEER B

were unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. Before making any advances, the Group will
understand the potential debtor’s credit quality and

defines its credit limits to debtors with an appropriate
credit history. Credit limits attributed to debtors are

RRBECEERERAETERFER
H-BEBAZFERESENE

reviewed regularly. %o
(i)  The balances due from a former associate/jointly (i) FEUATEE AR AR E R
controlled entities are unsecured, interest-free and on FIARRAEER 2 EREANRE
demand. SREFE3E ©
(e) The movements in the impairment loss recognised in (e) EMEMEWRIBEER ZBEEIE
respect of other receivables are as follows: g
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
At 1 April R4H1H 3,471 1,784
Impairment loss recognised BERRREEE 20,429 3,288
Reversal of impairment loss ERBEFERER AR
recognised in previous years B [E (398) -
Amount written-off as i g8 A BT Y =) R IE
uncollectible - (1,643)
Exchange realignment ME 5 58 B 49 42
At 31 March M3A31H 23,551 3,471

EERBESEEREMERNCEHE
HEKRE SHeXNRE

Included in the impairment loss recognised are
individually impaired other receivables with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$23,551,000 #23,551,0007T (20094 : B &
(2009: HK$3,471,000) over which the Group does 3,471,0007T)  ANE&E B &R A %
not hold any collateral. The individually impaired SEB 2 EMER G- @R B RE
receivables mainly related to debtors that are in JE Y 3R I8 = £ B [ ¥ 1 7] TR HA B
unexpected financial difficulty or of poor credit history. BR#S EELETNEZEBAS
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

OTHER LOAN TO A SHAREHOLDER OF AN
ASSOCIATE

The balance represents loan advanced to a shareholder of an
associate is secured by 60% shareholding of the associate,
carried interest rate at 5% per annum and repayable on 11
May 2010. The repayment date is extended to 11 May 2011.
Details are set out in note 43(d).

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURER

The balance due from a joint venturer is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The balance represents the
outstanding consideration payable for the disposal of 49%
interest in Fujian An Ran Group (Note 38).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances
and cash of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately HK$246,485,000 (2009: HK$155,505,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies.
However, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates.

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they relate:

28.

29.

30.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

BEQATRR2EMER

REE BRI AR L R RI0%RAEER 2
& NAIRR 2 E R F F 5%
B BR2010F5A11BEE - EFXRBH
DRERZE2011FE5811H - 150 =
43(d) o

BURESELERE TR

BB BEREA ST RIRERAEEM

RERAREREEE -AREHRTIEE
BEZAEEA9%EE (H5E38) ZEf
AHRE -

BEBBTER BITEBRR
B

—~

RBEHR AEBUARBEE 2R
1THB MRS 4 5B %246,485,0007T
(20094 : /5 #155,505,0007T ) - A R #
TEERLBAEMEE KM BT
Bl i 2 SNE B IR IR R A TE - (S EERE
EEIEHT AEBEEEBEABERELSE
INEEBZRITRARBEBRAREME
ﬁé}o

RTRLRE A ROTRAEHE 2%
DAL EHT TR G R A~
AE=[@A  BARARE2 DERSH
KA W2 S R AR

RITHEF RITEREASBEUTZE
B AEBESBEIAZERZINEEE AN
ZEREHE:

2010 2009

HK$000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Hong Kong dollars ok 58,144 1,600
United States dollars ETT 19,638 19,847

The pledged bank deposits at 31 March 2010 carried
prevailing market interest rate at 0.36%, and represented
deposits pledged with a bank as guarantee for the letter of
credit issued to the supplier.

M2010F3A31H 2 EMEITERIL
0.36% 2 BITMENERFE  EEERT
RITEAREREEEHERMRZERZ

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F




31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

The following is an analysis of major components of the

31.

BEZREMEMNRE

BRNKABHREZID 20T KR

balance with aged analysis of trade payables: ol O
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade payables, falling due in: B O RENFIA  BIBHALT

Current to 90 days ENHAZ90H 34,141 19,851

91 to 180 days 91H £180H 6,964 6,011

Over 180 days 180H KA E 11,849 12,957
Trade payables B Z N IR 52,954 38,819
Deposit received from customers WEEFziEke (KEE)

(Note i) 90,547 120,806
Convertible notes interest payable JE AT AT R AR R FI B - 910
Customer gas deposits and other BEPMREZE R

deposit received HEhiz s 9,864 5,785
Gas fuel income received in advance TE YR R A 16,621 31,851
Other payable for the purchase of BEME KE K

property, plant and equipment SR 2 H A FE AT B 1,824 5,247
Consideration payable Ly B BT B R BE A

for the acquisition of additional Itz BNRE

equity interests in a subsidiary - 6,813
Other loans (Note ii) H &R CH aEii ) 5,876 10,220
Accrued charges and other payables FEET B A I H 8 5 30E 25,597 21,182

203,283 241,633

REBERZ FHEEHF/0A - REEF]
B mREREEBR  BERMEENKIEA

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place

to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time RIEEHREE-

frame.

Notes: Bt 5

()  Deposits received from customers represent the gas pipeline () WEREPzZEEERKRIMZMKIEE
connection fee received but the pipelines have not yet been ERERA EEERREARERT
completed as at the end of the reporting period. K °

(i)  Other loans as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 were unsecured, (i) 20104 }%200943H31H ZEME K

AEE L F R K5.58%F27.47 %5
BRENR—FREE-

interest bearing at rates ranging from 5.58% to 7.47% per
annum and repayable within one year.
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33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
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BANK BORROWINGS 32. RITEE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Secured bank loans BEMIEITERK 115,579 217,561
Unsecured bank loans IR IRITE R 87,491 92,380
203,070 309,941
The bank loans are repayable: BN TIRBEECRTE
F
Within one year or on demand —F AR B K 92,663 145,839
In the second year MNE—F 2,905 86,206
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFFRE
(BREEEMSE) 42,663 34,066
Over five years FEFEMNE 64,839 43,830
203,070 309,941
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FAREIERE A
shown under current liabilities Bza% (92,663) (145,839)
Amounts due after one year —FREH o8 110,407 164,102

Secured bank loans were secured by pledging of various
assets of the Group, details of which are set out in Note 42.

All bank loans (secured and unsecured) are floating rate
borrowings of which interest rates are in the range of
4.54% to 8.38% per annum (2009: ranging from 4.54% to

9.71%).
CONVERTIBLE NOTES

33. IR RE

BERARTEFRNERAEEZETE
EERER  FBEIINMHEL2 -

FrESRTER(AERBREEKR)AF
A E AN F4.54%%8.38% (20094 : /) F-
454%F9.71% ) 2 FBEXREE -

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Convertible notes measured BAFEFEZ A BRRE

at fair value: B
At the beginning of the year R F ) 162,374 157,878
Loss on fair value changes NFEES ZEE 2,118 4,496
Repayment =% (164,492) =
At the end of the year RE R - 162,374

There was no conversion to shares by convertible note for

the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. 45 ] 360 % 22 4 B 3 A S 5 o

HZE2010F K2009F3A31H ILFZ - #%

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The details of the Group's convertible note outstanding as at

31 March 2009 are set out below:

Date of issue
ZITHHE

Aggregate principal amount

BRI AT

Outstanding principal amount as at the end of
the reporting period

RBEPRRH BRI AT E

Coupon rate
EEEX

Conversion price (HK$)

BB CGE%)
Conversion period
24 5

Collaterals

A

Maturity date
FH A

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010

33. TR RERE (&)

AREER2009F3 A31 8 HAE R 2 Al #
fREEFBOT

15 June 2006
200656 H15H

US$40,000,000
(approximately HK$310,000,000)
40,000,000 7t (49,5 %310,000,0007T)

US$20,000,000
(approximately HK$155,000,000)
20,000,000 7T (49748 %155,000,0007T )

2 per cent
2%

Reset from HK$0.60 to HK$0.50
& #0.60TE 5] A %0.507T

six months after the issue date and up to the
tenth trading day before the maturity date
HETERRANEAZBERTEHZINHBA

FETERXZHILEZHHE
Nil
i

VAN

14 June 2009
2009F6 A 14H
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Other term:

The convertible note shall be redeemed by the Company at
106% of their principal amount on the third anniversary of
the issue date of the convertible note.

If on each anniversary of the issue date of the note the
average volume-weighted closing price per share for the 15
trading days up to and including the trading day immediately
prior to such anniversary (the “Reset Reference Price”) is less
than the then current conversion price, the conversion price
will be reset to the Reset Reference Price, subject to the floor
price of HK$0.50 per share.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi and the
conversion option of these notes is denominated in U.S.
dollars. Since the conversion price for the notes is subject
to change, the conversion will not result in settlement by
the exchange of a fixed number of equity instruments.
Therefore, upon application of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39, it
was determined that the notes do not contain any equity
component and the entire notes were designated as
“financial liabilities at FVTPL” which requires the notes to be
carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period and
the changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. During the year
ended 31 March 2010, a loss on change in its fair value
of approximately HK$2,118,000 (2009: HK$4,496,000) is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

33. A RARERE (&)

H At R 3K -

ARAB R EEETHEE =8
FIZ BRI AR S R 2 106% 8 B 1]
A% Z= i

MR EEBETAZE BT SREOR
HEEEZAFTHHAIZRZA (RBIE
ZB8) L2 15ER 5 8 2 mEFHKTE
(EFT2ZEERZRFHNBRE &
RERKEFRERETLSERE HEERBT
R A& A 0.507T °

AEBZNEEESARE  HWEZE Y
HBRR BRI LAE LS E - AR EE 28
MRER T8 WERTSBRALEE
BERBEIARHBAALEE -Eitt RIE
BEBSHERFE325HEME B S EL
F395% AEBETERET TS EM
RERGD MEFEEEETEAEATF
Bt ABEmvemaE] RAEZEER
HEHRUAFEINE ERAFEZEE)
RERE 2 E A TRERANFER - REZE2010
FIABLEFE GEE2ARAHTER
BREAFEEEHEIBLEE2,118,000
JC (20094F : 7 #4,496,0007T ) °

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F
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33. A RARERE (&)

R2009F3 8310 EEZAFEFRAS
BEREBRE NG E - ZEA 28 AE W

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

The fair value of the notes at 31 March 2009 was calculated
using The Monte Carlo Simulation Model. The inputs into

the model were as follows:

T

2009
Stock price 4 HK$0.151
Exercise price I1E(E HK$0.500
Expected volatility T8 HA R 08 87.75%
Stock borrowing cost I 18 & B AR 0.11%
Expected dividend yield TE AR AR B M as 0%
Market yield 5 W & 10.34%
34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3. EEREARE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in EIETIE B (F 2 K e B SR
the consolidated statement of financial position and the TR IER - 2 F A I NEZ 2 &

movements during the year are as follows: N

Property,
plant and Intangible
equipment assets Total
ME-KE
REHE BREE &ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2008 7R2008F4H1H 2,168 19,823 21,991
Exchange realignment b 5, 3 2 47 427 474
Credited to consolidated RAFE 2REE2EBA

statement of comprehensive WMEAFETA

income for the year (57) (700) (757)
At 31 March 2009 and MR2009F3A31H &

1 April 2009 2009F4F1H 2,158 19,550 21,708
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B 7 64 71
Credited to consolidated RAFE 256 ZEBA

statement of comprehensive WM& EA

income for the year (245) (473) (718)
Acquisition of a jointly Wb 2 R4 ) E 58

controlled entity - 3,647 3,647
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKE A A (KEE38)

(Note 38) (859) (9,496) (10,355)
At 31 March 2010 720103 831H 1,061 13,292 14,353
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34. EEHRERE (&)

PR E BIR - AN 58 [ ] A VR4 35 AR 2RO 7

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$76,029,000
(2009: HK$75,929,000) available to offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability

ZARERMIBEELN BB %76,029,000
7C (20094 : /& #75,929,0007T ) ° & %
IR B ) 5 AN A FER - BUBEAE Bh R AR

MIEBERERECHIAELEE - ZEAER

ZHBEBEAREESR BB EERF-

of future profit streams. Such unrecognised tax losses will
be carried forward for five years from respective dates of

origination.
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR
2010 2009 2010 2009
Number Number HK$'000 HK$'000
of shares of shares
RSB RiHEE BETT BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.07 each & IR EI{E & #50.077C
2 EBAR
Authorised: JETE
At the beginning and REY RER
the end of the year 7,999,999,999  7,999,999,999 560,000 560,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE:
At the beginning of the year REH 4,082,224,554  4,082,324,554 285,756 285,763
Shares repurchased and fEE &SRR
cancelled (Note) (BFE) - (100,000 - @)
At the end of the year RER 4,082,224,554  4,082,224,554 285,756 285,756

Note:

On 11 August 2008, the Company repurchased 100,000 of its
ordinary shares at HK$0.099 each on the Stock Exchange. The
highest price per share at that day is HK$0.12 and the lowest
price per share is HK$0.097. The aggregated consideration paid
was HK$9,900. All the shares repurchased were cancelled upon
repurchase and accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

B &E -

7200848811 H » AN A &) HA B 32 Bt LA 55 A% 78
#0.099 T }E B 100,000/ L @K -2 H 2 &
BEEEBAEBE0.127T MERKKEABIE
0.0977t > B B8R (B A7 #9,9007T - FT A iE
ERR D EREE & Bt N AR BT
BRABBEZZERMD ZHEE-

FA ARRZHBARMERE HENE
B AR BEMR LT RE S e

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F
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36. SHARE OPTIONS 36. B I HE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme include full-time employees (including
executive directors), consultants, agents and advisors of the
Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 3
October 2006.

Terms of Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2010, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme were 296,007,405,
representing approximately 7.3% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2010 and the date of this
Annual Report. Without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted
to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, and the aggregate number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted to any individual in
any year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time.

No amount is payable on acceptance of an offer to grant an
option to subscribe for the shares of the Company granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme (the "Offer”). The
Share Option Scheme may be exercised at any time for a
period of ten years commencing after a period of six months
from the date of acceptance of the Offer, subject to the
conditions imposed by the board of the directors of the
Company. The exercise price of the option shares would
be at a price equal to the higher of: (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange’s daily
qguotation sheet on the date of offer of the option; (ii) the
average closing prices of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the options; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

No share option was granted during the year ended 31
March 2010 and 2009.
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RNAREE —TEERE S ([BERET
) FEUSE RO EEAER 2 KDL
BIELERI A B2 HEE - BER S
CEERSEEREASEZEZHBESR
(BIERTES) HAA RERER-
B AEET 212 M 20065F10 A3 R A 4% -

fB IR R Bl 2 R

MR2010F3 8318 ' RIZMEARAERT 87 3%
17 2 B 1D 42 0 5296,007,4050% - HHE A
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 36. BRHE (&)
The following tables disclose details of the Company's share TREBBEBRETE SEHL2HEE
options held by category of participants (including directors) (BREB)FEAARIBREZFER
under Share Option Scheme and movements in such FANZERBEZEHER-
holdings during the year.
Lapsed/ At 31 March Lapsed/
Date of cancelled 2009 and cancelled Exercise Exercise
Category of grant of At 1 April during 1 April during At 31 March period of price of
participant share options 2008  Reclassification the year 2009 the year 2010 share options share options
1#2009%
3A31B R
BRE R2008% ERRR/ 2009 FARR/ R2010%
SEEEH REAH 4818 B 58 HH# 4818 i 36318 BRETHESN  BRECRE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(i) (GiE)
Directors 2 April 2007 43,650,000 (9,000,000) - 34,650,000 - 34,650,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
Bz 200744428 1 October 2010
20074107186 F
2010410A1A
15 October 2007 14,960,000 (3,000,000) - 11,960,000 - 11,960,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
20074104158 14 April 2011
200855418
2011545148
Continuous contract 2 April 2007 91,030,000 (6,000,000) (1,050,000) 83,980,000 (3,160,000) 80,820,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
employees 200754 /28 1 October 2010
BRANHESR 20076107 18HE
2010%10A1A
15 October 2007 38,580,000 (2,000,000) (350,000) 36,230,000 (1,040,000) 35,190,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
20074104158 14 April 2011
2008518
201154A14A
2 November 2007 1,300,000 - (50,000) 1,250,000 (150,000) 1,100,000 10 May 2008 to 0.632
2007411428 1 May 2011
2008%5A10A %
201145418
4 January 2008 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 - 20,000,000 17 July 2008 to 0.382
200851 A48 3 July 2011
2008%7A17A %
201147A3A
Consultants 11 October 2006 46,000,000 - - 46,000,000 - 46,000,000 11 April 2007 to 0.385
LN 2006410 A118 10 April 2010
2007F4R11AE
2010644108
2 April 2007 44,382,000 15,000,000 - 59,382,000 - 59,382,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
200744828 1 October 2010
20074104186 F
2010410A1A
15 October 2007 13,750,000 5,000,000 - 18,750,000 - 18,750,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
20074104158 14 April 2011
2008F5A18%
201144A14A
FREZERERAR

2009-20105F 8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

REMBHRME 2010637318 LFE
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36. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 36. BRHE (&)
Lapsed/ At 31 March Lapsed/
Date of cancelled 2009 and cancelled Exercise Exercise
Category of grant of At 1 April during 1 April during At 31 March period of price of
participant share options 2008  Reclassification the year 2009 the year 2010 share options share options
20095
3A31B R
BRE R20085 ERER/ 2009% FRER/ R2010%
SEEER REBH 4818 ENAR il 4818 i3] 3A318 BRETESM BRETHE
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(M3E1) (Hi2)
Agents 2 April 2007 26,540,000 - - 26,540,000 - 26,540,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
RE 200754428 1 October 2010
2007F10A18HE
2010F10A18
15 October 2007 9,760,000 - - 9,760,000 - 9,760,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
20074107158 14 April 2011
2008F5818E
2011F47148
Advisors 2 April 2007 14,960,000 - (1,350,000) 13,610,000 - 13,610,000 18 October 2007 to 0.530
B 200754 A28 1 October 2010
2007610718 %
2010610A18
15 October 2007 5,140,000 = (450,000) 4,690,000 = 4,690,000 1 May 2008 to 0.514
20074108158 14 April 2011
20085810 E
2011545148
370,052,000 = (3,250,000) 366,802,000 (4,350,000) 362,452,000
Exercisable at the end of 362,452,000
the year
RERAFI7E
Weighted average exercise 0.50 0.53 0.53 0.50 0.53 0.50
price
MEFHTRE

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The Group recognised total expenses of HK$1,666,000
(2010: nil) for the year ended 31 March 2009 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.

None of the share options have been exercised during the
year ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT
SCHEMES

In April 2005, the Group enrolled all non-PRC employees in
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF”). The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group under the control of trustees. The retirement benefit
cost for the MPF charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents contributions payable to
the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in PRC have participated
in defined contribution retirement schemes organised by
the relevant local government authorities in PRC. All PRC
employees are entitled to an annual pension equal to a fixed
portion of their ending basic salaries at their retirement
dates. The Group is required to make specific contributions
to the retirement schemes at a rate of 12% to 25% of basic
salary of its PRC employees and have no further obligation
for post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions
made.

The total cost charged to statement of comprehensive
income of HK$2,335,000 (2009: HK$2,587,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by the Group in
respect of the current accounting period.

36.

37.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

B (HE)
fi e :
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PR AR LE

2. EARRAETHE BTARIARE
PR IR A R R B - BRI 2 7T
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SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 26 April 2009, the Company has entered into the sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party
(the "Purchaser”), for the disposal of the entire share
capital of Brilliant China Investments Limited (“Brilliant
China”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its loan incurred by Brilliant China to the Company
for a consideration of approximately HK$323,664,000
for cash. Brilliant China held 100% equity interests in
Beijing Zhongmin Zhongran Trading Company Limited
(“Zhongmin Zhongran”) and the main assets held by
Zhongmin Zhongran is 45.45% of the equity interests in
Fujian An Ran. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement,
the Purchaser shall inject RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$91,136,000) to Fujian An Ran upon
completion of the sale and purchase agreement. The
amount of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$45,568,000) had been injected to the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2010 with the balance remaining as
amount due from a joint venturer.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Those two sales and purchase agreements represented the
disposal of entire interests in Brilliant China and Zhongmin
Zhongran and 49% equity interests in Fujian An Ran and
its subsidiaries and associates (collectively referred to as
the “Disposal Group”) at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$415,711,000 (including approximately
HK$46,479,000, representing the Group's share of 51%
of new capital injected by the Purchaser to Fujian An Ran)
for cash. This transaction was approved by the special
general meeting of the Company held on 3 June 2009
and completed on 31 July 2009 and gain on disposal of
approximately HK$257,189,000 was recognised in the profit
or loss, being the difference between the consideration and
(i) the aggregate of the net assets value of the Disposal
Group being disposed of and (ii) the goodwill attributable to
the Fujian An Ran and its subsidiaries. Details had been set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2009.

Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group holds
51% of the equity interest of Fujian An Ran and 4 out of
7 directors of Fujian An Ran are appointed by the Group.
Further 4 out of 7 shareholders’ representatives of Fujian
An Ran are appointed by the Group. Hence the Group
controls approximately 57% of the voting power in the
board of directors meeting and shareholders meeting.
As all the major decisions made in the board of directors
meeting and shareholders meeting of Fujian An Ran require
at least 2/3 votes from all of the directors and shareholders’
representatives, Fujian An Ran is accounted for as a jointly
controlled entity.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

38. HEKMEAR (&)

ZMEEEHHET  BHESBERELS
#415,711,000C (BIEAEEEGEE S
MERLZAREAZTERZ51%LEE
46,479,0007T ) * & Brilliant China X/
Rz AkEELARE
WMBARMEEE AR (SB[ HEEE])
49% P #E - % X 5 B 720094F 6 A3H £
TRZARRIBREFIARS B WK
20094F7 A31H5ERK » il i & W 498
257,189,000t E N8 ER - A H
BEWmAREE)MEECLESEEE
FEHAERINVEELZAREWBARE
Bz EE - BEFBEEHNAARH
BRA2009%F4 H28B 2 AT A °

HEEFHETEKE AEEFEFRELA
51%ME  BELATREFPHEABHAN
SEZRE-BE BERATERRAKRE
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EEERABRRERE LIERASTRRE
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. HEME AR (&)
The net assets of these subsidiaries at the date of disposal REEBHZENBRARCEEFENT
were as follows:
Carrying
Carrying amount of
Carrying amounts of assets and
amounts of assets and liabilities
assets and liabilities disposed
liabilities retained under of under
of Disposal proportionate  proportionate
Group consolidation consolidation
B BlGRE B HlRe
HEEE N3 ABR AT
EERARZ REZEER HEZEER
REE BEZREE BEZERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BET T
Assets (liabilities) disposed of: HtEZEE(AE):
Property, plant and equipment M WEREE 545,136 (278,020) 267,116
Investment properties BEME 11,495 (5,863) 5,632
Prepaid lease payments EREE 27,049 (13,795) 13,254
Goodwill kS 161,308 (82,267) 79,041
Intangible assets BREE 100,211 (51,108) 49,103
Interests in associates REEE N B R 50,597 (25,804) 24,793
Available-for-sale financial assets EHEemEE 740 (377) 363
Inventories FE 23,624 (12,048) 11,576
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H b fE Wi 5k 0E 23,149 (11,806) 11,343
Bank balance and cash RITEBRR S 58,954 (29,870) 29,084
Trade and other payables 2 5 Rk H M E R FRIE (191,003) 84,595 (106,408)
Tax liabilities BMIEAE (21,821) 11,129 (10,692)
Amounts due to associates JEE {5} Bgh 21X B FROB (34,530) 17,611 (16,919)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (319,660) 163,027 (156,633)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE (21,132) 10,777 (10,355)
Minority interest DB R R (35,486) 18,098 (17,388)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE 378,631 (205,721) 172,910
Exchange reserve realised B2 IR e 5 (14,388)
Gain on disposal k=G 257,189
Total consideration, BRE URE XM
satisfied by cash 415,711
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERESZHEHA
VHER
Cash consideration RERE 415,711
Amount due from a joint venturer  EWAEGCES L A (23,298)
Bank balances and cash disposed of & ZR1T74 ﬁ?&fﬁé (29,084)

363,329
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The impact of disposed subsidiaries on the Group results and

cash flows in the current period is as follow:

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

38. HEKMEAR (&)

BHENBARNAEBREHNLEAR
BenmBrYEMT:

2010
HK$'000
BT T
Revenue LN 196,955
Expenses il 2 (120,348)
Profit (loss) before tax Br i Am A (E18) 76,607
Income tax expense Fri5 8t < (15,904)
60,703
Cash flows from disposed subsidiaries: KEDHEMBARZ
WEME
Net cash flows from operating activities KR REEE L
ReREFR 117,325
Net cash flows used in investing activities & & )EB)FTAH 2
BengFs (167,887)
Net cash flows from financing activities BMEEBDEEZ
Bengss 72,363
21,801
HRERERA

2009-20105F 8
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FAMBRERME HE201083A318 LFE

BEEREALTZRS

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39.
(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere, the Group entered into (@) BEMEMDFTIREEE N A EE
the following material related party transactions. FHEANTETTINEARRS
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Balance at the end of R EHR 2 E8:
the reporting period:
Amounts due to associates FEAS B = R R FRIB
Dehua Guang An ElEER (1 (4,254)
Fuzhou An Ran Ju Pipeline Xm)ll;z%)%“: =R
Gas Co., Ltd. BRA (11,388) (30,204)
(11,389) (34,458)
Amount due from jointly JE Ui 3 R 2 41 S SRR
controlled entities 1,773 -
FEUR (FEAT) Bt A E] /R 25 E B 3R
B (8

RESRREER 28 &//\EAK—J—

$<'°

rN

The balances due from(to) associates/jointly controlled
entities are unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel which
comprises mainly the Company’s directors is disclosed
in Note 12(a).

40. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS
(a) The Group as lessor

The Group leased its investment properties, as set out
in Note 19, under operating lease arrangements with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from three to eight
years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions.

39.

40.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

BEEREALTZRS (&)

(b) FEEBAEMS

FEFEAB (EFEAARRAESE)
ZEE A 12K E -

RERERH
(a) AEEERHBEA

K19 E ARBERBELER
ERHHBEEREME KH1R
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40. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS 0. EEHERH (&)
(Continued)
(a) The Group as lessor (Continued) (a) *EEFEHHBEA (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMERR AEBEBFIIEE
contracted with tenants for the following future Bz AREKEHRSHT -
minimum lease payments.
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F R 305 404
In the second to fifth years, F_EZFERF
inclusive (BREREMTF) 688 1,422
After five years hF& 9 28
1,002 1,854
Property rental income earned during the year was REAFEERBR2UWER S WAL
approximately HK$1,185,000 (2009: HK$380,000). 75 #1,185,0007T (20094F : 7 &
Properties held at the end of the reporting period are 380,0007T) - RBEHARFEH 29
expected to generate rental yields of 1% to 6% (20009: FTEHAFETR1%E6% (2009
1% to 10%) on an ongoing basis. All of the properties F1%E10% ) 2 0 & Bl =X pr
held have committed tenants for the next five (2009: BYER RS (20095 - 65F) B
six) years. BAEGEHEE-
(b) The Group as lessee (b) XEBEEHEAEA
Certain office premises of the Group were leased under BELEHEZHE AEEAHE

operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms of one to seven years. Rentals are
fixed for the relevant lease term. The minimum lease
payment under operating lease for rented premises
during the year ended 31 March 2010 is HK$4,517,000
(2009: HK$4,152,000).

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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40. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS 0. KEHEZH (H)
(Continued)
(b) The Group as lessee (Continued) (b) *EEFERHEAMBEA (F)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEAR  AEERETERE
commitments for future minimum lease payments Z“"L”fﬂ/EZ*XH’ﬁETHigKV I &
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due FEARLAT :
as follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within one year —F R 4,210 1,814
In the second to fifth years, EF_EZFERF
inclusive (BREEMTF) 4,944 3,902
After five years hF% 4,554 5,476
13,708 11,192
41. COMMITMENTS 41. EIE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Contracted for but not provided in the FEAVEBRNERE B K
consolidated financial statements tﬁéﬁ
Capital expenditure in respect of: BEARRME :
Investment in an associate REtERE 2 IKE 22,784 27,277
Commitments in respect of B WS 2 R
the acquisition of:
Property, plant and equipment M WERZE 5,126 110,145
27,910 137,422

TRERERAE
2009-2010%F
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SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been

42. EEEF

MEmEZEEESERUMERASE

pledged to secure bank borrowings of the Group. RITEE 2 ER.
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Property, plant and equipment Y- WE REE 11,005 16,336
Investment properties wEYE 4,665 11,458
Intangible assets — exclusive rights of & E — B R L E AR
operations 23,658 51,461
Prepaid lease payments in respect of TR FEMEE
land use rights 16,235 22,415
55,563 101,670

In addition to the above, the Group has also pledged its
bank deposits and rights to receive fee income of certain
subsidiaries in favour of banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group as at 31 March 2010 and 2009
respectively.

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 25 March 2010, the registered capital of Yongheng
Lecai, an associate of the Group, was increased from
RMB75,000,000 to RMB125,000,000 pursuant to
the amendment of constitution documents. On 2
April 2010, capital contribution of RMB20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$22,784,000) was
made by the Group based on its 40% equity interest in
Yongheng Lecai.
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43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

In April 2010, the Group disposed the available-for-sale
financial asset with carrying amount of HK$32,100,000
as at 31 March 2010 at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$30,074,000.

On 12 April 2010, the Company granted share options
to a director, employees and consultants of the Group
to subscribe for a total of 27,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.07 each at HK$0.385 per share in the capital
of the Company under the share option scheme of the
Company adopted on 13 October 2006. All grantees
accepted the share options on the same date. The
share options are exercisable commencing from the
date of acceptance until 11 April 2013.

Out of the 27,000,000 share options granted,
2,000,000 share options were granted to Mr. Chu Kin
Wang Peleus, a director of the Company. Details had
been set out in the Company’s announcement dated
12 April 2010.

On 11 May 2010, the Company, as lender, has entered
into a loan extension agreement with Yongheng
Development Corporation Limited, a shareholder of the
Group's associate, Yongheng Lecai, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to extend the repayment
date of the total outstanding loan of HK$43,050,000
to 11 May 2011. Yongheng Development Corporation
Limited shall pay interest on the total outstanding
loan at the interest rate of 5% per annum during
the extension period. Details had been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 11 May 2010.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

43. FEHREE (&)

(b)

R2010F4 8 AEBHENHEE
S REE (MN2010F3A318 2 B
H1{E A5 %32,100,00070 ) @ #2K/E
#) 575 #30,074,0007T °

M20105F4 8128 KR AR A&
BrE= EEKEMRTDERE:
Al AR E A A A R2006F 1013 H
W EREE RERRME
#0.385 T RBE AR AR AR A H
27,000,0004% & % E {& 75 ¥0.077C
ZERM BT AR ARR AR
ERABRE 2EBRETRAE
4 HHIRE =2013F4 8118 1EEA
RE

7#27,000,00017 E % [ B A #E -
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KBEREE - ERFBINEDF
HHEIA2010F4812H 2 A A °

M2010FE58 118 AR A (EAE
RA)EKEBERERER AR (K
EEE L N RKEEY ZRR) 7]
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. D T 2 B AR R 3R
THE COMPANY

Statement of financial position of the Company at the end RRRRIE AR BB AT ELE :
of the reporting period includes:

2010 2009
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= BET T BET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and LR
equipment 1,595 445
Investments in subsidiaries R B R E & 508,992 508,992
Available-for-sale financial AHESHEE
assets 32,138 25,521
542,725 534,958
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H {th & W FRIB 57,880 697
Amounts due from JiE U B B8 A RIFRIE
subsidiaries 45 96,296 117,164
Bank balances and cash RITEBRNIES 77,456 21,499
231,632 139,360
Current liabilities mEBEE
Other payables E A FE 1 518 1,773 2,644
Convertible notes Al #af% E % - 162,374
1,773 165,018
Net current assets (liabilities) mBEE (BE)FE 229,859 (25,658)
Total assets less current BEERRBARG
liabilities 772,584 509,300
Capital and reserves &% 7R F% 7
Share capital [N 285,756 285,756
Reserves & 46 486,828 223,544
Total equity A 772,584 509,300
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
FREMBRRME BE201063A31AILFEF

45. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES 45. FEUW T B A B K18

The balances are unsecured, interest free and repayable on EHRAEEERR RERREXKER-
demand.

46. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 46. &N EfE 1B
TR AR T2 ABRKED R ER
REERBEFEZ2EE-

The following table sets out the components of the reserves
of the Company and the movements thereof during the
current and prior year.

Share-based  Investment
Share  Contributed Capital compensation  valuation Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
R X 1 RE

R &E BERER BAfiE  ZMEeRE HERE 2 ER @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 April 2008 200854 716 615,526 101,688 7,482 34,375 - (436,174) 322,897

Loss for the year AEEBR - - - - - (32,002) (32,002)
Other comprehensive expense AEEAMREMS

for the year - - - - (69,014) - (69,014)
Total comprehensive expense AEEZEAXEE

for the year - - - - (69,014) (32,002) (101,016)

Share repurchased and cancelled BEEREHE KD 3) = = = = = 3)
Recognition of equity-settled share- RBNEREERD

based payments BERZHF - = = 1,666 = = 1,666

Effect on share options forfeited RBERE Y2 - - - (326) - 326 =
At 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2009 2009434318 &

2009F4A18 615,523 101,688 7,482 35,715 (69,014) (467,850) 223,544

Profit for the year AEREF - - - - - 256,668 256,668
Other comprehensive expense AEEAMREMS

for the year - - - - 6,616 - 6,616
Total comprehensive expense AEEZEAXEE

for the year - - - - 6,616 256,668 263,284

Effect on share options forfeited RBERE Y2 - - - (436) - 436 =

At 31 March 2010 20104637318 615,523 101,688 7,482 35,279 (62,398) (210,746) 436,828

PRERERAF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

46.

47.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net
assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the Company is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

46.

47.

RAFfERE (&)
fi 2 :

BEHBBRERAQAREETROEERD WEE
HENBRARZEEFEZ 2B RIEARE
1981F R AE (1EE])  RRIENR TIERT
AL EESAREIRSRREHEL DK :
7 B 538 B RS () AR A B RR S 12 & 3 A A
REEEEIHBER: (NVARBEEZAIZRE
SERELPREEE BETRARRGEER
2 HEEE o

FENBQA

20104 20093 A31H * "AR 2+

March 2010 and 2009 are as follows: ZMBRBFBEOT :
Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Group
Name of company establishment by the Group effective interest Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ERRL/
RAER Rt % rEEEE rERERER E# B TEEE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Brilliant China BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% - - Investment holding
RERAEHS (E RERR
Beijing Zhongmin PRC * US$60,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Investment holding
FRAR e 60,000,000% 70 RERR
IRERFRESERAR PRC # HK$30,000,000 - 100% - - - 100%  Investment holding
(“Zhongmin Zhongran Trading HE ¢ 730,000,007 RERR
Co., Ltd.")
BHTEERARARAR PRC* RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Distribution and supply
(“Mian Zhu City Han Wang Natural Gas  HEl * AR%1,000,0007C of Gas Fuel
Co., Ltd.") AHREERR
GBOTARAAREREE AR PRC ¢ RMB16,308,800 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Distribution and supply
("Mian Zhu City Hong Sen Natural HE ¢ AE%16,308,8007C of Gas Fuel
Gas Co,, Ltd.") DERERMR

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2009-2010



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
FREMBRRME BE201063A31AILFEF

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

47. T EME QAT (&)

Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Group
Name of company establishment by the Group effective interest Directly Indirectly Principal activities
EAL/
RAER R % rEEIE rEEERER EE k3 TERE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BITERRRZREREALA PRC * RMB7,633,400 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Installation of Gas Fuel
("Mian Zhu City Long Teng Gas HE ¢ AR#7,633,4007C distribution facilities
Installation Co., Ltd.") ERMREERIE
HERRRRAR A" PRC * RMBS5,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Distribution and supply
(MEEERTABAEAR) G AR5,000,0007T of Gas Fuel and
("Yan Ting Zhongmin Natural Gas installation of Gas
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as LongXing Fuel distribution
(Yan Ting) Natural Gas Co., Ltd.)") facilities
PERERMARER
MR EERIE
LERRIKFERAT PRC* RMB6,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Distribution and supply
(“Bei Chuan County Zhongmin HE AR #6,000,0007C of Gas Fuel
Gas Co., Ltd.") PEREERR
EERNRMRARAR PRC ¢ RMB4,080,004 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Distribution and supply
("Chongging Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.") & ¢ AR %4,080,0047C of Gas Fuel and
installation of Gas
Fuel distribution
facilities
PERERMARER
RREER
EVERRMAARAT PRC RMB10,000,000 80% 80% - - 80% 80%  Distribution and supply
("Fu Ping County Zhongmin HE # AR #10,000,00070 of Gas Fuel
Gas Co., Ltd.") PEREEMR
PREZERERAR

2009-20105F 8




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010
SEMBERRME HZ201063 8318 LFE

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 47. T EM B F (&)

Place of
incorporation/  Capital contributed Group

Name of company establishment by the Group effective interest Directly Indirectly Principal activities
HRRL/

NAER R34 B AEEEE rEEERER HE B TEEH

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
BERRRRRERAF* PRC RMB40,000,000 70% 70% - - 70% 70%  Sales and distribution of
("Xi'an Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.") EF AR #40,000,0007C Gas Fuel, design of

Gas Fuel pipeline and
related maintenance

HERA HME
RiRAEER
ETRBAE
BLRRBRER AR PRC RMB18,180,000 55% 55% - - 55% 55%  Transportation,
(“Huaihua Zhongmin Gas Co. Ltd.") H AR %18,180,0007C distribution and retail
of bottled LPG
BlERRESRAHR
BEZE
EMNRRIRAR AR PRC RMB18,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Transportation,
(“Guizhou Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.") AR %18,000,0007T distribution and retail
of bottled LPG
BlERRESRAHR
BEZE
EHRRIRAR AR PRC RMB7,560,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Transportation,
(“Yunnan Zhongmin Gas Co., Ltd.") H ARH7,560,0007 distribution and retail
of bottled LPG
BlERRESRAHR
BEZE
BLRRBAREHARA A PRC RMB26,000,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Transportation,
(“Huaihua Zhongmin Petroleum H AR 26,000,000 distribution and retail
Gas Supply Co., Ltd.") of bottled LPG
BlERRESRAHR
BEZE
# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises registered in the PRC. # R B R 2 SN 0 A b 2 o
#  Sino-foreign joint equity enterprises registered in the PRC. "o RBBEEMzRIIEEEERE-
* For identification purpose only. * EA R o

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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47.

48.

49.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 31 March 2010

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year and at the end of the year.

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results or net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group disposed
certain property, plant and equipment to an independent
third party at an aggregate consideration of approximately
HK$1,704,000 of which approximately HK$733,000 was
net-off against the other payable balance that was due to
the acquirer.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures for the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation. No consolidated
statement of financial position has been presented as the
reclassifications would not affect consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2009 and 1 April 2008.
Details are set out as follows:

47.

48.

49.

HAEVMBRERME BE201083A31HIFE

FEWBLT (K)

FANEEAFETH WEARMER
TTEMERES -

FimERBARTEEREZBMNEM
B,/ RS B AR o

EERBLERAINZARBZHERF
BARBEZREREEFEEEARE -
IRt EMHB AR ZFHE EFAR/E
EEFHENTTR -

FTEHRREXRS

HE2010F3A31B ILFE » NEBE A —
EBUFE=ZFTHEETYE KERKRRK
B REX AEEE1,704,0000T HA 4
7S 733,000 c B AR ZWE S 2 H A
FES A RR T 8H o

bR F

REEZERARENE THERBFTEE
OB UFERFEZENAFR AR
EN BT EN2009F3H318 &
2008F4 1B 2R & MR R R EK 18
I 25 4RE M AR K - BB H
HIEAT -

As previously

reported Reclassification As restated

A28, BNIR KE?
Administrative expenses 1T &2 128,583 (3,288) 125,295
Impairment loss recognised in B 5t E 5 & Hith pE g 208
respect of trade and other 2 I8
receivable e - - 3,288 3,288
FRERERA T
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Five-year Financial Summary f & 8 & #l &

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £201093A318 It F &

The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets, liabilities and minority interests of the Group for the five

financial years ended 31 March 2010.

AREEHZE2010FE3A310 IF A ERBEE 2
BHZXEREE BERLERRERHEE
PUNE

Year ended 31 March

BZE3A31BLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok e BT BT T BT T
RESULTS E4
Turnover =0 706,250 579,510 619,676 532,417 240,607
Profit (loss) before tax BREEATEF (F18) 330,006 51,283 (300,661) 49,381 (35,711)
Tax T8 (20,248) (12,046) (8,739) (15,917) (19,400)
Profit (loss) for the year REFERA (BE) 309,758 39,237 (309,400) 33,464 (55,111)
Attributable to: ToI AL :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZZ =N 300,614 35,902 (309,456) 22,123 (56,061)
Minority interests DHR RS 9,144 3,335 56 11,341 950
309,758 39,237 (309,400) 33,464 (55,111)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND ¥BE AEK
MINORITY INTERESTS DEBRRER
Total assets BERE 1,481,764 1,530,375 1,365,454 1,436,863 496,268
Total liabilities BEAT (489,117) (828,237) (648,469) (867,309) (219,080)
Net assets LEFE 992,647 702,138 716,985 569,554 277,188
Minority interests DHR R = (64,041) (68,810) (66,089) (66,033) (4,713)

Chinese People Holdings Company Limited
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S5 i

Distribution of business

(Bl Z2010F3H31H)

(For the year ended 31 March 2010)

i bhA
Jilin Province 9
i

Yan Bia ngmin

Jb ¢l

Beijing City @)
PR
Zhongmin Zai Xian
|
=188
BEIRIEE @ FuPing Project
Yan Liang Project @)
i6)II1ER
Bei Chuan Project £
EHEE @ Shanxi Province
Han Wang Project @
B = -
@rEe© HSEE
Mian Zhu Project  Yan Tlr%Prolect /
PO Bl
Sichuan Province “’%1 éhongqlng City
JEL o P
Tong Nan Project iﬂf’ﬁ‘ﬁ.
Hunan Province
My o EeRE BERA
Guizhou Province  Huai Hua Project Fujian An
==18
- ENEHE s (*)
Guizhou Project ?ﬁﬁﬁ
EmEE Fujian Provin
Yunnan Project
-

EMH

*  Yunnan Province

\‘r«/“"‘

AEEEXBRERT

The provinces in which the Group operates

Y]

Guangdong Province

KIESEF
Yongheng Lecai

I

Shamahen City © FENCRATENTELERRARBOESERY

ROfEH &R H8E - £B30MEEAE A A])

The Group’s investment on gas pipeline projects (The operation
of Fujian An Ran covers 8 out of 9 regions in Fujian

province, with a total of 30 project companies)

AEBERERCAMRAMBETEIAA (BLEE

-
BEELPRMECEHQF2EER)
The Group’s investment on wholesale & retail of LPG projects
(Huai Hua project includes 2 projects: Huai Hua Zhong Min
& Huai Hua Petroleum Gas Supply Company)

© FTHEEEREHWER

(BREEETR  PRER  KELFIEAR)
The Group’s other investment projects (including 3 projects:
Yan Bian Zhongmin, Zhongmin Zai Xian and Yongheng Lecai)
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